Full Council

Thursday, 14th February, 2019, at 1.00 pm in the Council Chamber, County
Hall, Preston.

Agenda
Index

1. Apologies and Announcements

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
A. Matters for Decision

3. Report of the Cabinet (Part A) - Lancashire County Council's
Corporate Strategy (Pages 1 - 34)

4. Revenue Budget 2019/20 and Financial Strategy 2019/20 to
2022/23; Capital Delivery Programme 2019/20; Council Tax
and Precept 2019/20; Treasury Management Strategy and
Non-Treasury Investment Strategy 2019/20 (Pages 35 - 370)

B. Matters for Information
There are no matters to be reported at this meeting.
C. Notice of Motion
To consider any Notices of Motion submitted under Standing Order B36
Angie Ridgwell
Chief Executive and

Director of Resources

County Hall
Preston

07 February 2019
Lancashire

Cou nty ‘@é‘-@.
Council (&g{)






Agenda ltem 3

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 14 February 2019

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Report of the Cabinet (Part A) - Lancashire County Council's Corporate
Strategy
(Annex 1 refers)

Contact for further information:
Dave Gorman, Tel: (01772) 534261, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
dave.gorman@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of Lancashire County Council's
Corporate Strategy.

As the agenda for Full Council was published before the meeting of Cabinet, the
Leader of the County Council will report on the decisions of the Cabinet in respect of
this item, from its meeting on 7 February 2019, at this meeting.

Recommendation
Full Council is asked to consider the recommendations of the Cabinet from its

meeting on 7 February 2019 in respect of Lancashire County Council's Corporate
Strategy.

Background and Advice

A corporate strategy for the county council, 'Our Vision for Lancashire', has been
developed and will be considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 7 February 2019. A
copy of the report to Cabinet, together with the strategy itself and a set of high level
key performance metrics is set out at Annex 1.

The strategy clearly and concisely sets out the key objectives and ambitions for
Lancashire, highlights what success looks like, and shows how the county council,
its partners and the residents of Lancashire can all work together to make
Lancashire the best it can be.

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 1



The key objectives of the strategy will be measured by a set of high level, key
performance metrics, which will enable the overall success and progress of the
strategy to be demonstrated.

Cabinet will be asked to recommend to Full Council for approval on 14 February
2019:

(i) The adoption of the county council's corporate strategy entitled 'Our Vision for
Lancashire' and;

(i) A set of accompanying high level key performance metrics, noting the
intention to engage scrutiny in their ongoing development.

As the agenda for Full Council was published before the meeting of Cabinet, the

Leader of the County Council will report on the decisions of the Cabinet in respect of

this item at this meeting.

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

These are set out in the report.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 2



Annex 1

Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 7 February 2019

Report of the Chief Executive and Director of Resources

| Part |

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Lancashire County Council Corporate Strategy
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information:
Angie Ridgwell, Tel: (01772) 536260, Chief Executive and Director of Resources
angie.ridgwell@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

A corporate strategy for the county council has been developed. It is entitled 'Our
Vision for Lancashire' and is attached at Appendix 'A' for Cabinet's consideration
and recommendation to Full Council for approval.

The strategy clearly and concisely sets out the key objectives and ambitions for
Lancashire, highlights what success looks like, and shows how the county council,
its partners and the residents of Lancashire can all work together to make
Lancashire the best it can be.

The key objectives of the strategy will be measured by a set of high level, key
performance metrics, which will enable the overall success and progress of the
strategy to be demonstrated. A proposed set of high level metrics is included at
Appendix 'B'.

Recommendation

Cabinet is asked to recommend to Full Council for approval on 14 February 2019:

(i) The adoption of the county council's corporate strategy entitled 'Our Vision for
Lancashire' attached at Appendix 'A', and;

(ii) A set of accompanying high level key performance metrics attached at Appendix
'B', noting the intention to engage scrutiny in their ongoing development.

ir
Lancastic
Council (?,g:;.s\?

Page 3




Background and Advice

During 2018 county council staff were consulted on the council's vision and values.
Feedback from the consultation was gathered over a period of six months and
resulted in the development of a new set of values and proposed new vision
statement for the council.

Based on the consultation feedback, the council's proposed vision statement is 'Here
at Lancashire County Council we are helping you to make Lancashire the best place
to live, work, visit and prosper.’! The council's proposed values are supportive,
innovative, respectful and collaborative.

Following on from this work a more detailed corporate strategy document has been
developed. A small task and finish working group consisting of representatives from
each of the county council's directorates was established in September 2018, with a
remit of producing a corporate strategy which:

- County Councillors and staff can be proud of and aspire to;
- encompasses what Lancashire wants to be famous for;
- is punchy, clear and to the point;
- incorporates no more than 5/6 key objectives;
will still be meaningful in 5 years' time;
- is measurable.

The working group has produced the strategy document attached at Appendix 'A". It
has been produced by reviewing best practice examples from other organisations
and from discussions with Corporate Management Team, Executive Director
management teams, Heads of Service, and ongoing dialogue with Cabinet
Members. To ensure that the document clearly encapsulates the county council's
overarching objectives and ambitions it has been through a number of iterations,
each time reviewed and tested to ensure it meets the original brief as set.

The document contains 5 high level objectives, some key facts and figures about
Lancashire, sets out what success looks like, and shows how the county council, its
partners, stakeholders and residents can all work together to make Lancashire the
best it can be. It is written in a clear and concise way, with no jargon, and contains
visual images which encapsulate the beauty, diversity and vibrancy of Lancashire.

It outlines how the county council and its key partners can support individuals,
families and communities to help them maintain their own good health, wellbeing and
independence, with access to advice, support and care when needed.

The strategy enables staff to understand how their roles and responsibilities
contribute to the county council's key objectives and ambitions, and it will enable
teams to develop service plans and work programmes with a clear focus on
delivering the county council's key objectives.

The document also enables the county council's key partners, stakeholders,
business and industry associates to be clear about the county council's longer term

Page 4



ambitions, which will enable them to understand how this aligns to their own aims
and facilitate collaborative work with the county council to deliver high quality, best
value services to meet the needs of Lancashire residents.

Following the approval of the strategy by Full Council the document will be shared
with staff, and with our key partners and stakeholders. There will be staff briefings to
ensure that the key messages of the vision are understood and owned by staff.
Service managers will play a key role in ensuring that teams have a sense of
ownership of the vision. It will feature strongly in the induction of new staff.

The strategy will be accessible in an on-line format and a hard copy document, and
will form the cornerstone of county council internal and external promotional material
and branding, for example posters, leaflets and web pages. It will provide a 'golden
thread' for our internal and external communications, and the on-line version will
include links to other key strategies and documents.

One of the key elements of the brief was for the vision to be measurable. Appendix
'B' contains some high level key performance metrics and measures which will
enable members to monitor progress against the 5 key objectives over a number of
years, and establish plans for corrective action where necessary. Some of the
metrics reflect the county council's enabling and influencing role, rather than its direct
responsibility.

Following the approval of the proposed high level key metrics by Full Council,
targets, both short and longer term, will be set, and these will be monitored on a
regular basis by members through the Cabinet Committee on Performance
Improvement. Scrutiny Committee will play a key role in year 1 in ensuring that the
high level metrics are the right ones, or if more need to be added, and that the
targets set are appropriate.

In addition to the high level key metrics relating to the vision, the Cabinet Committee
on Performance Improvement will continue to regularly receive the more detailed,
service specific key performance metrics which enable members to monitor ongoing
service delivery and performance.

Both the strategy document and the accompanying high level key performance
metrics will be kept under regular review and will be updated to ensure they remain
current and relevant in a fast moving world. It is anticipated that the vision will have
a lifespan of at least 5 years, with an annual review and refresh.

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Page 5



Risk management

The county council's strategy document is a key document, containing clear
objectives which enables services to plan for the future, staff to understand how their
role fits in to the bigger picture, and external partners to engage with the county
council. It focusses on how individuals, families and communities can maintain their
own health, wellbeing and independence, and how they can access advice, support
and care when needed.

If the strategy is not approved there is a risk that services will not be delivered in a
way that contributes most effectively to the county council's overall aims and
objectives.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 6



Lancasbhire

County ‘@g?.
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council (?,&g{

/ - | Xauuy






We want Lancashire to be the county people
choose to create a home, raise their children,
develop a career and grow old in. We are committed
to developing and celebrating our diverse
communities, heritage and landscape to create a
strong sense of place we can all be proud of.

In Lancashire we listen to what our people want
which puts them at the heart of everything we do,
and while we celebrate our successes we take the
time to learn from the past so our county continues
to thrive.

The role of the county council in delivering our
vision will change over the next few years. We will
work more closely with partners to help people

to anticipate their own needs and take greater
responsibility for themselves and their communities.

The financial challenges we have faced over recent
years mean that we must be focussed on the most
vital services.

We now seek out innovative ways to identify
opportunities, such as digital and online technology,
to deliver real benefits for everybody at a lower cost.




Objective 1

Lancashire will be
the place to live

Lancashire is a county of diverse * People get on well together and are connected

communities. It is a place where people are to their local community

valued and will feel able to have their say. * Our most vulnerable people are protected and
supported

It will be a county where housing meets the
needs of all ages, where people are safe
and feel safe, surrounded by clean, green
spaces where everyone can enjoy a good
quality of life and be happy.

0l 8bed

* People make use of technology to access
services, support and information.

It will be a county where:

* Children of all abilities do well in our first class
schools, colleges and universities, gaining skills
for life

* People have good housing

* People live healthier lives for longer

* People can travel on good quality, reliable
public transport




|| ebed

~

: We will protect the county’s environment and climate
People WI" have a by investing in flood defence, energy efficiency and

H I waste recycling. We will continue to dispose household
better quallty Of Ilfe and commercial waste in a way that meets the latest
Lancashire will be a place where people of all envi_ronmental standards, and we will work VYith
ages and backgrounds can access first class businesses to reduce the amount of packaging they use.
education and_learnlnq opportur_lltles. We are Lancashire is a county where community safety is
proud of our high quality nurseries, schools, important. We want Lancashire residents and visitors to
colleges and universities where children and be safe, and feel safe and secure. We will safeguard and
young people can gain skills for life and where protect vulnerable people, young and old, keep our roads
people can continue to learn throughout their safe to use, and work with other partners to reduce crime
lifetime. It will be a place where people of any and the fear of crime.
age or ability can live safely, in healthy homes
and in a clean environment, giving children the Success looks like:
best start in life. * More people live in good quality housing
e Our roads and pavements will be safe to use, and
We will work with Government, our partners and maintained to a good standard
housing developers to enable a supply of good quality, * All schools are rated good or better
affordable, flexible housing across the county, close to * People feel safe and secure
employment opportunities and transport networks, and : People_ feel happy .
in places where people and families can create their : Recy_cllng r_ates are h'g_h .
own sense of community. . Contlnu_ed investment in energy efficiency and flood
prevention.
J

42%

of household waste
is reused, recycled or good or better
composted. by Ofsted.

(2017/18) (December 2018)

90%

of schools rated

85%

of respondents to a
‘Living in Lancashire’ survey
felt safe in their local area.

(February 2018)



Z| abed

-~

People and families will
live healthier lifestyles

Lancashire will be a place where as many people
as possible live longer and healthier lives. Our
focus is on helping people to help themselves,
by working with partners and our communities to
provide support that is accessible for people of
all ages and abilities across the county.

We will promote ways that people can keep themselves
healthy as they grow older and make sure we work
closely with local health services to deliver joined up
services for those who need them the most.

We will support people and families to keep themselves
healthy and well by choosing healthy lifestyles. We will
provide information about healthy eating, the benefits of
an active lifestyle and helping people to adopt healthy
behaviours. We will support parents to make the right
lifestyle choices for themselves and their children, to help
children to get the best start in life.

Success looks like:

* People living longer and in better health
* People will make healthy choices

* More babies having the best start in life
* More people having active lifestyles.

People will be
connected through
communities

We will work with communities
to understand their needs and
help them make use of the
support available to them. We
will encourage communities to
take responsibility for their own
wellbeing and work with our
partners such as the voluntary,
faith and community sectors to
tackle loneliness and help people
to be more connected in their
communities.

We will work with partners to support
and encourage community cohesion
and will value and champion the

diversity that exists within Lancashire.

We understand the importance
of maintaining and improving the

public transport network throughout
Lancashire and we will enable the
provision of reliable and sustainable
public transport, cycle routes,
bridleways and public footpaths
throughout the county.

We will use existing and new
technology to enable people to access
advice, support and information

about our services and local services
provided by others. We will use
technology to make services easier to
access.

Success looks like:

* People travel on good quality,
reliable public transport and have
access to well-maintained cycle
routes, bridleways and public
footpaths

e People will get on well together
and be connected to their local
community

* People will make use of technology
to access advice, support and
information.

~

64%

of adults are overweight or obese.

15.5m

rail passenger
journeys are
made each year.

45.5m

bus and tram
passenger journeys
are made each year.



"_E . -
-

-
* - .

22 635"

#s andﬂer‘
F ’,eo received long

“term suppoh

11,500

carers were
pported in their
caring role.

(2017/18)

y

In 2018 the fostering
and adoption serwce’
was rated

Good

by Ofsted.

Lancashire is a place
where vulnerable
people are supported
and protected

The county council and its partners
will prioritise the care and support
of Lancashire’s most vulnerable
residents, both young and old.

We take our role as corporate parent
for children and young people in

our care very seriously. We will
ensure they are safe and healthy, can
positively participate in and make
choices about the care and support
they receive, and will thrive and go on
to achieve their ambitions.

We will provide responsive and effective
safeguarding services for people of any
age and for people with learning difficulties
or mental health conditions. We will step in
when necessary to keep people safe

from harm.

Lancashire will be a place where victims

of domestic abuse will be supported, and
where children in particular will be protected
and receive ongoing support.

bl

Lancashire’s trading standards service will
protect all residents and advise business.
They will continue to protect vulnerable
people, especially older people, from
scammers and rogue traders.

Lancashire’s care homes will continue to
improve, and people who need residential or
nursing care to keep them safe will be
supported to find a suitable place in
circumstances when home based services
are no longer appropriate.

We value the care and support provided

to people through families, friends and
support groups and we will support carers.
We will ensure that people are supported

in the decisions and choices they make in
circumstances where they need someone to
help them.

Success looks like:

* Our most vulnerable people will receive
the support they need

* People will be protected from harm and
will feel safe

» Care services will be good or outstanding

e Carers are supported

* People get the help of an advocate when
they need one

* People are protected from scammers and
rogue traders

* People who have been or who are at risk
of abuse can access support.




Objective 2

Lancashire will be
the place to work

Lancashire will be a county that supports
a flexible and inclusive labour market,
where skills development is championed
and where talented individuals choose to
live and work.

7| obed

It will be a county where:

* We support people of all ages and abilities to
learn and develop their skills

» Significant new, good job opportunities are
created

* We support and encourage business
investment, innovation and growth

* We aim to increase the earning power of our
residents and communities

* We build and develop effective infrastructure
and transport links.




G| abed

People can learn and
develop skills

We want every person in Lancashire to be able
to access the most appropriate education and
learning opportunities, so they can achieve
their potential regardless of age, ability and
background.

We will support our children, young people and adults
with special educational needs and disabilities, and mental
health conditions, so they can meet their potential. We will
work collaboratively with families, schools and partners
across Lancashire to enable people to access information
and support to make the right choices.

We will work with our nurseries, schools, colleges,
universities and training providers to ensure that people
have a range of education and learning opportunities which
match their talents, ambitions and aims in life so that they
have options to choose the right employment, retirement,
volunteering and leisure time activities for them.

We will maximise the learning opportunities available for all
ages and abilities through Lancashire’s much loved cultural
offer including libraries and museums.

Success looks like:

* People leave education better prepared for work and life
with better qualifications and skills

* Educational outcomes for vulnerable children improve

* More young people are in education, employment or
training after leaving school

* People continue to use the facilities on offer in
Lancashire’s libraries and museums, including digital.

/

apprenticeships were started
in the 12 months to July 2018.

Over
89% 600,000
of 16-17 year sessions were
olds were in undertaken on
employment, our public library
education or training. computers.
(March 2018) (2017/18)

© Edge Hill University



Lancashire will retain and
attract skilled and talented
individuals

Lancashire needs talented and skilled individuals.
We value the people who have chosen to stay in
Lancashire as they have progressed through their
life and their chosen career, and we will encourage
them to stay in our county to make it their home and
bring up their family.

We also want to encourage skilled and talented people from
outside of Lancashire to move to our county and build their
life here.

Success looks like:

* A greater number of graduates choosing to work in
Lancashire

* Fewer reported vacancies/skills shortages in key sectors.

48,000

students studying at
UCLAN, Lancaster University
and Edge Hill University.

®©

s third

of students studying in Lancashire,
stay in Lancashire on completion
s, | of their studies.

.




Lancashire is a
place where job

opportunities
are good

We will work with partners,
colleges, universities, industry
and businesses to widen the
employment opportunities
available to all ages and abilities.

We recognise that there are many
ways of getting into good employment
and will promote volunteering

and vocational routes such as
apprenticeships.

We will work with the universities
and colleges to find ways to retain
local talent and encourage people
from Lancashire who may have
studied elsewhere to come, or return
to Lancashire.

Success looks like:

* More volunteering opportunities

» Better access to skills development

* More apprenticeships available for
people of all ages

* More good quality jobs are available
in a variety of sectors
More people are in higher paid and
skilled jobs

* More people with learning
disabilities are supported to be
in work.

¥

o%
i

£22,226

is the annual median gross income.

.

(2018)

1,460

volunteers
supported the
council’s services.

716.5%

is the employment
rate for the working-
age population.

40%

of Lancashire’s
working population
are in managerial or
higher skilled jobs.



Objective 3

8| abed

10

Lancashire will be
the place to prosper

Lancashire will be a county that promotes
strong economic growth in both urban
and rural economies. It will be a county
that actively boosts productivity and
prosperity for everyone.

It will be a county where:

* We invest in industry, and promote innovation
to secure Lancashire’s growth potential

* Businesses are supported to start up, to thrive
and to grow

* We build on the strengths and resilience of
local industry

* QOur residents, businesses and places are
enabled to be more productive

* We promote Lancashire as a national and
globally connected destination and a well
performing place to do business.




61 abed

Lancashire is a
great place to
do business and
invest

We will create the best

conditions possible for business
investment. We will maximise our
existing transport infrastructure
and connectivity and take every
opportunity to draw in further
investment to improve it. We

will promote the potential of
Lancashire as a place where new
jobs can be created.

This, combined with our ambition
to develop and retain talent, will
make Lancashire a very attractive
place for business investment
and improved productivity.

Lancashire has a strong industrial and
small business heritage which has
provided the foundations for a county

where businesses are confident to
invest. We also have a wide and varied
talent pool from which to draw hard
working and knowledgeable people,
making our county a great place

to start a new business or build on
existing success.

We will work with neighbouring
councils and business partners from
within and outside the county to
engage in the development of the
North West of England. We will actively
promote all that Lancashire has to offer.

Success looks like:

* More new businesses will be
starting up

* More existing businesses will
be growing

* More new jobs will be created

* Lancashire will have research
and development centres which
encourage innovation and
development of cutting edge
technology

* There will be more investment in
Lancashire to support business
growth.

43,530

VAT-registered
enterprises in
Lancashire.

5,642

new registered
businesses in 2017.

61%

of businesses
survived 3 years after
start up.

£26.1bn

workplace-based
gross value added.

11



Nz abed

‘Boost’ is Lancashire’s Business Growth Hub.
This is a public/private sector partnership led by the Local Enterprise Partnership.

Its purpose is to help Lancashire’s businesses grow.

Boost gives
businesses in
Lancashire access
to a

£7.8m

programme of top
e [VE114Y busmess
support.

It has helped
more than

2,400

businesses and
created more than

1,200

jobs.

Boost has
increased economic
growth by

£50m




Lancashire has the
best conditions to help
businesses to grow

Successful businesses need the right conditions
to be able to grow. We will work with partners to
support businesses to be creative and in particular
encourage entrepreneurs to develop and invest in
their ideas in our county.

We will help businesses to access the best support
available and encourage them to grow and explore export
opportunities. We will help new and existing businesses
to access funding and loans, to help them expand and
become sustainable and competitive.

Lancashire offers great opportunities for businesses to
access high quality accommodation to support growth
and productivity.

We will continue to develop the county’s transport network,
to enable producers and manufacturers to receive supplies
and distribute goods, to allow commuters easy access

to places of work, and public transport to operate on key
routes.

Success looks like:
Increase in the number of Lancashire businesses
helped to grow
Increase in the number of Rosebud micro and business
finance loans given to new and existing businesses
Increase in the number of high growth businesses
supported by Boost
A range of high quality business accommodation
Continued investment in transport infrastructure.

Rosebud has
been helping businesses
grow for over

31 years

Rosebud Micro Rosebud Business
Finance helps Finance helps aspiring
businesses to fund companies to develop
growth ideas and technology and
provides locally based innovation, acquire
sector specialist plant and equipment
advisors including and complete mergers
hands-on support. and acquisitions.

44,140

rateable commercial
properties with an
average value of

£21,000

13



Objective 4

Lancashire will be
the place to visit

Lancashire is a beautiful county with a
wealth of culture. From green fields and
rolling hills to coastal towns and country
villages - Lancashire really does have

it all as a place for people to enjoy.

2z 9bed

It will be a county where:

* We celebrate our beautiful, clean landscapes

* We encourage the visitor economy and the
opportunities for growth

* People enjoy our culture and heritage, diverse
communities and local attractions

* We promote our wonderful sporting attractions
and hidden gems.

14



¢z abey

Lancashire will be the
destination of choice
for leisure, sporting
and cultural activities,
and for access to the
countryside, the North
West coastline and
heritage towns.

Lancashire offers a wealth of diverse
and high quality leisure, sporting
and cultural activities. It is a place

of beautiful landscapes, green and
open spaces and areas of outstanding
natural beauty. It has stunning
beaches, waterways, rolling hills,
coastal and heritage towns and rural
villages. We will make Lancashire a
place where people want to spend
their free time.

Our county has a long and proud history
of sporting activities such as football,
cricket, cycling, golf and horse riding and
has a number of high quality sporting
venues. There are a wealth of cycle routes,

bridleways, public rights of way and country
parks, with something to offer everyone.

We will encourage and support people and
their families to use, celebrate and be proud
of our amazing county. They can enjoy the
latest cinema, theatre and arts experiences,
shopping destinations and established

café culture. They can visit our high quality
museums, libraries, castles and country
houses; all of which attract a large number of
local, national and international visitors year
on year.

We will work with the providers of leisure,
sporting, entertainment and cultural activities
and venues across Lancashire to encourage
them to continue to provide the high quality
offer that currently exists and support the
growth of this vital market.

Success looks like:

* People enjoy a wide range of leisure,
sporting and cultural activities

e Leisure, sporting, entertainment and
cultural activities and venues continue
to flourish

* People celebrate and feel proud of
Lancashire as a place to visit

* Continued use and enjoyment of our
country parks, public rights of way,
cycle routes, bridleways and areas of
outstanding natural beauty.

Over

900,000

people visited our
visitor attractions.

(2017)

More than

3.5m

visits made to
our libraries.

(2017/18)

Nearly

250,000

people visited
our museums.

(2017/18)

15



Lancashire will be the place of
choice for businesses to invest
In the visitor economy

=

q We will work with and develop strong relationships

" | with the business community in Lancashire, to enable
them to provide and develop the wide range of high
quality attractions, venues and activities on offer
across the county.

Lancashire will be the place of choice for businesses to invest

in the visitor economy. We will continue to promote Lancashire
as a visitor destination and we will raise the profile of our county,
both nationally and internationally.

Lancashire will continue to attract local, national and foreign
visitors leading to the expansion and growth of the visitor offer
in the future.

Success looks like:

* Businesses continue to invest in the visitor economy in
Lancashire

* People choose to spend their leisure time in the county.

32 7 1 5 The visitor economy is worth 4
full time e,quivalent jobs £2 56b“ 5l5m
ol visitors

supported by tourism.

16



Lancashire will be the
place where everyone acts
responsibly

Gz obed

The county council will work closely with our
partners to enable people in Lancashire to
develop and thrive. We will listen to the needs
of people and work with our partners and
communities to empower them to meet their
own needs. We will help people to look after
themselves and help them to provide care and
support to their families, friends, neighbours
and colleagues.

It will be a county where:

* We will equip our most vulnerable people with
the support and skills they need to do more for
themselves

* We commission, procure and provide services that
provide maximum benefit to Lancashire residents

* We recruit and retain a workforce that meets
service needs

* We prevent waste and use money wisely

* We learn from others. 17



15,400

people were helped
to stay independent at
home with home care
or other support.

(2017)

Almost

50,000

people provided care to
another person for 20
hours or more a week.

(2011 census)

9z abed

Over

3,500

charities operate
in the county.

(2018)

18

Everyone in
Lancashire will be
able to do as much
as they can to look
after their own and
their family’s
health, care and
support needs

We all have a role in supporting and
helping ourselves and each other.
Public services can support people
when they are unable to take care
of themselves, but families and
communities also have a key role
to play.

Our commitment is to support people

and their families when they need help,

and we will support communities to help
themselves whenever possible. We will
focus less on doing things to and for the
people of Lancashire, and more on creating
the opportunities, environments, expertise
and desire for individuals and communities
to improve their own wellbeing and
independence.

Just like in many other countries where family,
friends and neighbours play a much bigger
role in supporting and caring for each other,
we will work to ensure individuals and families
are placed at the heart of our communities.

Lancashire is a place with a great sense of
community and we will help to build support
networks, so that in times of need there are
people, groups or services that are available.
We will do this by working with partners,
communities and individuals, to create the
types of help and support that will be of
most benefit.

This will be different for everyone, and

could include things like easy to access
information and advice, appropriate
community based support, support for
families to live healthy and informed lifestyles,
and community activities that enable people
to be independent, happy, healthy and safe
in Lancashire.

Success looks like:

* People take responsibility for their own
health and wellbeing

* People look out for and support each other

* When people need our help, our staff and
partners will focus on people’s strengths
and what they can do, rather than being
limited by what they can’t do

* People receive more care and support in
their home and local community instead of
in a residential placement or hospital.




.

Lancashire
County Council
spends its
money wisely

The county council, like
many other public services,
is facing significant financial
challenges and the needs
of Lancashire residents are
increasingly complex.

The council’s funding is
increasingly reliant on
business rates collected from
businesses and council tax
paid by householders.

1 9bed

Ensuring value for money
in everything we do is
paramount.

Lancashire is a place where we will
help people to help themselves,
with access to support from us
and others. This will enable us to
focus our efforts and spend money
on services which help people to
maintain their independence, or
recover quickly from a period of
needing support.

Lancashire will be a place where
we make wise financial decisions
across all services.

Success looks like:

* The county council sets a
balanced budget

e Business rate and council tax
collections are maximised

e Council services provide
value for money

* We provide more services
which support people to live in
their own home.




The workforce of Lancashire
is valued

The county council provides employment, both
directly and indirectly, for thousands of people across
Lancashire. From front line social care workers to
library and museum staff, highways operatives, public
health professionals, school crossing patrollers,
personal travel assistants, office based support staff
and a large number of volunteers.

It is vital that Lancashire County Council attracts and retains
high calibre staff and that our valued staff across all sectors
are supported to maintain their professional skills and
standards, use the correct processes and procedures, and
continue to learn new skills and gain wider experience.

We will continue to invest in our apprentice and graduate
programmes, our work based learning and development
programmes and most importantly we will value the
workforce of Lancashire for the hard work and diligence
they show every day.

We will support employees who undertake caring roles for
family and others, and will continue to offer flexible working to
enable people to have a reasonable work life balance.

We will support and encourage employers across Lancashire
to take the same approach, especially those who are fulfilling
contracts on our behalf.

Success looks like:

* Lancashire’s workforce continues to learn and develop

* Lancashire’s workforce, including volunteers and staff
fulfilling contracts on our behalf, feel valued

* Fewer vacant positions.



Lancashire is a place
that learns from and
shares with others

The world is changing and we need to
keep up with it. Technology is being used
to help people access information and
services quicker and easier by offering
alternatives to traditional service delivery.

62 9bed

Lancashire will look at what others are
doing and how they are doing it and will
seek to provide best in class, future proof,
lowest cost services for the people of
Lancashire.

Lancashire will share its best practice
with others.

Many councils are embracing new ways of
working, working closer with health partners,
accessing the great skills and local knowledge of
the voluntary and community and faith sectors,
and working closer with developers, district
councils and other service providers to develop
new housing models for the future.

Success looks like:

* We learn from other best in class organisations

» We use existing and new technology to its
best advantage

* Other organisations learn from us.






Our values

Supportive @ Innovative 3 Respectful (C)  Collaborative ;2

We are supportive of our We deliver the best services We treat colleagues, We listen to, engage
customers and colleagues, we possibly can, always customers and partners with, learn from and work
recognising their looking for creative ways with respect, listening to with colleagues, partners
contributions and making to do things better, putting their views, empathising and customers to help
the best of their strengths to the customer at the heart and valuing their diverse achieve the best outcomes
enable our communities to of our thinking, and being needs and perspectives, for everyone.
flourish. ambitious and focused on to be fair, open and honest

how we can deliver the in all that we do.

best services now and in

the future.

" Our Vision for Lancashire forms part of the county council’s pIannrnﬁ‘? n' performance

framework. It sets out our prrorrtles in ?gfﬁ{rtfa?@gan‘sparentw"ﬁlt eg Bjectt
r

q ...__ --..
§regular monitoring in terms of how we ar E ogressing agarns ur"Ob;ectrves and it wrll"ben > L

/kept under review to make sure |t rs’ kept u date |n5aifas‘t~c nglng world At |s support dﬂmm,- =z
by all council departments nd was for;‘ Jyagreed bx%liﬁll i

; _,-.} o

¥ B ﬂ&ﬁhtmL A



¢ abed

Lancashire
County ‘@é@.
Council @&23?



Annex 1 - App B

Corporate Strategy: proposed high level key performance metrics

1 Lancashire will be the place to live

People will have a better quality of life, people and families will live healthier lifestyles and vulnerable
people are supported and protected

e Percentage of highways defects repaired within published timescales

e Percentage of recycling, reuse and composting of waste

e Number of NHS health checks offered to eligible population and take up of health checks

e Percentage of families who received targeted early help support from Children and Families
Wellbeing service which successfully met their identified needs

e Percentage of adults and older people whose desired safeguarding outcomes are met

2. Lancashire will be the place to work

People can learn and develop skills, job opportunities are good and skilled and talented individuals
are attracted and retained

o Number of visits to libraries

e Percentage of children achieving a good level of development at the Early Years Foundation
Stage

e Percentage of pupils reaching the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics at
KS2

e Average Attainment 8 score at GCSE

¢ Number of graduates choosing to work in Lancashire

3. Lancashire will be the place to prosper
A great place to do business and invest, and has the best conditions to help businesses grow

o Number of Rosebud loans provided to new or existing businesses
¢ Number of jobs created by Boost

4. Lancashire will be the place to visit

Destination of choice for cultural and leisure activities and for businesses to invest in the visitor
economy

e Number of visitors to Lancashire
5. Lancashire will be the place where everyone acts responsibly
People are enabled to take responsibility for themselves and their families

e Percentage of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from
hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services

Lancashire County Council spends its money wisely

e Revenue forecast outturn % variance to budget

Page 33



Page 34



Agenda ltem 4

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 14 February 2019

Report submitted by the Cabinet and Audit, Risk and Governance Committee

Part A

Electoral Division affected:
All

Revenue Budget 2019/20 and Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2022/23

Capital Delivery Programme 2019/20

Council Tax and Precept 2019/20

Treasury Management Strategy and Non-Treasury Investment Strategy 2019/20
(Appendices 'A’, 'B', 'C', 'D" and 'E' refer)

Contact for further information:
Angie Ridgwell, Tel: (01772) 536260, Chief Executive and Director of Resources
angie.ridgwell@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary
To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet on 7 February 2019 regarding:

1. The revenue budget 2019/20 and financial strategy 2019/20 to 2022/23: section 1
of this report and Appendix 'A’;

2. The capital delivery programme 2019/20: section 2 of this report and Appendix 'A’;
and

3. The council tax and precept 2019/20: section 3 of this report.

To consider the recommendation of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
considered on 28 January 2019 regarding the Treasury Management Strategy and
Non-Treasury Investment Strategy 2019/20.

Recommendation
Full Council is asked to:

i) Consider the proposals of cabinet from its meeting on 7 February 2019 and
then approve:

Page 35


mailto:angie.ridgwell@lancashire.gov.uk

e The revenue budget for 2019/20 and financial strategy 2019/20 to 2022/23;
e The capital delivery programme for 2019/20;
e The council tax requirement and precept for 2019/20

i) Consider the proposals of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee from
its meeting on 28 January 2019 and then approve the Treasury
Management Strategy and Non-Treasury Investment Strategy 2019/20 (as
set out at Appendix 'E'").

Consultations

As part of the budget process the contents of the report to full council have been subject to a
consultation with a variety of stakeholders and partners, including discussions with the trade
unions.

For the budget consultation, an email was sent out on behalf of the county council on 7
December 2018 outlining the budget position, and containing a link to the relevant reports
with respondents then able to e-mail or send in their written feedback. The closing date for
the consultation was 18 January 2019, however responses have been accepted after this
date and included in this report until the publication deadlines were reached. Any responses
received after this date will be shared with cabinet for their consideration. The consultation
documentation included all the savings proposals that have been agreed by cabinet. These
are set out in Appendices 'C' and 'D', with those proposals in Appendix 'C' being subject to
further specific consultation, the outcome of which will be reported back to cabinet for a final
decision.

Appendix 'B' contains the responses that have been received following the budget
consultation. A total of 78 responses were received, with the most substantive feedback
primarily related to a small number of savings proposals, namely, SC034 — Highways
Network Regulation (Parking — On street pay and display) with significant feedback (70% of
respondents) in relation to Colne, SC610 Lancashire Wellbeing Service, SC609 Health
Improvement Services, SC611 Home Improvement Services and SC023 — Highways County
Wide Services — Street Lighting — Part Night Lighting. (The saving relating to street lighting
is no longer being considered following a review of the saving and project planning). The
majority of the feedback recognises the need to make savings but would prefer the County
Council to look at alternatives to achieve the saving as they feel that these savings would
have a detrimental impact on their local town or the services supporting them or their local
residents.

The maijority of the specific savings areas responded on are subject to further specific
consultation, before a final decision is made by Cabinet. In relation to potential charges for
on-street parking, any such proposal could only be made on the basis of a specific scheme
and public consultation would form part of the process on a scheme by scheme basis.

The total value of those savings that require consultation prior to implementation is £7.529m
(£2.150m 2019/20, £5.329m 2020/21 and £0.050m 2021/22). Should cabinet ultimately not
agree to any of these savings being implemented post consultation, then there would be
sufficient reserves to support the budget until part way through 2022/23.

Page 36



Following review of the proposals by the new permanent Executive Director for Education
and Children's Services there have been some slight amendments to the wording of a small
number of templates. The amendments do not however fundamentally change the planned
delivery of the saving. In addition SC109 Safeguarding, Inspection and Audit Team (£7,000)
has been removed with the financial target added to SC122 Lancashire Safeguarding
Children's Board.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Ext
Money Matters 2018/19 7t February 2019 Angie Ridgwell/Chief
Position — Quarter 3 Executive and Director of
Resources/x36260
Money Matters 2018/19 34 December 2018 Angie Ridgwell/Chief
Position — Quarter 2 Executive and Director of
Resources/x36260

Reason for inclusion in Part
I, if appropriate

N/A

Page 37



Report of the Cabinet

This report for full council has been published in advance of the meeting of the cabinet on
7th February, therefore full council will be advised of any changes to cabinet's
recommendations at the meeting that are shown below.

The cabinet recommends the adoption of the proposals set out below for the:

1. The revenue budget 2019/20 and financial strategy 2019/20 to 2022/23: section 1 of this
report and Appendix A,

2. The capital delivery programme 2019/20: section 2 of this report and Appendix A; and
3. The Council Tax and Precept 2019/20: section 3 of this report.
1. Revenue Budget 2019/20

The Cabinet recommends the adoption of the revenue budget as set out in Appendix A and
in the tables below, which sets out the proposed budget allocations to services and other
budget areas. In reports throughout the financial year to cabinet, it is clear that the council is
committed to the delivery of a significant savings programme (c£120m over the period
2019/20 to 2022/23) including £77m of new savings proposals agreed by cabinet during
2018/19. There are inherent risks with saving plans of this scale and scope and any significant
under-delivery of agreed savings will further increase the funding gap. This has been
identified as one of the highest level risks in the council's risk and opportunity register and
there are comprehensive arrangements in place to track delivery of financial savings and take
corrective actions as required. However, despite the additional savings, the county council
faces a financial gap of £10.245m in 2019/20 and it is proposed that the transitional reserve
is used to support this shortfall.

Page 38



Revenue Budget 2019/20 Net Budget
£m
Adult Services 343.054
Chief Executive Services 28.990
Children's Social Care 143.820
Corporate Services 18.954
Education and Skills 27.879
Finance Services 38.073
Growth, Environment and Planning 3.940
Waste Management 65.995
Highways and Transport 57.998
Public Health and Wellbeing 23.440
Strategy and Performance 33.615
Sub-Total 785.758
Financing Charges 26.762
Use of one off resources -10.245
Revenue budget 2019/20 802.275

2. Capital Programme Delivery 2019/20

The cabinet recommends the adoption of the proposals for the capital programme delivery
2019/20 as set out at Appendix A.

3. Council Tax and Precept 2019/20

The cabinet recommends the full council to authorise, in pursuance of the provisions of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992, and in order to meet the general expenses of the county
council for the financial year 2019/20.

a) Budget, Council Tax Requirement and Precept for 2018/19:

That the band D council tax for 2019/20 is increased by:

Page 39



e 1% for the adult social care precept being an annual increase of £12.95 for band D council
taxpayers.

e 2.99% for general council tax being an annual increase of £38.72 for band D council
taxpayers.

This gives an overall position of:

£m

Budget Requirement 802.275
Less Business Rates 230.657
Less Business Rates — Additional Levy 2.860
Less Business Rates — Pilot growth 2.886
Less New Homes Bonus 3.579
Less Improved Better Care Fund 45.532
Less Capital receipts 8.000
Less Social Care Grant 9.427
Less Collection Fund Surplus 5.436
Equals council tax cash 493.898
Divided by tax base 366,777.14
Gives Band D council tax for 2019/20 1,346.59
2018/19 council tax 1,294.92
Percentage increase 3.99%

Page 40



b) Council Tax (on the basis of a budget requirement of £802.275m and the Council
Tax base for each property valuation band:

Council Tax Band £
Band A 897.73
Band B 1,047.35
Band C 1,196.97
Band D (basic) 1,346.59
Band E 1,645.83
Band F 1,945.07
Band G 2,244 .32
Band H 2,693.18

c) The share for each district council of the net total raised from the council tax of

£493,898,429:

District £
Burnley 31,228,769
Chorley 50,004,798
Fylde 40,489,268
Hyndburn 28,189,515
Lancaster 55,748,826
Pendle 32,400,706
Preston 51,819,476
Ribble Valley 31,253,007
Rossendale 27,465,050
South Ribble 48,190,955
West Lancashire 47,475,808
Wyre 49,632,251
Total raised from the Council Tax 493,898,429

Geoff Driver CBE

Leader of the Council
County Hall, Preston

Page 41




Page 42



Appendix A

The County Council's Revenue Budget and Council Tax for 2019/20
and Capital Delivery Programme for 2019/20

1. Introduction

The council has faced an unprecedented period of financial challenge since austerity
began in 2010. Like all councils, Lancashire County Council is facing significant
financial pressures, and whilst good progress has been made to date in addressing
the forecast financial shortfall over the strategy period, further work is required to
ensure the council can achieve a financially sustainable position.

In reports throughout the financial year to cabinet, it is clear that the council is
committed to the delivery of a significant savings programme (c£120m over the period
2019/20 to 2022/23) including £77m of new savings proposals agreed by cabinet
during 2018/19. There are inherent risks with saving plans of this scale and scope and
any significant under-delivery of agreed savings will further increase the funding gap.
This has been identified as one of the highest level risks in the council's risk and
opportunity register and there are comprehensive arrangements in place to track
delivery of financial savings and take corrective actions as required.

A benchmarking exercise across all county councils (and other councils where
appropriate) identified that there are some service areas where Lancashire is high
cost. The service challenge process was targeted at understanding the reasons for
this and designing the delivery of better services at lower (median county council) cost.
This process resulted in the identification of c£77m from 42 individual service
challenge reviews. There remain a number of areas where further, more detailed
analysis and investigation is required and phase two of the service challenge process
will progress this work as well as look more strategically at some cross-cutting issues
that could provide the potential for additional savings proposals to come forward to
future cabinet meetings for consideration.

Should any of these savings proposals ultimately not be achieved they will need to be
replaced with alternative savings to avoid increasing the size of the funding gap.
£7.529m of the savings proposals are subject to the outcome of specific consultations
that are needing to be undertaken. Following the cabinet decision in December
detailed project planning has been completed by services with regard to those
consultations, including when the outcome of them will be reported back to cabinet to
make a final decision regarding their implementation.

The medium term financial strategy (MTFS) includes government funding as

announced in the final settlement on 29th January 2019, with no change to the
additional funding announced as part of the provisional settlement in December 2018.

Page 43



As part of the settlement the Chancellor announced several new 75% business rates
pilot schemes, with Lancashire being successful in its bid. This means that in order to
secure the additional growth from business rates authorities agree to forgo their
revenue support grant. The bid contained the county council, along with 11 district
councils, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Authority and the two unitary authorities of
Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool which could see potentially a one off extra
c£10m retained across Lancashire based on current growth estimates.

It is currently anticipated that a new system of local government finance, the "fair
funding formula®, will be in place in 2020/21 which involves local government retaining
75% of the business rates and a review of the funding formula. However, details of the
scheme and the impact on Lancashire are not known at this time. Additional
consultations have been published with the provisional settlement in December 2018
with content currently being reviewed and responses being prepared. Without any
insight into the outcomes of this work, the MTFS assumes that the funding proposals
in future years will match the current business rates and grants structure, with the
exception that the revenue support grant will cease from 2020/21, in line with previous
government announcements.

The MTFS reported to cabinet in February 2019 included a 1% adult social care
precept in 2019/20 as a result of flexibilities offered by Government. The final
settlement confirmed that the council has scope to increase council tax by a further
1% in 2019/20 on the grounds that it keeps pace with inflation. This flexibility is not
currently being offered in subsequent years.

From 2020/21 onwards, it is therefore assumed that the maximum increase will revert
back to 1.99%, as the option to raise an adult social care precept will no longer be
available. Council tax increases are subject to a full council decision each year when
setting the budget, but any decisions taken not to increase council tax as per the
assumptions above would increase the financial gap.

Taking account of updated resources information a funding gap of £10.245m remains
in 2019/20 and, in order to set a balanced budget, reserves of £10.245m are therefore
required to fund the gap. However, this is clearly dependent on all service challenge
savings agreed and delivered fully within the timeframes identified, along with the other
savings agreed in previous budget cycles.

There also remains an overall funding gap of £47.326m by 2022/23. Current forecasts
indicate that that there may be sufficient funds within the transitional reserve to support
the identified budget gap through to 2022/23. However the intention is to identify
further savings and thereby reduce the call on the transitional reserve, for 2020/21 and
beyond.

Page 44



This report presents for consideration by the full council the recommendations of the
cabinet for:

e The revenue budget for 2019/20;
e A revised capital delivery programme for 2019/20;
e The council tax and precept for 2019/20.

In addition the report sets out the advice of the Chief Executive and Director of
Resources, as the council's statutory Chief Finance Officer, on the robustness of the
budget and the adequacy of reserves as required by Section 25 of the Local
Government Act 2003.

Reports will be provided regularly to cabinet in 2019/20 to update the financial position
for the county council based on the latest information.

2. The Budget Process

The county council's approach is driven by a formal requirement to deliver a balanced
budget in 2019/20. This needs to be undertaken whilst recognising the position for
future years and that there will be a requirement for reserves to support the 2019/20
budget. The cabinet has considered the budget for 2019/20 and future years at a
number of its meetings. The reports considered can be found at:

http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Committeeld=122

3. The Revenue Budget 2019/20 to 2022/23

The county council's medium term financial strategy (MTFS) was approved by full
council in February 2018 covering the 2018/19 budget and the forecast position for
2019/20 to 2021/22. This identified the funding gap in each year as follows:

Table 1
Aggregated Funding Gap
2018/19 (Em) 42.045 42.045 42.045 42.045
2019/20 (Em) 26.365 26.365 26.365
2020/21 (Em) 49.728 49.728
2021/22 (Em) 25.946
Total 42.045 68.410 [ 118.138 | 144.084

During 2018/19 cabinet has received a number of MTFS reports that have identified
further changes to the expected level of spending and in the anticipated level of

Page 45


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=122

resources available for that period including an additional year of 2022/23. The latest
MTFS shows a revised spending gap of £47.326m. The profile of the funding gap is
shown in table 2:

Table 2

Aggregated Funding Gap

2019/20 (Em) 10.245 | 10.245| 10.245| 10.245
2020/21 (Em) 20.125 | 20.125 | 20.125
2021/22 (Em) 5518 5.518
2022/23 (Em) 11.438
Total 10.245 | 30.370 | 35.888 | 47.326

Previous position (Em)
(December cabinet — Quarter 3) 13.446 | 30.376 | 35.833 | 47.209

Variance (Em) -3.201| -0.006| 0.055| 0.117

Although the financial gap has significantly reduced, from the £144.084m reported last
February, the county council's budget is still facing a challenging future with savings
of £120m to achieve as part of the 2019/20 budget and beyond, with significant
additional pressures. These include the impact of the national pay award, national
living wage and inflationary and demand pressures across children's social care, adult
social care, waste services and transport.

Page 46



4. The level of resources available to support the 2019/20 revenue budget

The level of resources reflected in the MTFS for 2019/20 and future years is as follows:

Table 3
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 | 2022/23
£m £m £m £m
Revenue Support Grant 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Business Rates 230.657 200.419 205.861 211.473
Business Rates —
Additional Levy 2.860 0.000 0.000 0.000
Business Rates — Pilot 2.886 0.000 0.000|  0.000
growth
Council Tax 493.898 | 512.287 531.365 | 551.155
New Homes Bonus 3.579 3.025 3.016 3.016
Better Care Fund 45532 45,532 45.532 45532
Capital receipts 8.000 7.000 0.000 0.000
Social Care Grant 9.427 9.427 9.427 9427
Collection Fund Surplus 5.436 3.750 3.750 3.750
Total 802.275 | 781.440 798.951 824.353

These figures reflect the final settlement and have been adjusted for the impact of the
final council tax base figures and surplus and deficit position (across council tax and
business rates collection funds) as discussed below.

4.1 The resources received through the local government finance settlement

The Secretary of State announced the provisional local government finance settlement
on 13t December 2018, followed by the final settlement on 29" January 2019. There
were no changes following the publication of the final settlement, however there have
been several updates to the funding position following more detailed information being
available in relation to s31 grants. Itis important to note that the settlement only covers
the period up to 2019/20, therefore assumptions have been made for 2020/21
onwards. It is currently anticipated that a new system of local government finance will
be in place in 2020/21 which involves local government retaining 75% of the business

Page 47



rates and a review of the funding formula. However, details of the scheme and the
impact on Lancashire are not known at this stage.

4.2 Council Tax in 2019/20

On 7 February 2019 cabinet recommended to full council that Band D council tax for
2019/20 has a 3.99% increase, including 1% to be used for the adult social care
precept. The council tax figures within the MTFS include the impact of a 3.99%
increase in council tax in 2019/20, 1.99% increase in 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23.

There is a requirement for section 151 officers in those authorities levying the adult
social care precept to provide information demonstrating that an amount equivalent to
the additional council tax has been allocated to adult social care. Any proposals for a
council tax increase above these thresholds will be subject to a referendum.

As part of the budget setting process district councils must confirm both the council
tax-base and the surplus/deficit on the collection fund by 31st January 2019. The
information provided by district councils has resulted in a tax base increase of 1.37%
for 2019/20. This is less than the tax base growth that has been built into the MTFS,
therefore the reduced growth has been reflected in this report, with reduced funding
of £1.610m. The growth for future years remains at 1.7% with future year council tax
base increases kept under review with district councils.

As part of the budget setting process district councils must confirm the surplus/deficit
on the council tax collection fund by 31st January 2019. The information received from
district councils state that a surplus has been achieved on the council tax collection
fund of £5.240m. This has therefore been included in the funding position for 2019/20.

4.3 Business Rates in 2019/20

From 2013/14 an element of the county council's funding is received from the locally
retained element of business rates collected by the district councils. It is estimated that
the county council will receive funding of £236.403m from business rates (including
top up grant, additional levy and pilot growth).

As part of the budget setting process district councils must confirm the surplus/deficit
on the business rates collection fund by 31t January 2019. The information received
from district councils state that a surplus has been achieved on the business rates
collection fund of £0.196m. This has therefore been included in the funding position
for 2019/20.

Page 48



4.4 Capital receipts

In previous years the use of capital receipts (income derived from the sale of long term
assets) has been restricted to funding capital expenditure or the repayment of debt.
However, from 15t April 2016 the Government introduced the flexibility for capital
receipts to be used to fund revenue expenditure which meets certain criteria. To meet
the qualifying criteria the revenue expenditure needs to relate to activity which is
designed to generate ongoing revenue savings or to transform a service which results
in revenue savings or improvements in the quality of service provision. The flexibility
was extended as part of the provisional settlement in December 2017 to help meet the
revenue costs of transformation programmes and will continue for a further three
years.

Local authorities will only be able to use capital receipts from the sale of property, plant
and equipment received in the years in which this flexibility is offered. They may not
use their existing stock of capital receipts to finance the revenue costs of service
reform.

The current estimates of the capital receipts to be generated, and utilised in supporting
revenue expenditure, are as follows:

Table 4
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Capital
receipts 8.000 7.000 0.000 0.000 15.000
generated

The actual receipts received in any one year will fluctuate in line with local property
markets and the type of asset available for sale. Therefore, there is a risk that in any
given year the receipts actually received will be less than assumed and therefore the
situation will be monitored closely. Capital receipts received as at 315t December 2018
were broadly on track to achieve the 2018/19 target. However, as the value has not
yet been achieved this remains a risk, with any in year shortfall to be met from the
transitional reserve.

There is suitable forecast expenditure within the revenue budget to enable the
estimated £8.000m to be applied in 2019/20. As part of the service challenge process
additional resources have been identified to support the transformation of services and
delivery of the savings. The assumption within the MTFS is that there will be sufficient
capital receipts to meet these transformation costs over the next 2 years and therefore
they will not be a draw on reserves or increase the funding gap. These receipts would
normally be applied to the capital delivery programme and therefore the impact is to

Page 49



effectively increase the level of borrowing required to support the approved capital
delivery programme.

The capital receipts in 2019/20 will be applied to the following areas (shown in Table
5) to generate ongoing revenue savings or to transform a service which results in
revenue savings or improvements in the quality of provision.

Table 5
Service Area Value (Em)
Business Intelligence 0.353
Core Business System Transformation 0.981
Customer Access 0.120
Disability Services (Adults) 0.110
Exchequer Services 0.349
Financial Management (Development and Schools) 0.082
Financial Management (Operational) 0.425
Fostering, Adoption, Residential and YOT 0.124
Health, Equity and Welfare Partnerships 0.500
Highways 0.114
Learning Disabilities, Autism & Mental Health 1.148
Patient Safety and Quality Improvement 0.090
Programme Office 1.402
Social Care Services (Adults) 2.202
Grand Total 8.000

At full council in February each year the county council's prudential indicators are
reviewed and approved. As part of the treasury management strategy, that is
requesting approval at this full council meeting, the level of indicators incorporate the
budgeted level of capital receipts that will be used to support the revenue budget rather
than the capital delivery programme. The indicators are reviewed on a regular basis
and reported to members on a quarterly basis.

Page 50



4.5 Specific Grants and contributions to be received by the County Council in 2019/20

The following table summarises the more significant specific grants to be received by
the council in 2019/20:

Table 6
Estimated
Grant Allocation 2019/20 Description

£m
Better Care The Better Care Fund is a pooled budget to help

26.3 , . , :
Fund improve the integration of health and care services.
Public 66.6 Ring fenced funding only able to be spent in
Health ’ accordance with the conditions of the grant.

Page 51



4.6 Reserves

The latest reserves positon agreed by Cabinet is shown in Table 7 and this includes
the impact of the forecast revenue underspend.

Table 7
2018/19 2018-19
Opening 2018/19 transfers Transfers F23r1e8cI;sgt 2019/20 2020/21 Tgtta;f S
Reserve Name Balance Forecast to / from from . Forecast | Forecast
: Closing March
2018/19 Expenditure other revenue B Spend Spend
alance 2021
reserves budget
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
County Fund 23.437 0.000 0.000 0.000 23.437 0.000 0.000 | -23.437
ﬁgﬁ‘g OTAL -COUNTY | 53437 0.000 0.000 0.000 23437 | 0.000 0.000 | -23.437
Strategic Investment -3.765 0.740 1.679 0.000 -1.346 0.350 0.850 -0.146
Reserve
Downsizing Reserve -13.891 3.346 5.941 0.000 -4.604 4.605 0.000 0.000
Risk Management -5.402 3.267 -0.688 0.000 -2.823 1.204 0.800 | -0.800
Reserve
Transitional Reserve -155.066 41.555 14.735 11.025 | -139.271 | 0.437 0.194 | -138.640
Service Reserves -19.118 6.563 7.804 0.000 4.752 3.057 0.762 10.932
Treasury Management -10.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -10.000 0.000 0.000 | -10.000
Reserve
SUB TOTAL - LCC
RESERVES .207.243 55.471 0.000 11.025 | -162.796 | 9.672 2.606 | -150.518
Schools/Non-LCC -16.521 1.647 0.000 0.000 14874 | 0823 | -0.823 | -16.520
Service Reserves
SUB TOTAL
SCHOOLS/NON LCC -16.521 1.647 0.000 0.000 14.874 | -0.823 -0.823 | -16.520
RESERVES
GRAND TOTAL -247.201 57.118 0.000 -11.025 | -201.108 | 8.849 1.783 | -190.475
Table 8

Transitional Reserve 2019/20 [ 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23
Opening Balance 139.271 | 128.589 98.025 62.137
Gap funding 10.245 30.370 35.888 47.326
Commitments 0.437 0.194 0.000 0.000
Closing balance 128.589 ( 98.025| 62.137 14.811

Page 52




The county fund shown at the top of table 7 is the balance set aside to cover the
authority against a serious emergency situation (e.g. widespread flooding); a critical
and unexpected loss of income to the authority and for general cash flow purposes. In
considering these various factors the county council is forecast to maintain its County
Fund balance at £23.437m.

The value of the uncommitted transitional reserve is currently forecast to be
£138.640m by the end of March 2021 providing there is no requirement for structural
funding support from reserves to the 2019/20 or 2020/21 budgets. This includes the
2018/19 forecast revenue underspend of £8.462m.

The transitional reserve is forecast to be sufficient to meet the identified funding gaps

through to 2022/23 as set out in table 8. However, the intention is to identify further
savings to reduce the gap, and hence the call on reserves, for 2020/21 and beyond.

5. The Overall Revenue Budget Position for 2019/20
5.1 Summary of cabinet's revenue budget proposals

The overall impact of the cabinet's recommendations to full council for the 2019/20
revenue budget and the potential changes are set out in Table 9.

The table reflects the following:

e impact of further cost pressures;

e changes in the level of resources that are currently known;

e the cabinet's recommendation of a council tax increase of 3.99% in 2019/20;
e the anticipated use of one-off resources in 2019/20; and

e the provision of estimated figures by the city and borough councils in respect of
council tax base and business rates income.

Page 53



Table 9

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Forecast net budget 5 111 41 242.9
requirement 807.33 795. 804.130 835.636 | 3, .208
Funding 792.722 780.931 798.502 823.963 | 3,196.118
Spending Gap as
reported to Cabinet 14.610 14.180 5.628 11.673 46.090
(Quarter 2)
Add change to forecast of
spending:
Pay & Pensions 0.473 0.238 0.044 0.259 1.014
Inflation and Cost 2.968 0555| -0.037 0.047|  3.533
Changes
Service Demand and 0320| -0684| -0178| -0603| -1.136
Volume Pressures
Other 0.135 -1.958 0.000 0.000 -1.823
Savings Adjustments 0.357 -0.320 0.000 0.000 0.037
Total Change to 4.262 2169| -0171| -0.297 1.625
Forecast of Spending
Change to forecast of
resources:
Funding -5.426 4.919 0.000 0.000 -0.507
e -5.426 4.919 0.000 0.000| -0.507
Forecast of Resources
Revised Funding Gap
H th
reported to Cabinet 7 13.446 |  16.930 5457 | 11.376| 47.209
February 2019
(Quarter 3)
Funding Update -4.129 4123 0.061 0.062 0.117
Expenditure Update 0.928 -0.928 0.000 0.000 0.000
Revised Funding Gap 10.245 20.125 5.518 11.438 47.326

Page 54




5.2 Revenue Budgets for Services in 2019/20

The budget outlined below results in a net revenue budget of £802.275m. The budget
by service is summarised below:

Table 10
Revenue Budget 2019/20 Net Budget
£m
Adult Services 343.054
Chief Executive Services 28.990
Children's Social Care 143.820
Corporate Services 18.954
Education and Skills 27.879
Finance Services 38.073
Growth, Environment and Planning 3.940
Waste Management 65.995
Highways and Transport 57.998
Public Health and Wellbeing 23.440
Strategy and Performance 33.615
Sub-Total 785.758
Financing Charges 26.762
Use of one off resources -10.245
Revenue budget 2019/20 802.275

Page 55



6. The Capital Delivery Programme
This section of the report sets out the following:
e an outline of the 2019/20 capital delivery programme including known projects; and

e summary of the proposed funding of the 2019/20 capital delivery programme and
the revenue implications of the increased use of prudential borrowing.

6.1 Capital Delivery Programme for 2019/20

Table 11 below details a summary of the proposed capital delivery programme for
2019/20 of £130.289m. The proposed 2019/20 delivery programme will include the
provision to complete works already in the programme and the addition of projects
identified for utilising the updated capital grant funding for 2019/20.

The proposed delivery programme is broadly similar in scale to the forecast outturn
for 2018/19 and may need to be updated when the actual outturn position is confirmed
to reflect any re-profiling impact on 2019/20 that may be required.

Table 11
Initial

indicative
Programme programme

subject to

profiling

£m

Schools (excl DFC) 21.859
Schools DFC 2.527
Children & Young People 0.027
Highways 46.776
Transport 30.128
Externally Funded schemes 0.111
Waste & Other 0.190
Adult Social Care 13.654
Corporate 11.297
Vehicles 3.720
Total 130.289

Page 56



6.2 Proposed Funding

The capital delivery programme is currently funded by a variety of funding streams as
shown in table 12 below:

Table 12
Initial Funded by
T indicative Funded Funded Contributions
programme by _ by Grant lOtI'_ler
subject to | borrowing funding
profiling sources
£m £m £m £m
Schools (excl DFC) 21.859 0.000 21.859 0.000
Schools DFC 2.527 0.000 2.527 0.000
Shildren & Young 0.027 0.027 0.000 0.000
eople
Highways 46.776 16.190 26.037 4.549
Transport 30.128 3.500 23.907 2.721
Externally Funded 0.111 0.000 0.000 0.111
schemes
Waste & Other 0.190 0.190 0.000 0.000
Adult Social Care 13.654 0.000 13.654 0.000
Corporate 11.297 11.297 0.000 0.000
Vehicles 3.720 3.720 0.000 0.000
Total 130.289 34.924 87.984 7.381

Table 13 identifies the revenue budget for financing charges as reflected within the
medium term financial strategy:

Table 13
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£m £m £m

Minimum Revenue Provision 14.936 16.316 17.209
Interest Paid 24.410 24.407 24.505
Interest Earned -12.384 -12.372 -12.384
Grants Received -0.200 -0.180 -0.160
Total 26.762 28.171 29.170

The revenue budget above reflects a position which takes account of the views of both
internal and external advisers, particularly in relation to interest rate movements.
Provision has also been made for changing some of the borrowing to a long term fixed
rate rather than the existing short term rates in 2020/21.

Page 57




The position will be closely monitored by the Director of Finance and any changes will
be reflected in forecasts presented to cabinet.

7. Council Tax for 2019/20
The recommendation of the cabinet to full council on the council tax requirement is

that the band D council tax for 2019/20 be increased by 3.99% which includes the 1%
social care precept. The impact of these increases are:

Table 14
Band D Council Council Tax
Tax income
?&ult Social Care Precept increase at £12.95 £4.750m
General Council Tax increase at 2.99% £38.72 £14.202m

The overall position is summarised as follows:

Table 15
£m

Budget Requirement 802.275
Less Business Rates 230.657
Less Business Rates — Additional Levy 2.860
Less Business Rates — Pilot growth 2.886
Less New Homes Bonus 3.579
Less Improved Better Care Fund 45.532
Less Capital receipts 8.000
Less Social Care Grant 9.427
Less Collection Fund Surplus 5.436
Equals council tax cash 493.898
Divided by tax base 366,777.14
Gives Band D council tax for 2019/20 1,346.59
2018/19 council tax 1,294.92
Percentage increase 3.99%

Page 58



8. The Robustness of the Budget and the Adequacy of Reserves

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires that, in giving consideration to
budget proposals, Members must have regard to the advice of the Council's Chief
Finance Officer (in the case of the county council the Chief Executive and Director of
Resources) on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the council's
reserves.

Robustness of the Estimates

This section is concerned with the scale of financial risks faced by the council as a
result of the estimates and assumptions which support any budget. The basis of the
estimates on which the budget has been prepared, as in previous years, relies on the
forecast of activity and the impact of changes in policy previously agreed by the
council. These forecasts are kept under review as part of the budget monitoring
process and actions identified to address financial risks arising from changes in the
forecast as they occur.

The table below demonstrates the scale of just a small variance in the assumptions
made, showing the potential impact of both a positive and negative movement of 1%
across the main areas within the MTFS and the potential impact of a further 0.25%
variation on interest rates:

Potential Full-Year Impact

(Em)
Funding (1%) +/- 4.955
Pay (1%) +/- 2.551
Price Inflation (1%) +/- 5.574
Demand (1%) +/- 5.969
Interest Rates (0.25%) +/- 1.250

A number of specific risks remain within the budget as follows:
e Government Funding

The council did not take up the offer in 2016 of a multi-year finance settlement covering
revenue support grant, rural services delivery grant and transitional grant. Revenue
support grant is expected to formally end in 2019/20 and the impact on the council of
the Business Rate Retention Scheme and Fair Funding Review from 2020/21 is not
yet known. For the purpose of the budget and MTFS a neutral position has been
assumed including no revenue support grant from 2019/20 and will be updated when
further information is known. Following the successful bid by Lancashire to be a 75%
business rates pilot for 2019/20 the county council will no longer receive RSG and the
equivalent amount that is expected has been built into the business rates pilot
workings.

Additional funding was announced for both adult social care and children's services,
with the county council receiving an additional £15m. This was however announced

Page 59



as one-off funding, although as part of the MTFS it has been assumed that this funding
will continue due to demand pressures that councils are facing. There was no
additional funding announced to support the new pay spine for local government
workers and these additional cost pressures have been included in the strategy.

The final settlement has confirmed the council's scope to increase council tax by an
additional 1% in 2019/20 on the grounds that it keeps pace with inflation, CPI is
currently running at 3%. Adult social care precept arrangements also remain
unchanged for councils, with adult social care responsibilities able to add up to a 3%
increase in council tax up to a maximum of 6% over the period 2017/18 to 2019/20.
These flexibilities are included in the strategy as part of this report.

e Service Demand

This is a key risk facing the council in both preparing future budgets and managing
budgets during the year. As reported in the budget monitoring reports presented to
cabinet over the year, demand for both adult and children's social care services and
waste services continue to see increases despite the impact of demand management
measures and additional funds being built into the budget to reflect forecast pressures.

Over the period 2019/20 to 2022/23 £75m has been provided in the MTFS for demand
pressures of which £50.5m relates to adult social care and £14.0m children's social
care. These have been identified based on current and historical trends and population
projections where appropriate (particularly linked to the ageing population in respect
of adult social care). Whilst for adult social care the estimates are based on
assumptions that have previously been a reasonable prediction of demand, during the
current financial year significant and unanticipated increased costs in relation to
children's social care have occurred and have been reported to cabinet in
revenue monitoring reports.

Detailed work continues to be undertaken focused on a better understanding of the
causes of increasing demand and what steps can be taken to mitigate the financial
impact, which along with grant funding reductions, is a major contributing factor
towards the funding gap reported in the MTFS.

o Pay

The majority of the pay bill is driven by the national pay agreement and the
announcement of a new pay spine represents a significant additional cost pressure
reflected in the updated MTFS. The county council also remains committed to paying
its employees as an accredited member of the Living Wage Foundation who have
announced a 2.86% increase in the living wage. The impact of this initial increase and
further 3.00% (2020/21) and 2.90% (2021/22 & 2022/23) increases in subsequent
years for those staff directly impacted has been factored into the MTFS.

e Inflation
The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the Bank of England has been set an

inflation target by the Government of 2% as measured by Consumer Prices Index
(CPI). The CPI has been above this level since early 2017 increasing to 3.1% in

Page 60



November 2017. However, the rate has fallen since then with the November 2018 rate
being 2.3%. The Bank of England anticipate that inflation will be within target in the
medium term.

Provision made within the budget is limited to areas where the council has no choice
but to pay increased prices e.g. due to contractual terms. The inflation forecasts used
in recent years are based on the future level of inflation implied by yields on interest
linked gilts. Historically, this has tended to give a more accurate forecast than the
methodology previously used. It is anticipated that the continued use of this
methodology will reduce the risk of needing to make catch up additions to the budget
for "missed" inflation or the need to absorb additional inflationary costs in year.

A particularly significant area is the care market, primarily residential, nursing and
homecare, the funding of which is recognised as a significant issue regionally and
nationally. A significant amount of resource has been included within the MTFS to
fund price increases and the estimated impact of the national living wage on care
providers.

¢ Interest Rates

In August 2018 the MPC raised the base rate by 0.25% to 0.75%. This followed a
previous increase in November 2017 which was the first increase in a decade.

Despite this increase the base rate continues to be at historically low levels and the
Bank of England has maintained expectations for slow and steady rate rises in line
with the performance of the economy. The county council's treasury advisors predict
two more 0.25% rises during 2019 to take official UK interest rates to 1.25%.

e Savings Programme Delivery

The council is committed to the delivery of a significant savings programme (c£120m
over the period 2019/20 to 2022/23) including c£77m of new savings already agreed
by cabinet in December. There are inherent risks with saving plans of this scale and
scope and any significant under-delivery of agreed savings will further increase the
funding gap. This has been identified as one of the highest level risks in the council's
Risk and Opportunity Register and there are comprehensive arrangements in place to
track delivery of financial savings and take corrective actions as required.

Adequacy of Reserves
The council holds reserves for a number of reasons:
e to enable the council to deal with unexpected events such as flooding or the
destruction of a major asset through fire;
e to enable the council to manage variations in the demand for services which
cause in year budget pressures; and

e to fund specific projects or identified demands on the budget.

There is no 'right' answer to the question of the appropriate level of reserves for a local
authority; this is a matter of judgement taking into account:

Page 61



e the level of risk evident within the budget as set out above;

e ajudgement on the effectiveness of budgetary control within the organisation;
and

e the degree to which funds have already been set aside for specific purposes
which will reduce the need for general reserves.

In relation to the council's general reserve (County Fund Balance), the forecast level
at 31 March 2019 is £23.437m. In addition the council continues to hold £10m as a
formal treasury management reserve to reflect that, whilst the council's treasury
management performance (covering both investment activity and financing costs) has
been positive over an extended period, the outlook post-Brexit is particularly uncertain
and volatile. The reserve is there to hedge against that volatility, including interest rate
changes and associated risks over the short-term, without directly impacting the
revenue account.

The revenue budget has been heavily supported in recent years by the reserves that
have been available to the county council and their value has therefore reduced
significantly. The value of the council's uncommitted transitional reserve by the end
of the financial year is currently forecast to be £139.271m, including the 2018/19
forecast underspend.

The level of risk evident within the budget has been significant in recent years and
remains so at a time when it is clear that the revenue budget for 2019/20 will also need
to be supported by reserves. The council acknowledges that it needs to move to a
sustainable financial position and also that this will take time to implement. The
transitional reserve allows decisions to be made in a more measured and considered
way but does not itself negate the need for a sustainable budget to be achieved. While
the council's budgetary control procedures are strong in terms of managing in year
expenditure, the effectiveness of budgetary control is a combination of systems and
processes as well as the risk environment within which the council is operating. It
therefore remains an essential requirement that the council continues to ensure that
processes are effective in maintaining a grip on in year expenditure and also that there
is a clear focus on delivering a balanced and sustainable budget.

As part of the MTFS report, scenario analysis and stress tests of the current financial
gap and reserves position have been undertaken. A key scenario that has been tested
relates to the savings that require consultation prior to implementation which total
£7.529m (£2.150m 2019/20, £5.329m 2020/21 and £0.050m 2021/22). Should cabinet
ultimately not agree to any of these savings being implemented post consultation, then
there would be sufficient reserves to support the budget until part way through
2022/23.

Overall, the council has an appropriate level of reserves available to manage the
financial risks it is facing from 2019/20 to 2022/23. However, despite the identification
of further savings through the service challenge process of c£77m it is necessary that
additional savings are identified to be delivered to bring the council to a financially
sustainable position. Any utilisation of remaining reserves should support, wherever
possible, activities which reduce ongoing revenue costs.

Page 62



Conclusion

There has been a significant focus nationally on the financial resilience of councils and
one of the key areas of concern has been the utilisation of reserves in supporting
budgets and the levels of reserves remaining. A key indicator identified by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in flagging up potential
issues is the level of reserves used by a council to meet any funding shortfall in setting
the budget compared to the average level of reserves used to fund any structural
deficit over the previous 3 financial years. The average over the last 3 years in
Lancashire has been c£40m and the proposed use of £10.245m for 2019/20
represents a significant improvement in this regard. This follows strong financial
control during the current financial year as evidenced by the forecast revenue
underspend which will enable a transfer into reserves and c£77m of further budget
proposals being identified. However, this is clearly dependent on all the agreed
service challenge savings being agreed and delivered fully within the timeframes
identified, along with the other savings agreed in previous budget cycles. Should any
of these budget options ultimately not be taken forward they will need to be replaced
with alternative savings to avoid increasing the size of the financial gap.

Page 63



Page 64



Appendix B

Full Council — February 2019
Budget Consultation Responses




County Councillor Geoff Driver Phone:

Leader Fax:
Lancashire County Council Email
PO Box 78 )
County Hall
Preston PR1 8XJ Your ref:
Ourref:  SFICG
Date: 18" January 2019

Dear Councillor Driver
Consultation on the County Council's budget options for 2019/20

I would like to thank you for the opportunity to comment on Lancashire County Council's
budget proposals,

[ recognise the significant funding issues the County Council faces in 2019/20 and future
years and understand that you face some very difficult decisions as you determine the
services you will provide to the people of Lancashire. | continue to seek savings in my own
budget and would therefore request that we engage in a collaborative dialogue in respect of
the services that we have some cross-over in responsibility to examine the opportunities
that exist to drive out value for money.

| am concerned that the level of savings you are required to make will have enormous
consequences not just for the citizens of Lancashire but will of course impact upon the
resources of the Constabulary as the service of first and last resort. It is inevitable that as
the support you are able to provide the more vulnerable members of our communities is
reduced due to the drastic cuts to your funding there will inevitably be an increase in the
numbers of people suffering crisis which will, in turn, require support from the policing
service,

| am keen to ensure that wherever possible we work together to ensure we can previde
services in the most efficient way possible and seek to engage together in areas such as
mental health, community safety partnerships and child protection services and suggest
that we continue to seek opportunities for collaboration in the delivery of services in such
areas.

I would also like to suggest that we look to work together in other areas where we might
achieve increased value for money such as the use of property and assets and the
provision of support services as improved efficiency in these areas can free up much
needed resource to our respective front line services,

I would like to highlight a specific savings proposal included in the consultation document,
the SC610 - Lancashire Wellbeing Service.

Page 66



The saving proposal is to cease the provision of the Wellbeing Service and the paper
recognises that there will be a direct impact on other services both within LCC and for
external organisations. | can confirm that Lancashire Volunteer Partnership (LVP), in which
both of our organisations take significant roles, forecasts a significant increase in demand
placed directly upon it as a result of this propoesal. This in itself is a cause for concern as the
most vulnerable people that use the Wellbeing service may be left without support if LVP
doesn't have the capacity to support them.

The saving proposal also recognises that there will be an increase in demand for social
care services at LCC for a number of people that would have previously been diverted from
social care through the work of the Wellbeing service. The saving proposal indicates that
this demand could generate additional social care cost at a level as much as £650,000 per
annum.

Discussions with colleagues at LVP have suggested that investment of considerably less
than £650,000 per year could provide a service to meet a significant amount of the demand
atising from the closure of the Wellbeing Service and divert individuals from social care.

They suggest 1 Supervisor and 9 Volunteer Officers to cover the entire County and
supplement what LVP already deliver. The cost of this would be in the region of £350k. It
is estimated that each Volunteer Officer could carry a caseload of 30 referrals at any one
time which would likely result in 60 per annum, this would see overall the opportunity to fulfil
a further 540 referrals per year.

This opportunity would need further development and discussion between LCC and LVP
colleagues to determine if it could deliver a similar (or possibly greater) financial saving
whilst ensuring a better outcomes than would be the case if the saving is developed as
proposed.

| welcome your view on the opportunity that may exist in this instance and your
consideration of taking an altermnative approach in the replacement of the Wellbeing Service.

| am aware that the specific design of a number of the budget options you have identified is
on-going and | would ask that you would engage with myself, my office and the
Constabulary at every opportunity where our services have impact or cross over to allow us
to contribute fully to the design of new services in the future.

I look forward to having the opportunity to comment further as the options you identify move
forward and that together we can work towards the provision of quality services to the

people of Lancashire.

Yours sincerely

Page 67



21* January 2019
Ref; street parking charges
To Whom it may concern,

| am writing to let you know ry opinion on charging to park on the streets in
Colne.

| am a frequent shopper in Colne and park on the street to pop into the shops,
bank and cafes. If | am staying any length of time, | am happy to park on the
car parks provided, but more often than not | am in and out within a short
time.. Colne is a small town, all the shops are occupied and the centre is
quite lively, but | can see this changing if charges for street parking is
implemented. Friends of mine call in to the shops on the way home from
work, again this would cease if they had to find the change, a machine and
pay to pop in to a shop for 5-10 minutes.

Our shopkeepers work hard and in this day and age of online shopping and
retail parks they are doing a magnificent job.

Please do not make our town centre like so many, with empty shops and a
derelict look.

.--pq’mm-ﬁ#mmﬁ-.-'-='\>'“i\’.‘.‘"-"-‘¢k"'l“-w?r=.- FRE N A a1 8 £ L g

Page 68



21/01/2019
To whom it may concern,

| am writing to express my deep concern for the plans to add charges for on
street parking in Colne Town Centre.

Frun several community groups where parking and access is from the main
road in Colne, these include a knitting and stitching community group; the

group and the Playgroup. All these groups
are accessed by people who park on and around Church St., and Market St., i
Colne. There is rarely difficulty parking; there are on street spaces and nearby
parking in Car Rarks both of which are vital for people trying to access the
community services we provide. Many of our users are vulnerable elderly or
young families who would find accessing our groups difficult if they have to
park further away or bear the burden of additional costs.

wmsene SME hIBR StreEEIs Unusual in that 1t continues 5o 40 wWell despie SEVEIAL... e
superstores opening in and around Colne. Adding cost and inconvenience for

parking risks driving people from our high street and will be of detriment to all

local shops and services, Please do not charge for car parks or on street parking

in Colne.

Yours Sincerely,

Page 69



21 January 2018

23 JAN 23y

Dear
I write 1o you with regards to Homewise, the registered charity based in Accrington.

I have been made aware that Lancashire Cou nly Council plan to end their contract with Homewise
under the new budget propasals, which approve the cessation of the county council’s Integrated
Home Improvement Setvice contracts,

Homewise carry out vital wark throughout Hyndburn and the Ribble Valley, assisting thousands of
local residents who are vulnerable, eideriv or disabled wih home repairs, adaptions and
maintenance. - Without their help (fumniture
adjustments and aids), she would not have been able to comes home.

Nationwide, council social services departmants are under extrame financial and practical
pressures. However, & present, Homewise's services enabie people to remain living at home
independently, thus alleviating a significant burden from Lancashire County Council's social
services department. With the county councll planning to end their contract with the charity, the
sustainabifity of Homewise Is under severe threat. Not anly does this threaten the quality of fife and
independence of some of our most vulnerable resigents, if the charity were to be forced o close, it
would also place a much grester strain upon the council's already stretched resources.

| am exiremely concerned ang encourage you to re-evaluate this decision, as it will have 2
detrimental impact to thousands of residents across Hyndbum and the Ribble Valley, Thank you
for your assistance and | look forward to hearing from you.

Yours sincerely

Page 70



BY EMAIL
25 January 2019

Dear County Councillor

We are writing to you about the effects of the current proposal by Lancashire County Council
to reduce and then end the funding for the ‘Integrated Home Improvement Service’, which is
well targeted, practical housing help that we deliver to older and vulnerable people across the
County.

We fully appreciate the very difficult financial situation faced by Lancashire County Council,
but the current proposal not only puts lives at risk, it will result in higher costs to the council, for
example through increased need for residential care; it will also increase demand - and
therefore costs - for Lancashire’s health services.

Independent evidence' shows that falls prevention is one of the main outcomes of the home
modifications that we carry out. Preventing a fall for just 1% of the people we heip (a highly
conservative estimate) results in savings to health and social care of £891,218. This saving is more than
the entire budget for the Integrated Home Improvement Service across Lancashire and is just one small
part of the many outcomes and savings we achieve,

Further to this it has been demonstrated that for every £1 spent on handyperson services, £4.28 is saved
by health and social care. Based on these figures, investing in the Integrated Home Improvement
Service creates a return on investment of £3,766,400 to health and social care in Lancashire,

Source: Small but Significant (2018) an independent evaluation of a Lancashire handyperson service.

The home adaptations and essential home repairs that we carry out in the homes of older and
vulnerable people increases the time that they are able to live safely and well at home. Last
year we helped 44,364 older and vulnerable people, giving advice and practical help to enable
them to live independently in their own homes for longer,

The funding reduction proposal of £880,000 pa from 2020 is the annual cost of just 29 residential care
Places, compared with providing preventative housing help for almost 43,000 local people.

We reach people who no-one else reaches, those for whom just a little bit of help makes all
the difference, helping carers, the isolated, the lonely, people with dementia, and improving
the homes and lives of so many vulnerable people. Our services are also exceptionally highly
valued by those who use them.

Nearly half of those helped by the handyperson service are over 80yrs (46%), older women (77%),
living alone (72%) often living with chronic long-term heaith conditions and disability. 96% said that
the service made them less worried about their home. 100% would recommend it to others.”

Source: Small but Significant (2018) an independent evaluation of a Lancashire handyperson service.

! Described in Appendix A based on research by the Centre for Ageing Better, Public Health England and the
Building Research Establishment, amongst others

Page 71



This is why we are urging you to do whatever you can as a Lancashire County Councillor to
rethink and overturn this proposal which would end something so valued by your constituents
and by local partners.

Lancashire County Council has been an innovative and forward-thinking authority in terms of
its approach to integration and prevention.

As local, not for profit providers of practical, preventative services for very many years, we
have worked constructively with the Council to evolve and change to meet its requirements
and the needs of local communities. We have also achieved significant added value by
bringing other resources into the county, for example through securing national charitable
funding, and through harnessing input from volunteers. The Integrated Home Improvement
Service is now:

¢ Preventing falls/accidents in the home

+ Making homes more accessible

¢ Improving home security

« Completing small repairs

¢ Making homes warmer and more energy efficient

Decommissioning so much of the Integrated Home Improvement Service (described further in
Appendix A) would be such a backward step from this constructive joint development of
preventative, crucial housing related help.

In Lancashire County Council's recently published strategy document ‘Care, Support and
Wellbeing of Adults in Lancashire' it talks about a vision for "keeping people safe, well and
connected” and “keeping people independent and living at home”. It notes that “admissions to
care homes are foo high" and "we can no longer afford to provide fong term/high cost
packages of care” and “as a system we need to focus more on prevention and wellbeing'.

Additionally, Lancashire County Council has identified “supporting independent living" as one
of its six key actions in the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

And yet the Coungil is now considering a proposal to cut a key preventative service that
enables exactly this outcome.

As a Gounty Councillor and representative of your local community, we urge you to protect the
Integrated Home Improvement Service and to ask you to vote against the proposal to reduce
and end funding for this important, preventative service for the benefit of older and vulnerable
pecple across Lancashire,

Yours sincerely,

Page 72



APPENDIX A: Further information about the impact of Lancashire
County Council’s budget proposals.

As you may already be aware, the Integrated Home Improvement Service is a Lancashire-
wide prevention and early intervention service that helps older, disabled and vulnerable adults
to live safely and independently in their own hoemes. You may have heard these services
referred to as "Care and Repair’ or "HIA’ (Home Improvement Agency) services.

They include:

* Handyperson Service

¢ Healthy Homes Assessments

Casework, including help to access additional funding & support schemes
Housing Options Advice & Information

Miner Adaptations (work under £1000) — stafutory service

Supply and fit of aids for daily living (such as grab rails) — statutory service
Assistance with Major Works & Adaptations (over £1,000)

Support to access Disabled Facilties Grants

Help to find trusted tradespeople

+ Affordable Warmth Schemes

® & & » e =

The Integrated Home Improvement Service is currently contracted by Lancashire County
Council to six not-for-profit organisations, all based in Lancashire. Each of us has been
providing support to our local communities for decades and we have built up a wealth of
experience and expertise in our teams. We are trusted by our clients and respected by our
peers and partners.

Last year we helped 44,364 older and vulnerable people, giving advice and practical help to
enable them to live independently in their own homes for longer. The most common outcomes
achieved through our services were:

s Preventing falls/accidents in the home
» Making homes more accessible
¢ Improving home security
Completing small repairs
+ Making homes warmer and more energy efficient

Which in turn:

» Improve client wellbeing — physically and mentally; clients better able to cope at home
and live independently

» Reduce the need for social care services including residential care and home care

* Reduce GP visits

o Reduce A&E visits

* Reduce unplanned hospital admissions

Page 73



* Enable timely discharges from hospitals

In budget proposals set out in November 2018, Lancashire County Council proposes to
reduce the funding for the Integrated Home Improvement Service by 25% from April 2019 and
then completely decommission all non-statutory elements of the service from April 2020. The
proposal cites that this will create savings of £880,000 per year from 2020.

However, reducing and then decommissioning the service will cost Lancashire County Council
more in terms of the additional demands it will place on Adult Social Care: and there will be
the additional costs this decision will also place on partners across the wider health economy
due to an increase demand on their services.

In an independent report commissioned by The Rayne Foundation and The Quality of Life
Charitable Trust, produced by Care & Repair England titled: ‘Small But Significant: Evidence
of impact and cost benefits of handyperson services’ (enclosed), it was demonstrated that for
every £1 spent on handyperson services £4.28 Is saved by health and social care. This report
used Preston Care & Repair — one of the providers of the Lancashire Integrated Home
Improvement Service — as the basis for its research. Based on these figures, investing in the
Integrated Home Improvement Service will create a return on investment of £3,766,400 to
health and social care in Lancashire.

Also in the report, the BRE (Building Research Establishment) Housing Health Cost Calculator
puts the year one treatment costs of falls to health and social care services at:

+ Serious fall injury - £39,906
* Moderate fall injury - £6,464
¢ Minor fall injury - £1,545

In 2018, as providers of the Integrated Home Improvement Service, we completed 1868 jobs
specifically targeted at falls prevention — approximately 10% of all the work completed. If we
prevented serious, moderate and minor falls in just 1% of cases, the year 1 treatment cost
savings to health and social care would be £891,218. That is more than the entire budget for
the Integrated Home Improvement Service across Lancashire; and that is just based on one
small element of the outcomes we achieve.

The financial impacts of the budget proposals relating to the Integrated Home Improvement
Service will be significant and will far outweigh any ‘savings'; it would be financially detrimental
to Lancashire County Council, and to its partners in health, to remove funding this important,
preventative service at a time when health and social care services in Lancashire are
struggling to cope with existing demands. Reducing or decommissioning the Integrated Home
Improvement Service would increase demands on both health and social care.

As not-for-profit providers, all funding received by our organisations is used to deliver services
and suppeort to local people. Not a penny leaves our organisations in profit or shareholder
dividends. Although we are separate organisations, as home improvement agencies, we share
a collective vision and values. Everything we do has our clients at the heart and is
underpinned by a commitment to provide the best possible support to help people to stay safe

Page 74



and independent in their own homes, preventing or reducing the need for other health and
social care services.

When we talk about what we deliver through the Integrated Home Improvement Service we
often find ourselves using the phrase ‘it's not just what we do, it’s also the way that we do it’
Let us give you just one example:

is in her late 80s and has lived on her own in ber family home ever since her husband
died several years ago. The Home Improvement Service has carried out a number of small
Jjobs in her home that reduce risk of injury, e.g. power-washing a slippery path from her front
door to her bins.

mentioned to the Technician that she'd had several falls at the front door, which
happened as she bent down to pick up her milk, saying that the last fall had been worse than
the others, leaving her bruised, feeling vulnerable and worried about bein g able to cope fiving
on her own. The Technician offered to put up a shelf at the front door for the milk fo go on so
she no longer had to bend fo the floor. The work was completed there and then and
has not had another fall.

Technicians working on the Integrated Home Improvement Service are not only exceptional
tradespeople, but they also take the time to get to know clients, to look for preventable risks
around the home and to engage in conversations that will enable clients to share their worries
about living safely at home. Another tradesperson, without this specialist training and
knowledge, would have power-washed the path, but wouldn’t have even known about the
need for the milk shelf. The cost of the shelf was just a few pounds in materials, but it

prevented further falls for , one of which would likely have resulted in a more serious
injury and the need for significant input from health and social care services, costing
thousands of pounds. immediately felt safer in her own home and felt better able to

manage on her own — that peace of mind for her and her loved ones is priceless.

There is an ageing population in Lancashire. Current estimates from Lancashire's JSNA
Demographic Dashboard state that there are 240,474 people aged 65+ in Lancashire, with
30,834 aged 85+. The 2011 Census showed that Lancashire had 65,880 people aged 65+
living alone. Mrs A is just one example, there are many thousands like her across Lancashire
living in your local community who will be impacted should these proposed cuts come into
force. They will lose access to a trusted service that enables them to live safely and
independently at home. They will lose the reassurance and peace of mind of having access to
support that improves their wellbeing and enables them to cope in their own home.

The Integrated Home Improvement Service is a preventative service, helping to keep people
safe and independent at home and reducing the need for the long term/high cost packages
identified by Lancashire County Council in its own report. Withdrawing funding from the
Integrated Home Improvement Service will undermine the Adult Social Care Strategy and the
Health and Wellbeing Strategy and hinder successful delivery of both.

Page 75



Enclosed Documents:

About the Integrated Home Improvement Service

Case Studies and Quotes

Small But Significant and Integration in Action Brochures

Information from your local Integrated Home Improvement Service provider

Page 76



About the Integrated Home Improvement Service in Lancashire

1. Background:

The Integrated Home Improvement Service was established by Lancashire County Coungil
in 2015 to provide a more integrated approach to delivering key services to support
independent living for older people, people living with physical disabilities and people living
with complex, long term health conditions. Before the Integrated Home Improvement
Service, funding for Home Improvement Agencies (HIA) came from Supporting People
Funding.

The Integrated Home Improvement contract broadly falls into two areas:

1. Minor Aids & Adaptations - works under £1,000 including bannister rails, external
rails, step adaptations and ramps and the provision of simple aids for daily living
through Lancashire County Council's ‘Retail Model’; this includes the supply and
fitting of grab rails. This is a statutory service.

2. Home Improvement Services — range of services and support to enable people to
live safely and independently including: Handyperson Service, Healthy Home
Assessments and what are referred to as ‘core services’ which include helping
people to find trusted contractors, supporting people to have major repairs and
adaptations completed at their property (including support to apply for a Disabled
Facilities Grant), casework, housing options advice and information and energy
efficiency advice and support. These are non-statutory services and are the main
subject of the budget proposals.

These individual service elements are targeted to support some of the most vulnerable
people living in our local communities with an overarching aim to provide timely support that
will achieve the following over-arching service objectives:

» Enable people to live safely and independently at home for as long as possible

* Prevent or delay admission to residential care; and/or reduce demand for other types
of social care interventions

 Prevent falls/accidents in the home to reduce A&E visits and unplanned hospital
admissions

+ Enable timely and safe hospital discharge

The Integrated Home Improvement Service is currently contracted to six not-for-profit
organisations across Lancashire who deliver support and services to enable older and
vulnerable people to live safely and independently in their own homes. These providers are:

Page 1of 4

Page 77



Provider |:Districts Covered . . . ..

Care & Repair Wyre & Fylde) Fylde, Wyre

Chorley Borough Council Home Chorley

Improvement Agency*

Homewise Society** Hyndburn, Ribble Valley

MSV (Mosscare St Vincent's)** Burnley, Pendle, Rossendale

Preston Care & Repair* Chorley, Preston, South Ribble, West Lancashire

” Preston Care & Repair delivers the Handyperson Service in Chorley in partnership with Chorley Barough Couneil.
"*Homewise Society and MSV work in partnership to deliver [HIS services collaboratively across East Lancashire.

2. Integrated Home Improvement Service in Action:

The Integrated Home Improvement Service is focussed on providing prevention and early
intervention support that helps older, disabled and vulnerable adults to live safely and
independently in their own homes. You may have heard these services referred to as ‘Care
and Repair' or 'HIA' (Home Improvement Agency) services. They include:

¢ Handyperson Service

¢ Healthy Homes Assessments

e Casework, including help to access additional funding & support schemes
o Housing Options Advice & Information

» Minor Adaptations (work under £1000) —~ sfatutory service

* Supply and fit of aids for daily living (such as grab rails) — statutory service
¢ Assistance with Major Works & Adaptations (over £1,000)

e Support to access Disabled Facilities Grants

» Help to find trusted tradespeople

e Affordable Warmth Schemes

Last year we helped 44,364 older and vulnerable people, giving advice and practical help to
enable them to live independently in their own homes for longer. The most common types
of werk delivered through the service were:

» Preventing falls/accidents in the home

¢ Making homes more accessible

s Improving home security

e Completing small repairs

e Making homes warmer and more energy efficient
+ Giving advice and Information

Page 2 of 4

Page 78



Which in turn:

Improve client wellbeing ~ physically and mentally; clients better able to cope at
home and five independently

Reduce the need for social care services including residential care and home care
Reduce GP visits

Reduce A&E visits

Reduce unplanned hospital admissions

Enable timely discharges from hospitals

3. Clients:

The Integrated Home Improvement Services supports some of the most vulnerable people
in local communities. Lancashire County Council's eligibility criteria for the service is:

Aged 18 or over and resident in Lancashire and

Have a registered disability and/or diagnosed long term health condition/s that
directly affect their mobility or independence to stay safe in their own home or

When there is an imminent and/or major risk that will lead to the person having an
unscheduled admission to hospital or residential care without intervention or

The service is needed to facilitate a discharge from hospital where it would not be
deemed safe for them to return without intervention

Many clients of the Integrated Home Improvement Service are frail, elderly people who
have little access to other support. The service has become a 'lifeline’ to them and they
often describe it as such in their client feedback.

4. Outcomes of the integrated Home Improvement Service

The Integrated Home Improvement Service has a significant impact on people’s mental and
physical health, on their wellbeing, their independence and on their quality of life.

Outcomes achieved through the Integrated Home Improvement Service include:

Improved wellbeing and quality of life - clients feel better supported and able to cope
at home

Reduced worry and anxiety assoclated with maintaining a home
Extended safe, independent living at home

Page3 of 4

Page 79



* Improved client mental and physical health

o Improved safety and security in the home

+ Reduced need for social care services including residential care and home care
¢ Reduced need for GP visits and on other health professionals’ time

+ Reduced A&E visits

¢ Reduced unplanned hospital admissions

¢ Enabled safe, timely discharges from hospitals

These outcomes are recorded anecdotally through the many comments received by
providers though their feedback mechanisms (see client quotes and case studies for
examples)

As part of the research for the independent report by Care & Repair England into Evidence
of Impact and Cost Benefits of Handyperson Services, data was collected to measure and
demonstrate the outcomes of Handyperson services, which are a key component of the
Integrated Home Improvement Service.

The report found:

o Falls risk was reduced for 37% of the older people using the Integrated Home
Improvement Service Handyperson service

e Improved wellbeing was a key outcome for 90% of clder service users

» 77% of people said that they would not have jobs done if the Handyperson Service
did not exist due to worry about finding a trustworthy builder

¢ Trust was a key factor for clients. It was important to them that the Handyperson
service was delivered by a local, not-for-profit, trustworthy provider to which they had
ready access to i.e. ‘only a phone call away'.

* 48% said they could not afford to have work carried out by a builder (at a commercial
rate)

* 96% of people said that the Handyperson service made them less worried about
their home

¢ 100% of people said that they would use the service again and would recommend it
to others

Perhaps most pertinent to the subject of Lancashire County Council cutting the Integrated
Home Improvement Service, which includes Handyperson services, on the grounds of
making financial savings, the report demonstrates that for every £1 spent on
Handyperson services the saving to health and social care is £4.28 — from falls
reduction alone. (This return on investment calculation does not include many other fiscal
and social gains e.g. improved wellbeing, reduced anxiety, timely hospital discharge etc...)

A full copy and a summary copy of Small But Significant: The Impact and Cost Benefits of
Handyperson Services is included in this briefing pack for your information.

Page4of 4

Page 80



mE 1
‘»fﬁ'—.‘.q‘i

1 t :u.i
TR

B et l..ﬂu.n_q_ il
4 P.P»_.n xu»_!:.lllll

FEinny

H

SEERTEETE

- 5 o
2 ur.nL.n :uﬁ..-.._n

4

e

Sopport

beait  hore s, heaity pespn

pair

‘.Re
Engknd

e Care

Page 81



Author: Sue Adams OBE, CEO of Care & Repair England

Sue Adams is the Chisd Exacative of Care & Repair cnglard. A feilovs of the World Demographic Associztion,

Sue has wiitien exlensively abous bousing and older people, ircuding handyperson services - Taxing the nitialive
(1992} and Small things malter (2006}, She was a member of the advisory commitlee oversesing Lhe evaluatior of
the major government handyperaen initianve in 2012 and is the suthor of a range of relzted reporis, articles and
evaluatiors. indiuding OF the Radar, Silverlings and Housing Options infa & Advice. She vas awsidec sn OBE &t
sarvices 1o alder people's bousirg in 2010,

Acknowledgements

We sre exremely grazelul Lo the Rayne Fourdation wiibout wihnm nore of thiz work woulg have Leen possible,
Thanks are due @ the Praston Cars and Sepair staff, especially Laara Bollare for her paiierce and persavarance
throughout the evaluation, ard the hardypareon team; Rita Newton University of Manchestor 2nd Dr Rachel
for thelr invaliable help with indapenden: data varifcadon and corriments about mathodology; Valerie
Little, retives Birsotor of Public Health, for her cagical thinking ard construcive conunents: ard b the Tudor
Trust, vweho arg suppordng Care & Repzir England’s Catch 22 svidence devalopiment prograreme. Spedial thanks
are doe 1o the older people who gave up their tims to ANl in forins aed be interviswes  they are the inspliration
Urderpinniing this repoet

About Care & Repair England

Cara & 2epalr Englsnd is an indapendent chadtable orgicisston {Registersd Sodesy 2512 7K which aims w0
improve oleer peaple’s bousing, € hehoves thet all older people should have decons ving condifions in a boine of
their ovin choosicg, It innovales. cevelops, prosmoles and suppores practical housing initistives (incleding
inforreaion 2na advics; & related policy and practics whick 2oabile older peaple o fve independently i thair ovn
homes for as lorg 2c they wish, particalarly for older people living i poar or ensciteble private seotor bousing, s
Sibverlinks' prograrting sapports improve s deciston reaking in later ife.

wyaw Ceresndrepair england.orgsk  info@careandrepal-england.org vk

About Preston Care and Repair

Proston Care and Repair is an irdependert home improvemens agency with charitable szatus (Registored Sodioby
2784735 was esablished in 1923 w sepport older, disables and valneiabile people in the Piestor aren, Over
the past 20 vears, I2 bas grover 5 cover Prestor, South Ribble, wWest Lancashive ard Chorley, 't provides practies!
help ang support with all aspects of being safe, secure, warm 2ind indeperdant including horre rapairs,
adaplations and iinprovemen:s ss wall o5 irdependent acvice and infonaiion

v Larerepainorg  info@carsrepsinorg

Copyright € Care & Repsir England
nin et of the documers, iInchuding any ihusteations or diagrams, may be reproducas in whaole orie pars without
weritten perinission, i

Disclaimers

conta'ned o any v pa by websie. Inclusior of any turd parky Setalls o websile is nob riiended w0 =flec: their iinportancs, oy
isit intenves to =ridorse ary views exuressed, sroducts o services offered, ror the comoanies or srganisations i queston.

Page 82



‘Small but Significant’ examines the impacts and cost benefits of ‘handyperson
services' - low cost schemes which carry out small repairs and minor adaptations
for older people, primarily delivered by not for profit Care and Repair and other
home improvement agencies.

The report is relevant 1o peicy makers, sepvice p.anners, comnissioners anc
providers, sxamiring:

« Strategic censiderstons, diving forces anc current evidepce of imipacts in
relation to hancyperson services

» i cepth eveluatior of the example of Prasion Care ard Repair Fandypersor
survice, including anslysis of ocutputs, sutcomes and velurteer nvelvement

« Cost henents, Return on Investroent, and wider impacts, particuiarly utilising
evidence alxout 1a's prevenbion

Why handyperson services?

Handyperson sarvicas offer a coherart polcy response 1o the growirg chalienge
of enabling ‘ncreasing numbers of ‘ewer income, ¢ der pecple 10 live independenlly,
gafely ang wed in their own homes for lorger,

Value to the NHS, Public Health and Sodial Care

Handyperson seiviees pay a orificai role it the bezith and care integranon and
prevention sgendas.

Hanayperson services are particutarly adepl al reaching "older od (80vrs+], more
yuincrable grotps, particularly the rising number of oider sirgle women (ving aone,
ofien with chroric iong term health corditions, reducing mobility anc s'glt 1oss.

Fhese iater fife physice! charges impact or older peopie’s shifty to live safely and
well at home However, miner acaptations and smal repairs [e.g. grabrzlls,

improvac kghting, home bazard remaoval et can make ar encrmious iference to
improved well baing and extergding indeperdence at hame in later Ffe

ﬁiudmg{man\;ofﬂ;!ae“jé&
proved welibeing, reduced anxiety).

Page 83



Handypearsen servooes contribute to echievemert of a range of health are care
palcy ohjectives and targets:
For NHS ana Public Healtk
« improve oleer peope's physical beall le.g. preventing falis zrd accidents in
ihe home) ’
= improve mertal heallth ard we'lbeirg (e.g. througl reducirg worry and anxiely)
o provert/roduce rick of health acute episodes and urplanred bosp'ta’ admissions

o rodune GPvisits/cal's on otbor bealth professionzls” fims

« reduce risk of delayed transfers of cars/enalye core at homs

For Soc’al Care
« exiero <2fe, independant virg
o dulay/prevert adm'ssion to residential care

» reduce care and supporl needs

« improve we lbeing and que.ity of e

Value {o older peopie

Successive slueies have showr Lhat hargyperson services are excepticrally high v
vaiued by older people.

Must older people have a strong ermotiona attackinent to thelr bome and wish to
remzin ving Lhere, salely ard indepencenlly, for 25 ‘ong as possible, The vaz]

majority of o'der peopte are now home owrers {74%) wilh more low incomea owner
occupiors than cver before.

Finding trustworthy fraders who will carry aut sma repsir= and sdaptations, anc
paying for such essental work, causes mary older peop e 2 greal deal of warry anc
stress. Handvperson services run by Care zre Repsir agences alleviats that arxiety

Page 84



Even though many oder people are very reuctant to ask for belp, parficuary from
the starutory sector, evidence shows that they are far more wiiirg to uze practica’
services thal enablz them to remair ir Lheir own homes '..(accessing (he)
hancyperson service 1S not recessarily seen as 'woezkness' or as the 'first step on
tha rezc 1o cepencence’ but rather as 2 strategy 1o maintsir inceperdance’
(Brarneiy et al, 2005,

In conclusion

Thers is 2 slrong policy drive Lo ercourege grezter inlegralior and partnarship
waorking acress seclors, parliculary wilh regard Lo prevention and exterding heatthy,
inceper doene iater | f2, Ac this report highdghts, older peopie identfy Pandyperson
services as a very impoartart resource o enahile ircependent tiving at home.

The 'mpacts of handyperson services straddle health, hous’ng and sccia’ care aims
snd olyectives. “hay offer a bighly cost elfactive sotutior with significsnt cost
benefits and & high rat2 of returr on investmert, both francial and sogizt,

Page 85



R SRR

B

T

(22

Page 86



e -
O T e PR

R I T
L R S SO I

Part 1' 20 e B e Faay Yada
+ 8 =EHIRwy FRALL JRAAL 480

The House of Lords' Report 'Ready for Ageing?’ concluded that the country was
‘woefully underprepared' for demographic change,

One area where there has been a fimited policy response to population ageing
concerns housing and housing related services,

The potential housing impacts of two of the main social changes of the past half
century - increased life expectancy alongside the rise of low income home
ownership - have been particularly neglected. :

There have been few innovations in terms of policy and service provision to deal
with issues faced by the increasing number of older, low income owner occupiers.
The only source of rational government funding to address housing disrepair in
the private sector housing ceased in 2010.

Being able to afford and organise repair, maintenance and adaptation of the home
is especially dificult for these living on a low pension and potentially facing
declining capacity e.g. reducing mobility, sight loss or frailty. The problem is even
greater for the growing cohort of 'older old' {80+yrs) women living alone.

The one innovation that has addressed this social change is the emergence and
subsequent expansicn of home improvement agendies {HIAs) which, since the
late 1970s, have delivered targeted, practical housing help with repairs and
adaptations for low income owner occupiers, particularly older and disabled
peoplo, ’

HlAs were also the pioneers of ‘handyperson services) often directly employing
muilti-skilled builders to carry out a wide range of small repairs, adaptations and
‘odd jobs’ for disadvantaged older people at low/no cost.

These services both hiclp to prevent deterioration of the housing stock and also
play an important role in extending safe, independent living at home amongst this
growing older population.

Page 87



Ageing Popuiation and Housing - Facts and Figures

The vest majority of oloer peop ¢ (76%) ‘ve inorcirery hous'ng e bomes not

pecially buiit for a'der penple: and Locoy ihree guarlers of cider househoids are
owner occupiars {76%). compares with haif of househoids in the 197Cs IDCLG,
Annual .

Most glder pzople Tke where they ve, with 94% setished with ther current bome

and re'ghbovrhood (DCLG, 20141 The housing aspiration of the majorivy of clcer

peope faroune 805 s 1o live irdependently ard wel at hone, predomnantly m
their currart home, for as long as possibie {Lovd, 2015, and Ipsos VORI, 2075).

Sodia! Services ard the NHS a:z0 wants ths ageing popuistion to fve

indeperdently, safely 2nd well at home for lorger, recucing demands on health arc

care services. A decent, siteb'e home can help to de'ay or prevent the reed to
maove irlo residential care, reduce risks 1o healih i2.g. enable seif management of
iong torm conditions, prevent falis etod, facilitate swifter discharge to bome afrer
hespitz! treatment and rediice rates of readmission.

A body of research (DCLE, 2076) bas idenlifizd a causal fink between housing
characteristics fdefecls ard occupants” heatth, with 2 quartifieble ircreased risk of
home accidents {fespeciaily Fails), cardiovescular disease, rospiratory o seases, and
poor mentar health.

Qver 4 milior oleer peop-e have 2 org term liméting il'ress (0% of the A5yrs and
over age grouph In order to athieve the aspirstior of more alder people iving well
at home for lorger in aler e it s crucizl Lo ensure that hormes are I Tor ageing
i.e. places that are safe. securs, warm anc accessib e,

Page 88



The combirec social charges of 'orger e expectency and the large rise in ow
meome owrer ococupation duriey the 1980s & 902 mears that many oicer heme
owners now live on iimiled incomes and the affordabiiity of hame repairs anc
mairterance is a growing issue. In addition to the problem of affordability, anxety
shout find'ng a trustworthy cortractor who wiil charge a fair price is wicespread
smongst cider people.

Therz are indications that this concam shout affordable, reliabie buiicars is
particuiarly acute amongst the large and rising population of single ‘oldar-old’
(8Cyrs+) women. a sub-group most ikeiy 1o be livirg on low incomes (Plalon Tin oz
et al, 2015, 1h's cobort 2 al:o potentiaily more prone to Ainancial fraud and
exploitatior, particularly whare individuals are isc'atad,

The popuiation over 73yrs 'n Lhe UK & projecied (o double n the rex( 30 years,
bui the number of peepie over 8lyrs s predicted to more thar couble in the nexc
23 years to over 3.4 midion [ONS, 207 5).

As heath and care nesds neresse with age, mak'eg sure that the homay of ‘older
old’ peopie are warm, sale, secure and siilaby edapled, wl have a sigringant
positive: hzairh impact.

I this cortext hancypersen services p ay 2 key role in achievny the shared
persona’ anc poicy acpiration of extendirg sefe, inceperdant iving ir ioter fife.
They ofter affordabie, trosteeorthyy, practical beip to repair, maintain 2nd adapt the
kome, particularty for ‘lower ‘ncome and/or vuinerzble oldar bouseholes,

Prevention, Pravention, Prevention

The NHS Five Year Forwara View callec lor @ radical upgrade in preveniion and the
expansion of evicerce-hasae achion (NHS Eragisnd, 2014}

The Care Act 2004 eimphasicad the reed to fous on promotion of peop'ss
indeperdence and well-beira. Both the Care Aol 2054 anc ils assocated Gudaree
(DH, 2614 rerer to the nportance of preventon. the pivots! roe ar housing i
genera, ard home repairs. adaptarions 2nd hancyparsor servicas specificaly.

Tow Papegs Page 9

Page 89



Fvidenios, publshed a3 anirfographic by the Kings Fund & | sl Government
Aszociation Maxing the Case for Puiic Heolth Interventons (K ngs Fund, 2014),
congitided that every E1 spert on improving homes saves the NHS £70 over
20 years,

There iz a solid evidence base Nice! &l a, 2015} concerning Lhe bous ng impacts
on many of the most common long term condifigns, noludirg respiratory disezse,
CQOPD, arthritis & menta health preblams, whist the rsk of scute 2p sodes, such
as ipzidence of stroke, haart =kack, fractiures, is signifcartly increszed by hotsing
factors such zs excess cold ard the presence of far s bazards.

The Buicine Research Fstzhi=bment have model o the cocts of inadeauate
housirg to health services based or celailed analysis of home hazards. The annual
cost of poor housing to the \NIHS is carsorvatively esimated to be £7.4 bilion pa.
(Nico: et zl, 2015). Mearly hs T of this cost to the NEHS, £624 millicn n nrst vear
treatment cosis, resulis from the impact of poor Fousing amengsl older
bousahods (5hyrs+) (Garrem & Burris, 2005).

Ir the Public Heatth fele, hovsing is ackrowledged as a key wider carsrminant of
popelanisr heatt Marmat, 20104, partictlarly the physica! anc menial healtk
irpacis of cold homes and zccidents, ard especiaiy fails.

Qlder People’s Housing Conditions

Mast non-aecert Fomes arz in the swner o upied sector and the iatest English
Housing Survey Headiine Report for 2026 to 2017 (DCLG, 2018) reveas Lhat for
the Arst Hine momore thae g decade the number of non-decent homes in the
owner occupiad secter has ircreased, up from 2,694,000 n 20:5t2 2922000
2016, nestty a Ofth of the private sector housirg stock.

The majority of those living n non-accent swner aeoupied homes are older people,
particuiariy those with disabi'ty or long t2rm health cordidons. Ir our last anay='s
of the EHS ron-decart homes data by Fouseho.c age, scme 1.2 miliior {21% o
one in hve) of households aged 65 years or over 'ved 'n a home that fai'ed to meet
the Decent Homes standard ir 2012 (Adams, 20161

e
-

B v

Page 90

Dazrn 70}

Sy



The main {but not the urlyi reason for humes faling the Dezcert Homes standard
is the presence of 2 Category © hezard, “be two commonest Category 1 hazares
are falis risk and excess cold.

o Thevast maionty {795 of nousehoids aged 65 vears or over whe are [Wing is 6 non
decerd Bone ¢re Ovener occuplers (934,000 beussholdsi,
» Most {785 of oiter people with long term ilaess o disabitsy living in 0 non degent

DOME Qe OwaiEl DLCLUIRLS.

o 731,300 househonds aged 65 years or over ive in o nome with g
%]
5% of these (619 0001 in owner occupiad hormes,

rhis concentratior of hazards in the homes of oldar people fving in owner
occupiad hous'ng Is of key Tmiportance when plann’rg and delivering prevertative
kousing measures, incuding handypersor servicss.

Such services need Lo operals across Lenures il they are to contribute effectively
to reducirg a range of health risks. inclugng proverting falis and supporting safe,

tmey h,,_,pltaf gischarge. ali of which ‘mpact on MHS costs,

Handyperson servicas which are addrassing housing disrepair 2nd seaplation not
only recucs risk through removal of home hazards, they also:

o FipgcT on mental 05 well g physicel health rizk,

= Aftect corors ability o cure,

= Can fundanientaly nfluence: oy people’s abifity tc fve indeoeadently, safefy and

wazll gt ricme.

Prevention of falls in the home

Fa''s, the malority of wlich take place i oider peopis’s owr hames, are the most
commen catse of injury and subsegquert cesth in the older popuiation,

Forthe Wils, fails are high volume ang costly, whiist for mowvidusls the anpect s
often e dhanging.

Arouna g thirc of ai people aged 65 anz over fa't each year, increasing (o half of
those sged 80 and over (NICE, 20131

ASE departnents Liesl a disproportionste numiber of older people, parlicuiarly
those zged over 70, who have fallen in their boinz. “here sre 255,000 fa's-re'ated
emergercy hospite! admissions in Engiand per year among people aged over 65.
Hip fraciure is the most common serious injury in older peop e - 65.000 presentec
te hosp'tas in UK 'n 2016 (Royal College of Phvsicians, 20271

The tota! cost of fragil'ty fractures to the JIChas been estimatad at £4.4he, which
includes £1.1bn for social care. Hip fractures account far around £20n of Lhis aum
{Svedbom et al 2013]

lai's ard fracturas often recult in ioss of corfidenze ard ircependence, at worst,
in fraiity anc dzath. More than 4,500 pecplz in Englend over the age of 65 were
recorded as having ciec as a resuil of a fall in 2015 (ONS 2015). A recenl Royal

Page 91

Dazn 77
T



Coliege of Emergency Medicire and RoSPA joint pubricetion about action to
provent f2°s comments that:

s is very mwch Hie Ho of the iceberg os Talls, alitfough nor necessardy the wause of
death, can rc:u.' i f.l,s;.l.ﬁcmu dectine i healh, costnsuting [ many mare deaths then
thish i

Fails imuact on alder prople’s mental as welt as their physical fiealth, There s increased
prevalence of feor of faling ameny oider prople who howe fallen and this can resuit in
activily awoidance. social isafion and increosing fraitty - ol focions ihal con increcse

soenEone’s nok of faling

Soutce: RoSA ang Royasl Collzge of Zmzegs 1y Megicine (RCEM) (200 71 Acbon 1 Prevant =alls,

A Cochrare review (Gillesipie et al, 20122 'ooking at the effectiversss of variaus
intervertons in the pravention of falle among older peepic fiving in the community
concludad that home safety assessment znd madification intervenlions wers
effective at reducirg the rate and risk of faiz,

NICE recommerls that oliler peopis whe have recsived trestment in husp'tsl
foliowirg 2 T2+ shouid be D!’- ered a home hazard aszessment ... Joliowed by
necessary safety intervenfions/modifications INICE, 20141,

Reductior of hazards ‘n the Fame, 2 ergth/
balancs exercise programmes, ali p'ay a mi:= rfalls praverton. Handyperson services
are a critical elemert in Uhe mix as they can urcerlzke heme salziy checks and
cructaily carry out the necesszry remedia! measures to remove hazardsseecuce reks,

Handyperson sarvices are ase an mportant way of reaching oider peop.s and
remiovirg home bezarcs prion to a st fal Zisjuy.

As the RCEM/ RoSPA cocument notes, ' many areas Falls Strategies ... focuson
the rasnonse wher ¢ parson f:"sr anters the heplthcore system ofter a foll. This may be
too lote Tor those who never iLlly recover fram thelr odginal falt and are miore vumerable
as (i resuit

Fal's reduction is an importart Outcome for Public Hezllh celivery. with rates of
bip fracture 2 key meicaror (FIC Outcomss Mamework, 20141

Al

T

fhe aefiritive natiora: Fais & Fracture Consensus Statemenr (PHE, 2617, s
publiskes by Public Heaith Englanc ard was ceveloped by a broac range of
organisatiors {the Natioeal Falls Prevertion Coordination Grouph This Consensus
Statemert recommencs that falls prevertion interventions should form part of a
whole sysiem appreach. Such a syslem should indude assessing risks in home

ervironments with romoeaial measures 10 reduce risk, non ng thar those ... can he
cartied aut by home improverment and handyoerson service
Freatan ey Qagn L2

Page 92



Evidence of impacts of handyperson services

Araview or 25 years of published and gray lileralurs about I‘and\-'perf--“" sarvices
reveals a considersbre leve of docunaneztion setiing out the ratoens'e for ard
charac ‘Len:‘.uc.s of services. Thess incuce anatysizs of outputs, oulcomes and
heividun case study desariptons publ shed precominantiy hv aepvite providers,
alongsiac a numbar of ineependent ovaluations, incuding one main governimear
evaluation (CLG, 2012).

The body of work focuscs on;

i) Modelied porential inpocts on third porties, prirarily cost senefrs resuldng from
ovoidance of expendilure thal might otherwise Nave peen incured e.3. costs Lo he NHS
it} Self reperked mpacts on individuals e.g. perceived sense of safety, security, welloeing

l

il impacts on the property £.3. prevention of deterioralion of ine home {far fewer studies)

Below we consider the main indings undsr the frst two headings,

Figure 1: lllustrabion of third party impacts of handyperson job for older person

e L oaea e rvia e

"hr.- hanc-marsc-n cnuld ofia' o hame qamrlty dsec? arc mhll exim measurus gtver the prwlom .
o burglavy. Sirilanly, iestallation of smeke estertor, CO monitor, fow energy light bulhs might ke relevant and
- teferral 4o other services if oo probleras aic noliced, i

+ By uncertaking this repair the bandyperson servica could be halping Lo prevent Lhe need lora
 muek greatey level af cars eg. 1f Mg Stk fed Ihere would be both a inocieal cost cor \ncquorcc
: wd al*n arin increasein support reet{s oreyer !h? need toﬁ-we tn 2 CaE hnme

The repair by hardypaesen seevice veoule cortributz o) falls pravartion, ;
- helping te recuce arsbadarce cafl auts: nor-clective acmissions to hospital;
- risle of hip fractire anc subsequent delayed transier of care. P

" Under the Housirg Health ang Safety Fating Scheme stairs 3
argorg of the 29 hazarcs. Improving the stairs could reduce *
. lhe HHERS seore and reduce ik g
+ The reprair warile reduce falls sk and

E corh ibule to Pubdic Healih Qutcomes for
¢ heglth irproverent srd the Prevention
TETTIEIT pnbition (2614Ho se= 10% reduchionin
. * the purher of irjuries dus to falls ir peeple

* agot 65+ by 2020721 :

A BAGYRaIson sonice
wiould be ableio

uncerishe this repaii -
bt b wright furd iF?

1
1

o

L

on

[}
.
Va3

Page 93



i} Modelling impacts on third party expenditure

Unaesrp'nning much of the eviaence concarning cosl benehis of handyperson
services i« datz on the Fkebhood of én adverse event being avoided! .g. reduced
risk of a fall, haspital acmission, 'ozs of funchon cted as a corsequerce of tho
~ousing intervention.

Cost benanis have been cacraied bascd on the resulling economic, chnical and
social impacts of such an avent being prevented. focussing on hea'th and care
costs avoided if that adverse avent coes not take place.

In particuiar, aveidarce of costs to the NHS has beer a majer foous, partly
because these costs are so bigh o.g. hospitzlisation. hip fracture, ambulance call
oty et I sddition, there s & nationally agreed (aniff of NHS riervention costs
lirked to particulzr incidents o.g. fals & fractures, mak'rg 't possibie to made'
petential savings.

One of the shailenges for such risk reduction appreach 's atiribution. The bullding
works undertsken by a basndyperson for an older person may invawve a number of
jobs it the home, or may be part of multi-factoria’ interventicn by the home
improvement agaray (e.g. incomes maxim sation, introductisr (o oppertupitiss to
socialise, ieferral to othoer services as well as halp 1o undertske farger scale building
works T the home elg), Corsequertly, the majorily of evauadons, ncudirg the
gavernment commissioned aokit described heiow. take & vary conservative
approach to estimating risk reducton ard resultng cost savirgs.

The main cost berefit mode! app'ied to bandypersen services to date is the
Handypersors Frarcial Benents Toodkt fthe Toolkis, comm ssioned by Comimunites
and Lacal Government {CLG, 2020) following Lhe arge scale investment in the
cxpansion of handyperson acrvices in 2009, This oolkin icentifics the foilowing as
benefits of harcdypurson services:

® For the public purse

Finrchiperson sepvioes fon g oot of Bie preventaiive oerncs ancd i cnainian

crefies can include reduction of falis iwitn benefits fo

Lotk socia Services dand heaitheoral rlucton of barglaries imnroved o Taintainad
end iving onctreduced s of s

confdence in the tackiing of crime and anli-social behaviour and on improving aocess ko

offer gnrwonsiate services,

independent fiving, The fingncial

indepenaent ial core, Un-cosied benefits inciude improved

a For individuals, their families and communifies

Handyperson seevives neovicle ¢ radmier of beneitts, in adiiition ko Hhie benetts oortingd]
above twtuch 0lso Benefl Individualst, these benefts inciuch: improved o mioiniained
weli-bewng and gualily of iife. reduced fuel poverty, ana reduced ssk of iy or death
frorn fires, Hondypersan senvices are offen quoted By oider geonle as heirng the Tile hit
of help' 1o do Uings thal vou cannoi do inciuding naw buibs in overhead iizhls L lau

woshers in theis homes, and gre Bigndy valued,

The methodolegy uncarpnining the creation of the Tookit was consistent wth thet
cevelope: for the Supporting People Frrancz| Benefits Model, It used conservative
assumphions, setfng sut a synopss of the ava'lable evicerce and deta’ing how this
was usec {0 huile the mode:,

Page 94



The Housing Health and Safety Rating System

A turther well estabishad framewark of modeiling cost hanefitz fo the NHS
resultirg from housing interventions is based on the work of the Building Research
Estabishimert (BREI utilising their nalicnai eviderce-basec Haus'ng Health and
Safety Rating System (HHSRSL Appivir g this system of analysis of the impaces of
26 home hazards BRE have producad 2 cost berefits mode! showing pavhack

reriods for reducing the inc'duncs of these hazards see tabie below). Again, fails at
I*ome appear as the moel commaer bazards whick, if remedied, have some of the
shortesl payback times.

Figure 2: The cost and benefts to the NHS, of reducing HHSRS Category 1 hazards to an acceptabie level for
households aged 55 or more

{Source: Garrett H & Burris S, (2015) I lomes and ageing in England, Building Research Esteblishment}

689,664 _
Taerzre 0 eeme r46§355027
197177 E792 | £156129838
93 723 £1134 . £106290,746
o £411: N £137, 132934

5392 O 216,369,553
E186 . £17487933
Erp33 ) E85653060
£1 3;1 B} £m,.?31.3<>a
| H1677 | 70306239
"TEziiso ¢ £13665167
127 | £7aseease
20438 B9 ) £22539.64
15373 941 £1£,781,303
'muz o £m9'_ £9,5314 79
' :w - £16 728 1 E852:581

R R S

230 E1137 £1.398.960

DR N R e e T e e o W e N e e S e ke G W RS B v

3751 £508 £1,907.042
1169 £288 | #336 667
2,692 £2111 £5481466

W R A AR M W AT N M W e Y

3288

B A JE S R S

2246

RNy e

Eo;

1431482 EZ.’;")D; L&2/9,648,929 £623.7/9,506

0 i R S o S B e 0 S 1 A o SO O A

Nete: he tetal number of cwelings with 3 Category © hazard is different to tnat provided in dhe -oor heusing as
asgessad by lng 4HSRS sectior Tre asove cos: of pory bousing meest wees THS 2010-261 1 data.

Fle tinsra- :-‘j-f“.—-.’l-:
: £ = -

Page 95



ii} Self reported impacts: Delivering what older people want and value

Aseries of influential studies undertzken during the early 2000°s underpinrea a
rethink of services for an ageing popuiation basec on extensive engagement with
older people thamzelves, These induced the work of the Auct Commissior,
Owder paople-independence and wer-belng [Audil Carmmissian 2004), ard the
lozenb Rowntree Foundatior’s Older Peonle's Inquirg (IR(, 2004}

The foldow on repart, Thot fittle it of help' (JRF, 2005} which was shaped by the
JRF Olcer People's Steering Group, identined a ‘Bakers Dozer’ of low avel services
thal clder people gave the highest pricr'ty to as heing key to retaning
indeperdence and control eear thair fves, Rarked rumber one i that st was a
*handy-lelp’ service.

One of the few acadamie studies of hancyperson services s an in depth examination
of a local voltintary sector handypersan service rur by Broadening Choices for
O'cer People (BCOP) in Birmingham {Brannelly et 2f, 2005). "his evalLation
congiuded that;

... laccassing the) handyperson service is not necessarlly seen as ‘weakness' or he fiesl
stap on the road to dependences” but raiber as g stiategy 1o maintain independence.
ston on the road fo dependence’ but rather as o stiategy to maimtain independenc

The report’s conclusions sccord with other anzlyses of hardvperson service user
feedhack Adams, 2006) e, thal the majerily of service Lsers are oldar people wlho
receive no other help and most wouid refuse any cantact with statitary sorvices,

Ihus the literature shows that by delivering what older people themselves
prortise, handyparson services provide practical support 'n 2 way thzL does not
threaten but enharces oiger people's sense of irdependence and control.

Nationat handyperson programme evaiuation

A major injection of nabioral governmaent furding to boosl haroyperson service
provision (oidowsd the pubtication of the Government s Strategy [or Hensing inar
Ageing Sodiety, ' ifotime Flomes, Lifetime Neighbourhoods' (CLG, 20081 A payiment
was made 1o every housing authority i Ergland to support handypersen provisien -
either to stimuate irtroduction of such a service or Lo erhance ex’sting provision.

The resulting hancypearson service expansion was subsequently indepercently

evaluzted [CLG, 20721 usng datz codested rrom service provicers, including those

Lsing Lhe Hancypersans Financiai Berehts Toolk't cescribed abave. ~he evaluation

conciudde:d that:

o Dased on conservative modeiing ossumotions, the benehts achieved by *he
hanayperson progromme oubweighied The costs of proviairg the programme by 13°

» Finanugl beaghits of handyoerson serdoes could De sianificantty greater than Hhs
indicative level becouse the scope of the modeting was limiled (o kenchis forwhich g
fnonicio! valkie could be ottibaied.

» Benefins such as improvirg older peosle’s independence, auaity of ife ang sense of
1
(A

welDeny can also e oolipved, but gre ot quantined in the mods

Page 96

Oqpn 7

3 -

i



The ovararching conciusion of the evalustion wag that:

This evargnban of the 201G Handyperson Frogromme has saown rhal tondvperson
services are assisting large numbers of older, disalied ond vuineshle 'Jf‘b{;'r‘ 10 tive

Jr‘”.i.i'li?ﬁﬁ‘fit’a’&""!ff‘;-" iny thedr awn homes forior wer ;|'|}Z’.' eaterieves of confort anu security.

Thay offer an imwortant spiely net for older veople, ond Hhey alse enhonce the
effectiveness of hecith and social care provision through the driivery of offen very
srnte arel very low cost inferveskons.

Services are consisiently highly raied Dy seanie who use them, and Hhey are valued Jor
r..-‘;e:fr zf‘rusr worthiness, relighifity. quality, and cracialiv foe the <&ilts and resoeoriu!
afbtudes of the staft.

The Evidence Challenge

Muck of the hendyperson benshils modeling 1o catg has a'med Lo cuantify savings
ts heaithoare, As the NHS becomes a kay dover inthe integratec commissioning o
services wihich straddle health. social care anc (Lo a ‘esser degrae) howsirg, a higher
standard of eviderce of impact is require.

the preferred evidence 'n the medical fierd is a Randomized Contro [riz: (RC i, the
‘eoid standarc’ which ‘s applied almost uriversaly in pharmzceutical trialks.

As noted above, reports moceling impacts in the caze of handyperson services,
whilst usaful, have been subjzcl lo challargs e g with regard (o aluibulior of
effect: from a specinc interverton, particulzry where there are mudfsciorel
interverans.

Using RCTE in the case of housing inlerventions, inclicing handyvperson services,
can be rub:emzshc for 2 rumiber L‘f’ reasons, not the east of whick s ethica
consideratons eg. withhgidirg ‘rormel’ provision of a service that woule sihenaise
he ava-lal.wle to an oder persor wouid be unaccepish e,

There has been o lack of aczcemic rterest ir developire more n deptl researct
praposa’s 'r this fiele, aswedl 52 ar jssu2 with regpr-i to szcurng furding from the
mair academic reseerch counc’s for seeh ‘cross-over! research whick sireddies the
interests of heaith, social care and bousing,

In arecent international literature revisw spochically concerning the irpacts of
Pome zcaptzbions carried outf in olcer people's bomes, nio UK studies were
identified that mel the sr.ringent academic criteriz {(Certre [or Ageing BEetlar, 2017,

However, the review cid identify robust academic stuaies from arcurd the worid
inciuding an RCT e New Zealand (Keal et ai, 2015) which provides w=oful
ind'caticns of the impzcts of smali scaig, physical aleerations to homes [of 2 typs
which a UK handvparsan service neght typicaily undertake) specificaily to recduce
falis risk,

Page 97



Keall et & carrize out athree year RCT based o a sample of over 800 people

{not 2l o'cor peop ¢} iving ip similar properties and 'n receipt of weitare henents,
Hall of the sample rezeived a standard package of minor heme moaifications
(including handralls Yor outsice steps and Internial stairs, grab rails for batnrooms, cutside
tighling, ralging for ouiside steos, and sip-resistant surfacing for oulside areasy at the
start of the trigi, the other haif hac to wait three yzars.

Because uf the nature of the trig, thore wes a feirly stendare package of relenively
o cosr modifications instzled atr ar average cost of $830 (€.£375),

the bomne madinestions led te s 26% raduchor ininjuries atfributable ro bome
falls that nzeded med zal treztment. Inuries specific Lo the bome mozficabion
intervertion were reduced by 39%.

in Conclusion

Hanayperson servicas conbinue to fit we | 'nig the poncy laroscapa, parbicularly
with regard o the NHS focus on prevertion arc currert gressing ¢ oncerns about
reczing ron-2 echve adimssiors/use of A&E/celaved transfers of care, aswelas
Public Health aimis to reduce f3ils and externd heaithy life expectancy.

Hanadyperson sensices alss fil e wel with the statec overarching aime ard
ohiectives that underpin the Care Act 2014 [prevention, wet -being, ndependence,
cheice and contrer; ard have a useful role to play 'n terme of the current focus on
recloing Lsa of exparsve residential care.

What comes through consistently in ths booy of Freraturs on hardypearson
services © the high value that older peopie themselves {particulariy for peopie of
iimited Anancizi means) place on having access Lo incepandent, trustad, affarczble
bancyperson services.

What remans cha 'enging for provicders s securing funding to dewer the genere,
mulli-job type handyperson services thal oider people warl anc nesc; particudary
2t & tine of mzjor Griancal constraints ie locsl suthorines.

Handyperson send o remain marginglsad, tencing to fa” betweer the cracks af 2
poicy ant commisaisring leve!, perlaps partly because Lhey are a pracucal housing
intervertion but the cost berefils mainly ‘'mpact on heallh and <acial care.
Handyperson services clearly warrant further academic research 1o ouantify
impacts, parficu ary wth regere to mesting policy aspirations to integrate haalih
and care services.

it 15 within this canlext that we now describe Preston Core and Repair's hanayperson
service, the linked Innovations ond evawation of service mpgacis.

Page 98



Preston Care and Repair is an independent, charitable home improvement agency
established in 1993, It delivers a handyperson service in four Lancashire
Boroughs - Preston, South Ribble, Chorley and West Lancashire.

In the face of funding changes it wished to find new ways to continue to offer a
broad spectrum, low cost handyperson service to older people with limited financial
means. |t also wanted to strengthen the evidence base conceming service impacts,

Through a partnership with Care & Repair England funding was secured from the
Rayne Foundation to provide the broad based service for disadvantaged older
people, partly through developing input from volunteers, and to evaluate the
resulting outcomes,

The Preston Care and Repair Handyperson Service

I the case of Prestor Care end Repair one of the drivers Tor this eveluation and the
zssoviated handyperson sery ce developments supported by the Rayre Foundzton,
was a change to tha range of harcvpersor job vpes that cowd be undertzker {znd
hence funded) uncar the terms of a revised County Coundil contract.

Whearees previousty the agenoy bad beer gble to offer @ vorv wida rarge of Jobs at
G or low cosl, a new ‘Healihy Homes' senvice conuract hao 2 more cenired Larget
gronp fncduits with a lang teim condifion that affects mabiity in the home and/or
registered disabied: jor peoine where the work (revenis nospitairesidentiol care nome
admission or focititaies nospiial discharge) arc a specified tict of eligible werks that
fitled within 2 defined ‘Hezlthy Homes Assesamert’

For johs / peopte that gid not mest the rew criteria the agenzy irtroduced o
chargrc-al-cost Bandyperson service, bul it stul washed 1o be sblo to assist those
who cowd not afford this option.

The Rayne Tovndearion grart heped to reouce the cost of tho charged for servica
for those wilh 'mitad mears, inciuding providirg some work al nil cosl. This
enabiec the agenty o continue to maintzin the offer of practical belp with the
wicest posshie range of smal jobs that olaer peapie themselves identified as belng
important Lo them. “he grant also suppertied the tra! of waorking with skilec
valunteers Lo urdertake mror repa'rs and ‘odd iobs,

With regaro to evoiuating the wider Prestor Care are Repair handyperson service,
the irtraduction of the Healthy Homes Assessaent for ail clients s of parbicular
reievanes, Allstaff who visit sorvies gsers are now rained to undertale His in
cdepth assessment of risks ir o'cer and disabled psop'e's homes, and Lo offer Lhe
recessary remediat measures as part of the hancypersor service. This svstamatic,
proventzhve gpprozch is parncularly important in terms of the recorcing of
outcormes of intervertions erd aise in modeling of cost benefils as it provices a
maore revable assessiment of sk and haras potertial r'si reduction, than bas been
tha case i other hardyperson service reports:.

Emgenre Page 19

Page 99



1.
1.1,

12

1.3.

Defining a2 handyperson service

A lardyperson service, in the contexl of th's report. is the term used (o
cesoribe the direct provision of practice housirg help from muti-skdlled staff
who Lnderiake 2 wice renge of smzil repeirs, maintenarce and mner
modincahian/acaptation johs nthe homes of clser (ana somatimes voungar
disabled) people, predominanty (bt nol exclusiven) for thase ivng in ihe
iower INCome, owner oceupie sector.

The paramoters of work Lncertaker by a hancyperson scrvice varios across
the country, but wowd typ'cally incude some or all of the fodowing:

Sraat repairs Lo the exlernal fobric of (he properly {e.g. doors, windows, quttering
etcl smei epairs to the interng! fubric of the arovecty 2.9, hathiroor fifings?
seaiants, kitchen fittings, sloirs, door furnilure eic; specifc risk reduction renairss
modificauons {e.. grah rait mstallalion, securing loose caroels, replacing light bulbs/
improved iignting. bed and chair rafsers, it keysafe, ramps etcl; imoroved security
instanations (6.9 deor/window locks, spy heles, security light etey; improved thermal
stondards e.g. drought proofing, Gleed radiators finstal inmproved controls); odd
jobs' (e.g. minor plumbing, fix cuphoard doors, move furniture, repair gate/fence

eick Some underioke limited gorden/external works (e.g. level uneven paihs, repairs
to ourouilthings such as gorages & sheds, cutting back overgrown shrubs that
impeda access Lo groperty etc)

The rarge of works uncertaker by 2 harayperson service wil be cetermined
by the fung'rg that car he secured L pay for the service {e.g. some handvperf_-or-
services are contractec primariy 1o undertake falis prevention messuress; local
policies ard priorities; geps in icca: provision {e.g. shortage of affordable
tradespeople willing to do small jobs);, locaity characteristics .. prevaence
of tow 'meome, ‘ower eouity bome ownership, cordition of hoesirg stock zto);
arc operztional limitations e.g. speciic skills of employees, insurance, regulation
fo.g. hesith and safoty. coptractor rowstration reauirements seeb a< for was
ard elecirica: works).

Local Context

. Preston Care and Repair Is an incependent home improvement agency with

charitah’e status astabl'shed ' 1993 wo support elder, disabed ard vuinarahie
peop ¢ in the Prester area. Il kas subsequently exparced its area of operaton
ard some of its services row extend to South Ribble, West Larcashire and
Cherley. Preston Care and Repair provices practical heip and support wilh all
aspects of being sale. secure. warm znd independsni ai home, inclucing home
ropats, adaprations anc improverents, as well as offering housing rojaced
independenrt advice anz information.

Page 100



2.2.

24.

3.

in 2015 Lancashire Courty Courcll introcuced & new comipessioning
arrangemoent for homs imorovement agercies ard handyperson services
cperating across the county, dascribaa as he [nlegrated Home Improvament
Service. This inciuded a charge from funcing for the general handyperson
services which were delivering & wide ranga of practical minor repairs anc
smali avaptations and avalabla (o moest elder and disehied peopie, (0 a Ingre
tightly cohned contract for a | lsalthy Homes Service. Ths new service was
specifically aimed al peopie whe had 2 long term heaith condition that
affected their mobility in the home; srd/or were regisrered cisshled; andio
where works prevenied immediate/ikey hospital or resicenial care adnussion;
andlfor facilitated bosp'tal discharze.

. Preston Care and Repair crealeu an 2L cost, paid Tor service available o peopie

who cid not meet the pow iigibility critariz, but they were keen to Ane ways
to help those who couid not afford this. They had a hardship fund to enabis
them Lo waive costs in some instances, but the Rayne Foundabion funcing
enzbled tham o 30 a wider range of jobs at no charge for thase older peop'e
wha lelt oulside Uhe new Council contract criizria.

Prior to the Rayre Founcation supported inhizbhve thea agercy had not worked
with volurteers and so the support. from Rayne also enzhled them 1o ¢evelop
this ares of activity, ncluding puthirg i piace the necessary nsurarces,
procedures erd systems, dovisng a wice range of voluntoering policios,
crezting new risk assessments etz

Evaluation Methodology

[he project sdoptec & mixee methads approach.

MEASURING CUTPUTS

31

3.2.

The sva'uation ssessed schievemerl of the sutpel Largel sal for e number
of Fandyperson obs compieted in conrection with the Beyvne Fourdatior
pidative as weall és megsuring overs!| outputs v terms of nurmber of order
peop e heped and jobs comp eted [poting that 'n add'tior the agergy sssists
yvounger disabred people/famities with aisshled children but this achivity fell
outs’de this evaluation).

The autput was measured using the existing roudire client recording ard job
coimpletion calz collection systems thal were siready in place in Presten Care
an Repair, with some minor system amerciments. This mon'lorirg arrangement
enchled assesement of progress: towaras meeting the mimmun Rayne
Foundation furcing outpLt targat of.

v Al least 400 older peeoie recelve handyperson heip Wilh repairs and adaptalions.

Exsiomrp~

Page 101

o~
Bagn 27



3.3, Quiarterly reports with guanutative and gualitedve dats were subinittes by
Preston Care 2nd Repair, ard assessment visits were made to the sgency to
giscuss progress and any emerging ‘ssues/findings. This enabiec evatuaticn of
the: success or otherw’se i terms of the Rayne Founcation funding targat
« Volunieers will ve recryited and retuined L0 Corry out work gs port of te

Lo v e -
NGy From,

MEASURING OUTCOMES

34, The irterded Outcomes for the Ravne Foundaton suoported inifabve wih
regard Lo the impacts of the handypearson service on older people wers:

QUTCOME 1. More olger neaple are able to lve safely, securely ana well in thelr own

FLoe e
HOMES.

OUTCOME 2. Chider neople who wish 1o five indesendenity in their own Fomes bowe o

T 1. O 4
neher gugtity of Lle,

3.5. The proecl was able Lz draws or academic acvice wilh regard Lo the outcomes
evziuation merhodology. The mix of ouantitative and cualitative micthods
incluciea:

i. Analysis of the case/ job database records for all jobs completed

Existing data collection svstems were aiready in piace te idenufy main job ype
outputs, as well as outcomes for hershaares, for every handyperson 'ob
campleted. Job sheets ana database records roted the categories of work
carriec cut (8., security. fa:ls hazard remova , miror azaptation/gensra. repairs
etr) as we'l ag desarbing the exack weork undertaken and the cheracteristics of
the serv'ce nser.

For must service users a velaiied Healthy Home Assessment” form is
completed whah gathers & wice range of data abourt the persor, their home,
beaith, walboing, safoby, soourty, neces arc drcumstarass. A narabe s s
uszd to recerg the outpuis and oulzomes that are recorcas or the job sheeis,
cfent records, sscessment Fonng sed feecheck forms, “his eval of pre-existirg
data collection, will” a f2w minor emendments, was sufiicien] o erable
evaiuation of impact with regard to the above bwe o tcomes.

Quarterly case/ob/osutput/sutenme cota reporms were submithed by the
spzney alurgside the sgreed qualitabive dara for each guarter. Tha quatitabive
guarlerly reports 'nciudzc submission of four shorl case siugies.

ii. Interviews with staff

Foilow up visits ana telephone catls were made by the cvaluator to discuss
progress and any emerging issues wilh the stail involved foliowing the
subinission of the quarierty dats returps, ihese foliow up meetings includeo
ciscussion of the prograss towargs 'mpementrg vaurteer relzleg systems,
volunteer recruitment;/refenton, cualtative foedhack about the 2xpearience of
imp ementztion of the revised cata systems and the develupmeant of ary
clznges in the oparatig environment that might ‘mpact or the zervice,

T

Page 102

Pagn 22



....
=5

3.6.

Service user sample postal survey

The existing sarvice vsar fecohack form was substaraal v redas'gneo with rho
evauator o provids a cuaitative and guentitative measure of impact on
individizals througlh seil reporting of factors rdcative of Fezalth, quelity of I'fe
and weelibeing, as wel as gathering views about individugls’ experierce of using
the handypersor service, Half of service veers (randomly selected) wera cenl 2
postal survey form with an SAE. The form couc be completed sronyimously.
or clients could add the'r name/contact detaiis aconggide the option of
requesling Turther he'p lrom the agency and/or a response Lo Lheir comments.

For parl of the trial period the [orms were senl from and returned Lo Preston
Care and Repair, for the remeainder of the period they were sert from and
returred Lo Care & Repar Engiand’s office in Notiingham. This enabled
assessmont of any difference in rates of return and service user comments if a
third party was the recipiont of the survey information rather than the service
provicer.

In depth interviews with a sample of service users

Face to Face semi structured interviews with service users allowed further
exploration ¢f soms of the cualtanve hndings ond ssees/indings Lhat
emzgged from the pastal survey. The selecrion of potenfial interviewees was
carriec out incependently by the valurteer academic advisers. They spent a
cay wilh Preston Care end Repair essessing a range ol potenlial inlerviewses
whose sitLanions were luistrative of a range of characieristics. The interviews
wers {hen undertaken by the eva uator.

Data Cutcome verification

One of the most weil rescarched ard guantifiee arez 'r corpechion with olider
peap-e's heath, and potentiady avoicahle bealth and care cosls, 15 falls
preventar, Furthermare, the rationa Hausing |eaith and Safety Rating
Syatem (DCLG, 20061 provides a naticnaily 1ecognized, cuantilied lramework
to assass the fabs risk ang associated costs for specine hotsing characteristics,
Fails reduction was therefore udged to be the most usefu oufcome to
exarpne 1o more depth and Lo vse te assess polenbal handvperson service
cosl herents,

wo volunizer ndependent ascademes (heth university lecturars working n
the fizids of orcupations therspy and accessibie builtirg design) carrled out 2
verficalior exercise which irvolved random sampling of cases where a recorded
job sutceme included fadls prevention. They tracked the sampled cases back
through paper and electranic job records to verfy the nature of the bullding
work undertaken by the hanoypercon and the characieriztics of Lhe client
Hhey applied thelr in depth professional knowiadge abat the impact of home
modincations on fails rsk. I 2l sampied cases they corfirmec the recorded
output Le. that the hardyperson job wrdertaken bad reduted falls risk.

Page 103

Dagm 23



37

3.8

Process
Furd ng for the ininanve and the evaiuanion ran from 2076-201 7.

The wvaluztier methedoogy and deta collectior arrangernents were developud
erd triarec for the first 3 months of the programime, The evaluatior 's based
or % months of data collectior (after the trial periocd from Qctobar 2016 Lo
eng of june 2057,

Application of cost benefit and return on investment models

The national government commissioned evaivation of handypersor services
(CLG, 2008) applied the ‘Handypersons Fnardal Benehts Tookit' to a large
scale study. Tre eva'luation concludec that, hased on the Toollét's conservative
modeiing assumptions, the henents achieved by the Pardyperson programme
outweighed the £ stz of provision by 138%.

It qualifica this irding by stating that:

Financial benelts of hundy person senvices could be sigaificently greoter thar this
indicalive 'evet becouse the scope of the modeting was limiied to bereiis for which

¢ inancial vahe could be aitricured,

l-or this evaluation we used the most recent Returr or Irvestment IROD study
(PHE, 2078b) whch examired fals recuclion resuiting from home assessmert
ard modificetion (HAMY. THs study deptined 2 fnanciz! return or investrment
(ROf of £3.17: £1.00 and 2 sodictal RO of £7.54: £1.00 rasuting from the 1AM,

The study 230 provided usafu dztz about the actua: levels of raduchor in falls
that i2¢ Lo hospita’ adimission and serious falls that resulted from the home
modification, which weas 23% for hoth fall types.

This faiis reduction percentage resuitng from hoine maodincations is closc 1o
{Rat igenbifiec in an RCT Lnderlaken in New Zea.zne (Kesil et ai, 2015) which
farned & 26% reduction in ‘njuries atiributable to Fome falls that rezeded
med'cal trestinent folowing installatine of lowe cost bome modhcations,
Home risk assessmert ano modincation to reduce risk, particularly falis, 's an
important e;ement of the Prostor Care & Repair handyperson service, anc @
carefiily measured outcome, and so this was selected as the ma n sorvice cost
berant measure arnd s examined in detal in Part 4 of the report.

Page 104

Dagn 24



Handyperson Service Qutputs

During the 9 month svaluztion perico 2,399 jobs were carned out in the hemes
of 697 oider people. This is a2 12 month equivalent of 1,865 jobs completed and
929 older pecple assisted.

Mote that the Preston Care and Repair handybersen service aiso undertakes sirmilar work
for other age groups and carries out specificolly contracted handyperson jobs e.g. for
indhivictual Social Services cases - these fobs are additional (0 these outout hgures and
are not included n the svalugHon,

10% of service users had Fandyperson jobs carried out w'thin the remit of the
lsricashire County Coundil Funded Integrated Home Improvement Service
contract, 2 full year equivsiert of 372 older people, and 60% had iabs carried cut
that werz outs'’de the councit scheme, a full year eouivalert of 557 cder people.

Vitually ali of the latter group perd for any materia < needed for the building job,
a small minarity (4% paid ful job cost ii.2. nzlucing izbour charge..

Volurteers wore involved in celivering the bancypersor service for just under

6 months of the 9 month moniloring period. During thal time there was volunteer

input into 134 jobs {100 solely volurteer, 34 voiuinteer working siongside a paid

Fancypersonr. 1h's is a fuel vear ecuivalent of 248 Fandyperson jobs carriec out for

older peopie involving a vounieer.

Mese outputs:

1. Exceeded the targer for the Ravee Foundstion of 400 olier peopte he'ped n
tola fvoiunieer ard non-vountesr),

2. Dxeeeded outputs in terms of the Courty Coundii funded | leaithy | lsmes
athivity.

3. Met the target of recruiting and retaining volunisers Lo carry oot work as part
of the hancypersor team.

Page 105

Pagn 23



Characteristics of servica users
Age

Nearly haif (47%) of the o'der peopie usng Lhe bandypersen service =re over
- I"[:,‘

30 vears, with 20% over $C vears,

Figure 3: Service user age

2 65-70 years

B 71-80 years
23 81-90 years

B 91+ years

Gender

The majority of users of ali of the Preston Cere ard Repair services, Inc udirg the
Fancyperson service, sre femzte. 77% female, 23% maie.

Figure 4: Service user gender

& Female

% Male

Household composition

Nearly three quarters (72%; of the handyperson cervice users live alone.

r

23% live with a partner, 4% witk a rolative, 1% ‘ather!

Figure 5: Service user
household composition

B Alone

£2 Partner

£l Relabive

g8 Other

Tenure

Whi'st the handypersen servics provisior is not tenure specific, the vast majoricy
(797, of Preslon Csre anc Repair's sarv.ce users are owrer oocupiers (4% prvals
terants, 13% sociz tenante, 4% n/l).

BEFTETITT R TRt Ll TS B R e Pag 24

Page 106



Long term health condition and/or disability®

This is not recorded far all henayperson clients but where data is colieclea by the
agency, 49% of Prestun Care and Repair's service users (a3 service types) have a
iong term health condition anc 44% have z physical disabi 'ty firciud ng visua! anc/
or hearing impairmear:t),

Types of work undertaken by the handyperson service

The monitorng system records the type of job e.g. ‘General Repair’, alongside the
outcermics for the indvidual that resuited from thai joh.

For example, mending a broken stair fread would be recordes as a 'Gereral Ropair'
auipyl anc one of the sulcomes would be listed a2 'Fobs Risk Recuctionr),

A specific falls prevendon job e.g ciearing slippery rampirg, would be recarded as a
Falls Preventon Messure’ end the sutcome would be ‘Falls Risk Reduction’ Seme
:obis have more then ene oulcome.

Job Type - Output

Just over half (55%, 776/ 1.3%99) of the completec jobs in the 9 month moritering
perod were class ﬁe'1 as 'Goereral Repains! lﬂohngwnmmbove that "I aits Risk
Reductior” or elher heaith related improvemant may be 6 recorded Oulcome resutiing
frern a General Repair’ jobj.

Alter ‘General Repairs, the :argecl spacific job type recordad was ‘Fal s Prevenlion
Measure, accoungng for 21% (283 /1 2991 of jobs Lrdertaken (175 intornal ‘obs,
108 externai jobs).

Afurther 7% (2007 2,399] of jobs were grzh ra’l instailatiors w
prevent fz'ls.

hasohalp Lo

2O

OF the remainder of fobs 23% (1787 1.399) Wflc horme scourity reated measures,
2% {22/ 1.299) fre safety and 2% 3G/ 2,399; energy efficiency. Agan, there ate
Fealth retatzd /risk recuction cutcomes for thiese calegorias of oh.

In the case of the 'General Repairs’ jobs. it wes recordec that in 8% (109 / 1.299) of
nstances the proporty would have oc‘rerenromcj |f the repar bad not been
underizken.

Figure é: Type of handyperson job

B General repairs
t¥ Falls prevention measure

& Security

£ Fire safety

B Energy efficiency

D R T R I T IR O P I S R

Page 107

Rapn 27



Health and Social Care related Cutcomes

It should be noted that a job carried out by the handyperson may result in more than
one outcome for the older person. More thon one job may be undertaken for the
person thot resulls in g particulor outcome - e.g. a Healthy Home Assessment may
result in a package of measures/number of jobs being carried out to achieve the single
outcome of falls risk reduction’

Falls risk reduction

Reduced risk of fais was & key cutcome for 37% of o'der people witc hao work
carried out by the harcyparson service.

Ihe impacis and cost benefits of ihis specific folls reduction ouicome are analvsed in
aelall in Pert 4 of the report.

Hospital admission risk reduction/ faster discharge to home

Qutcomes for 17% of sider service users impactec upon their use of haspitar
provasion, with reducsd risk of hospits! admission 'n 12% of tases ard faster, safer
bospital discharge an outcoms in 5% of cases,

improved wellbeing

Improved weibeing was the outstanding cutcome of the handypersor service as
this was recorced 25 &n outceme for 0% of oider service users.

Safer, independent living

safer, ‘ndepercert iving was 2 recorded o tome For 23% of older sarvice users.

Reduced Isolation

Isolzlior reduclior was a recordsd outcome [or 9% of alder service Lsars.

Improved access to part of the property

Handyperson worle carried oul for 119 of cider service users improvec access Lo
part of their property.

Qutcomes for older people - service user's views

Service wser feecback was gatherec Lsng a pastsi survey form which vas senl to
Falf of oidar service users (348 of which 210 were completad, o return rate of 40%.

Survey [orme could be compleled anonymously or service users could chogse o
incude the’r name zrd they zlsc hae the option of reguesting furthor Felp. Same
forms were sert out fram/rawurnsd to the office of the evaluator (which was o o
aifferent part of the counney others were despatched fromy/rofurmee to Fresion
Cars and Repair. Thare was no difference in e rale of rewern thoth 60%), ror in
the levels of satisfaction/dissatizfachonsviews abaut the hardypersor provison
rezted o rhe despatch/retum locatior (21 200%).

Page 108



Quality of service

Sansfaction with the service was exceptionany highly rated.

» 100 of resvendents said thal they would yse e service azain,
= 100 of respondents woud recomniend the service fo oihers.

s 100% of respondenis rated hel K

05 eacrient or good (SO exceivnt, 12% good)

e

» OeM of respondenis roted the quatify of the handyserson jobis compleled for themas

excerfen: (85%) or goad {75%) Just 1 person said that the job comgleted was averosa).

“(The handyperson) was very polite, efficient and professional. Now we know who
to call when we need help”

S e A

“You afw;:zys know you are getting a good job done, not a botch job.”

Affordability of service

Askec to commert on the 2ffordabilty of the hanchyperson service, 80% rated this

as excellent, 14% as good, 4% s aversge.

Respordents were askee whether they would have had the buiiding ieb core
anyway, even if the handyperson servize had not beer avzliob e,

o &7% repued thiat they wauld not have had fie work done,

o 35% said ey word have fourad o wey ba gal work done.

For the 6 /% whao repiied thal they woulg not have had the wark cone, reasons
EVEN wers;

o F7X soid Dy vees sworsind about finding o good, wrasiworthy miiider

o 23% soid they coutd not gfford to have the work carrivd oul 10t a commerciad rake)]

s 9% <pid orher reasor

i)

mutn 358 s gave more thon ong reasan)

“Buitders normally don'’t like smaif jobs so it is difficult to get anyone - or they rip
. youoff. Two months ago a locksmith charged me £145 lo repair (not replace) the
(front) door tock as the key kept turning but wouldn’t unlock the door”

¢ "It is hard to find sumeone reliable and trustworthy io do add jobs.”

Page 109

Hulness of the Kandyperson who underlook ihe work

TR IR R AT

g e



Impact on older people’s wellbeing

The feedback form responses cigary incicalea thal for oloer peopie knowing that
the Preston Care anc Repar handyperson was there when they needed help was
an extramely ‘mportart z2spect of the service.

o 25% saii that knowing the Praslon Cars and Repor handyoerson servize was thers

inade ihen less warried about Hheir bome

e A% apid i didd not migke a difference

The loptiona] written commerts on the feedback farms cearly lustrated the
extert of warry about gething small jobs srourd the house carried out.

The outstanding feziuie of the handyporson service that steod out from the
feedback form commerts is the reassurarce anc peace of m'nd that resuts from
Faving Preston Care and Reparr o burr e, an organisation that is trostwaorthy and
geing to help peop e w'th esesential jobs in the home at ar affordabe cost.

From both the feedback forms and also Lhe interviews {celaiied in the next sechon)
this emerges as the greatest perceived benefil of the hancypersan sarvice from Lhe
perspective of older sarvice users,

_ As [ live on my own (with health problems) | sometimes feel vulnerable. | can trust
. Preston Core and Repair to send mie a vetted, trusiworthy worker,

1 would turn to no-one else for reliability, kindness and understanding, { am a
disabled 60+ lady, a widow, and fee! safe with vour workers.

i The jobs | had done muay tiot seem much, but ! have been worrying because they
1 didn't get sorted. Thank vou.

‘Although these jobs were smail they have been getting on my nerves - always
would have managed to do most myself, but reglise | can't now and am so
grateful for the help!

t Tt is good to know | can get those small jobs done by someone | can trust, gs most
tradesmen don’t want to do small jobs. It makes me feel more independent as !
+ have just had 2 new hips + 2 broken bones in my wrist.

U PR —

i Tam very elderly and live alone. [ find it very difficult to find trustworihy builders
. to de large and small jobs around the house.”

g ‘Due to my health conditions doing the important small jobs was a source of
i anxiety. Finding Preston Care & Repair was a blessing.”

! 'Not as stressed now jobs have been done, | no longer have to warry ahout them!

‘Without the support of your service, | really would not know where fo turn. | do

try to do things but | suffer from very arthritic hands. i
Append'x 2 lists fireher comiments by sarvice users snd carers writier on the

leedback forms which provided oual'lative irformatior aboud ibe valve =nd impact
upon incividuals for this evauation.

Page 110



fhe fird ng thar a key berefit of handypersen services '« the relief of worry chout
the homez, anc erharcemoent of cider peopic’s sense of independence and cortrol,
accords wiih the headline conciusion of pravious handyparson service svaluations,
roted T Part 1, including Brenne'ly et al {2005), Acams (2006) and DCLG (2012

One to one interviews with service users

As part of the cua llalive data colechion semi-strucitred one to ane interviews
took place in the baines of 5 service users, plus one interviess was corducten by
le'ephone (the clierl's prefarred option sue te ber Puchand's cemantia).

Selection of interviewees

Baseo en the characier'stics of oloer service users anc job ypes recorded on the
iatahase, combingd with the results of the service user feeaback forms, a number
of issues were ‘derhifiesd as being worthy of exploration through one ko cne
intervievss wilh cider service Lsers, The interviewes charzcleristics' criteria were:

1. Willing to be inferviewed without risk of causing distress
2. Handyperson job completed within last 8 months

3. Over 65yrs

4. Single householder/or carer

5. Home owner

6. Lowincome

Emarging issucs idontined from the jobs/ clients detabsse returns ard the cient
feedback farms and which pesced to be explored through niervisws were;

i} Value/impact of handyperson service as a trusbaorthy & reliable source of
practical ees'stance that orabics oider parson ta feei in cantro. of hotsing
situation, reduces worry £ siress/ anxicty about the home. Thiz was emeorging as
a particu'arly important issue for a large sub-sel of handyperson service users
i.e woimen over 80vrswho were virg glore.

ii} Value/impact of an ‘open access’ {iz not I'mited to reforrals by stasutory
agencics) handyperson service for repear vsers - parfcularly for singlofisoiated /
lower ircome oder home owners who have liinfied obber sources of practical
support (e.g. ro/faw ciose Tamily membears living nearbv).

iii) Reduced risk of fall/accident/injury/hospital admission  this was identified 2=
an outcome of the handvperson job in o significant propartion of czses.

External, impartial input into selection

fo bring an externzl impartizl parspective fo the process of dentncetion ard
sglection of potentiz irierviewess the loca sgency slaf were asked to work with
the voinreer acacemics whe acied as independert, impartial edvisers to the
salection procass

Lopssaderpma T gpn e Ao N RENINT A ROYY ST AT RSP R  es

Page 111



Together they idertfied potenda’ nterviewees whose prones were ndicative of
the above fezturesfissuca/characteristics (due to travel ard Hime constraints, all
interviewees livea in the Barough of Prestony. From this potential pcoi the
scacemcs then selzcted 6 priority irterviewees with others a5 a fall back if some
of the first 6 ware LnavaiableLnvw lling Lo be interviewed.

The ‘ocal agercy stzil then conlacied potential interviewees by ielephone (usirg
standardised script prempts) and then sent out an appointment letter using text
prepared by the evaluator.

Asngle evaiuaror carred oot 2l of the irterviews. these wege semi-sbrurbured
using 2 skandard set of opsn questions,

Interviewee characteristics

Al interv'ewees except one were widowed cider wemen, ali living aione in cwner
occupiad homes.

Their ages were 05 y1s, 65 yrs, 75 vrs, 84 yrs, 90 yrs, 92 vrs,

The twe voungest women faced the greatest heatth problems.

Four interviewees {unprompied) spoke uf their exparierce of cating noivding:

- aurrent v caring fer hushand with camentia

- cared for a serousy cisahled hushand for 20 years

- looked after hushanc for 16 vears afier he had a stroke
- Inoked after busbane with demenra uobii be dice

Findings

Aspiration to maintain independence in the current home

During the irterviews, withaut any prompting, a'l interv’ewses expressed a strong
cetarmination to mairte™ thair independancz and conlirue to lve i their current
Fome. At agan urpromplee, exprassed a significant emotional altachment Lo the
Fame epd neigbborbood,

“I moved here with my husband for our retirement, I'm very happy in my little flat
and [ don't want to move.”

“We bought this place when it was being built 54 years ago now, and my husband
designed parts of it so it would be good for us even when we were ofd, such as
putting the sockets part way up the wall. He was an engineer. There’s @ bus stop
at the end of the street and | can get out every day. 1 would never want to move.”

1 B L O K R R

e practica chalenges faced with regard to marsging their hame.

Allintery'ewees cormentee that their Busband used to do the vast maiority of the
DIY jobs sround the home or, in the caze of ‘arger works, would deal with buitdirg
contracteys.

‘Page 112

Pagn

i



Even where some had dong cocesions’ DIY jobs themseives in the past, they
described how artheins, ‘oss of strength/grip, poor oyoesight andéor reduced
mobility now made most DY jobs imposs ble.

"My husband used to do everything, so it makes alf the difference to me just
knowing they (Preston Care and Repair} are there. It makes me feel that | can
manage, fi is such a relief when you have never had to do these things and you
don't know where to turm to.

AR R B
EE-STT TR AP B

Vulnerability to unscrupulsus builders

Allintery ewees lunprompted) recounted had exparerces wher they hac randomby
seleclad o contraclor 2.8 lrom a Lelephone cirsctory or zovertiisement.

Being overchargsc for burdng work was the most commen experience. VWhilst
rone bad beer subject to 2 major ‘scamd which might warrart investigation by
Tradiry Standards, they had ol realved when they were being overcharged, but
were very aware of the'r vulnerebity s older womar Ivirg slore when it came 1o
dealing with the huilders.

“When | paid him what | knew was too much for the job | could hear my
hushand’s voice in my head tefling me | was being overcharzged, but what could 1,
an 89yr old woman on her own, do?”

I needed to have the central heating boiter serviced so | picked someone out of a
tefephone directory. When he came | had a bad feeling about him but didn’t know
what to do. He serviced’ the boiler and that’s when the troubie started - the
heating no longer worked even though he had charged me ¢ foriune. That's when
I found out about Preston Care and Repair. They put me in touch with a
trustworthy chap who did a proper job and got the heating working agafn, though
i 1t took him a while fo sort out tha mess that the ather one had made.”

o D T B G (R OB R LSRR N R

Whal is slriking is how these campelent. capabis, incapendzant oloer women ail
experiencad a subtie sensa of threat from such encounters with disreputabic
bub.ders. Al felt & strong sanse of vudrerabiiity to retrbution sholc they refuse to
pay Lp,

i
i

ERTRLEH

“What could | do faced with a burly chap demanding maney when { live on my own?”

The handypersan serv'ce 5 cicary provid ng a very ‘mporeant service in rerms of
consumar protection anc recucing risk of financic abuse, particuiarly of ‘olcer old
singe woman tving alone.

Page 113



Risk of falls

Ail intervowaas wore vory aware of the risk of fais and injuries ar home and ware
duly cautious.

23

I'm very careful, don't stand on the chair any more to reach things.” §

‘Glad I'm in a bungalow and don't have stairs.”

"I'm scared stiff every time | have a bath - If | fall over everything could come
down lile a pack of cards.”

“I daren't climb up a step ladder. If | fell off | could end up in a care home and | -
don't want that to happen.”

k|
4
4
i
i
E
i
“
‘:1
g
4

Not being a bother

Spontanecusly, without a st questior o any prompts, ail interviewses mentioned
how they valied the handyperson because they graatly gishked baving to keep on
zsk'ng’ any time-presse:] and busy relatives, friends and neighbours 13 do even the
unskilied litde jobs, suzh as changing 2 light bulb. 7his z'early undermined
individua = seif estoem, meking them fesl deperdent, 8 nuisance or a burdzn.

"l just feel so awjul having to keep asking (an older cousin) ta do these things -
he's not well himself and has his own family to look after”

"My neighbours are just so busy. They work really long hours, getting home from
work lafe, and | just can't ask them to come and do jobs for me.” i

“My son has Parkinson’s end my daughter lives miles away - | hate to bother them.”

Being zble to manage ther Fome themsalves through Preston Care and Repair's
bandyperson senvice gave inlerviewses & strong sense of cortral and irdepencence,
rather than fecling 5 burder/dependent.

Not expecting something for nothing - and willing to pay what they can afford

With the charging stnucture varying accordmg e bype of job snd individua-
circuimstances, somg interviewees had paic for some elemeant of the harcypersen
jabs they had cone. Neary ai alder service users pay for materiais needed for the
geners repa’r /mantenaece work and there is & var'able labour charge sccording
Lo work lypes (described 'n earlier seclion in conreclion with e scope of =
Sodia Servicos contractec ¢ emerts) and persona 18soures,

Anyone who coule afford to pay something, even if thoy viere Bving on tinvtad
Mmeans, sxpressed @ wi lingness Lo pay 2 manageshle amount.

i T really don't mind paying something. Yes, money is tight but | have a little bit
4 saved for a rainy day - though when vou don't know how long you gre going to
1 live you don't know how long you have to make that bit of savings last, do you?”

TR TS

Coearlywhat such 2n amaount is judged to be wil vary fram one individual to ancther
(@though commerdial rates were evidenty shove what 2 of the intervicwees coule
afford. What szamsc 'mpartant to the older peeple ‘nterviawed is that thay were
ot perceived as just expecting ‘scmething for rothing.,

P S SR LRt e R R e I T e T

Page 114

Do e ¥l

LTl



The importance of having specific, trustworthy individuals to turn to - peace of
mind and reassurance

the reassurance and peace of mind that resulted from having a trustwaorthy,
refabye source of ha p with meintziring repairing/adeptirg the hame Fad emerges
as an extrems=iy impartant faclor in the feedbaclk forms,

For ali of the imerviewees this was Cearly ore of ihe most vaiwed anc impaor Lant
aspect of the bandyperson service. ana in relstion 1o the Preston Care enc Repair
services Tt generzl

Knowing ihat (he Fandyperson service is there (a3 wel as Preslon Care and Repair
being there to adviseshelp with ali repar and adaptstion types of work) has & great
impact on clder pecpie’s mental health and we:being. The qualitative commernts
cleariy i iustrate thas:

Ei "If (Preston} Care and Repair stopped | would really struggle.”

“If they thandyperson/Preston Care and Repair) wasn't there | would constantly
warry about finances and praciicalities if something went wrong.”

“It [the handyperson service] has been a lifesaver.”
‘1 find it very reassuring that | can call on (name of handyperson)”

“If they (PC&R) weren't there | just don't know who | would turn fo.”

“It Is such a relief to know they are there when you haven't had to deal with these
things (repairs) before.”

D B D ¢ B ST B B R BB £ L U . g

Choice, independence and control

IJirecr secess ro fLe. beirg able ro directy telnpbons] & small, local and trusteo
orsanisation, often speaking stiaiphit away 10 & nomed persor who knows you and
then visitec by a hardyperson who you get to krow, emergad as a particulerly
important aspact of the Prestor Care 2nd Repair service.

“Farniliar faces to {John} means a lol. All ihe iradesmen that we have had through
Care & Repair are very considerate to (John's} disabilifies.”

“What | personally like regarding your service is the personal attention one receives,
particuarty | am impressed in your excellent service you offer. Not only is "iob well
done” but the type of staff you employ always willing to advise and friendly too.
Over the years I've got to know (name of HP}  lock forward to his visits, please
convey my thanks to him.”

e S T
ELe TR S R Eo T 0 R A 1

As is the case for most of Preston Care and Repait's older service users, sl except
one of tha interviewszes dic ot receive halp lrom Social Services anc would nat
contemplate st.ch a rectest, 'of along want an ‘assessmant’, parceiving th's as loss
of control/capahility/indepandence,

This kas ‘mportant imp-icalions in terms of oper access to the Preston Care and
Repair handyperson service, offering direct te ephoreshumar contact with: namerd
ncwvidua s, Statutory, referral-only prevision woulc not bz at all welcorned, and

R S i B i e e R T e L

Page 115



wehste service access would exclude the large maierity, given the iow rates o
interret use by older peop e, particular'y those over 80vs, which make up neariy
half of the handyperson service users.

Meeting Outcome Targets

fhe outcome data analysis described ahove, the feardback form responses and the

face to fzce nlerviews demensiratas that the project met both of its Qutcome

Targets:

OUTCOME 1. Maore oder people are able o live safety, seurely ancd well in ek own
Hoenes,

QUTCOME 2. Qieher pivple wehowish (@ ive indepesdently i+ Hheir own komios have ¢
beiler quotity of He

INDICATORS:

« Quonttabve: Highi voiune fob /iase autpuis lonnual equivaint i 1,845 jois
gasirrig P29 oider people): the outstanding ovtcore reportad by 0% of older

~ons

seaple vas “mpraved walibeing, for 37% an outconie was reduced risk of folis 23%
of cases works specifically enabled safer independent livirg

-~

+ Quaoitative: Servite wser interdews anid ieedback farm comments clearly illustrated
importance of hondyoerson secvice i terms of eace of mind, redieed worry’
main!giaing ronin and ingep

service ro othiers fand would Sse it agoin themisehes)

s Ey Al . . 1L -
» 1G0% of respondenis would recommend Lhe
)

Involving volunteers in handyperson service provision

Process

Orie of thz glmis of the Rayre Founcation's funding was Lo enabie Preslon Care
end Repair ro trind irvovemert of vo urteers in the delivery of the hardyperson
sanvice.

The agency teok a cautious approach Lo this, starling by putiing inio place
recornmznded good practice measures e.g. with regard to the recriunent and
sugport of vo'unteears: darity zhbout the scope of work that cauid be urdzrtaken by
& volunteor; creatirg naw policies ard amerding otbers; ater ng s insurances ete.
The ;ob mon'tor'ng system was alse amended (o capiure the number of jobe
carrizd cut wh ¢h rva ved 2 volurtesr.
The first voiunteer recruited was 2 recent v retired ganaral builder whe had
undertsken wark for Prestor Care and Repair service users. He was muiti-skilled
and a clear agreement was reached about how much time he wished to give, the
seape of work he waoid vpdertake ete.
[his workea well for hath partics and thare were ¢ ear benehits in terins of
hancyperson job cutputs as limitec acditiona teckrical input was requrec by paid
aneyperson stef® e.g. job supzrvision. The vo Lnteerirg manager interviewed the
clunteer pertudicely ta chadk that he was happy with the arrargement,

!:r“!f';‘l:=:“ e B B T I T I R PR I

Page 116



Efforts were made to recruit addtional skiled buicing trages volunteers e.g.
through zdvertisements 'r huiiders ingrchartz, contacting contractors with whom
the agency worked to see whather they bad warkers coming up to retirement, but
this dic not result 'n further skibed handyperson velunteer recruitmeant.

However, a retired volunteer was reguiied whe hao worked a5 @ cazeworker fur a
rumber of Care & Repair agencies prior fo retiremeni, Har volunteering involves
sceomparying Preston Cere end Repeair stz at pronle raising events, helping at
information stards etc, to meke more oluer people aware of the handyperson
service and the wider services of Presiar Care and Repair, Where a handypersan
identifiz: zn cider person who kas other housing, financia: and support neads thoy
refer the case back to the agercy. This volunteer was zble to talk to ard support
such hanchypersen service user s who needed sddtiona’ housing he'p ard advice.

With regarc to vounger peopie, the agency manager embarked on negotiations
with organisations who provide training in manual trades and which organise work
placements arc apprenliceships. The aim was o secure apprentceship piacaments
with the bandyparson team. Prestor Vocationa! Cartre arranged ore work
experience placement arc a young person spent 4 months working witl the
hanayperson team 2 days a week. This worked well and he learned a great deat
from this arrangement - 5o much so that be found full trme employvinent prior to
comp-etion of the placement, An appranticeship ard a furtherwork exparience
placement dic net worl out cue to change of persena circumsianses f2r both
incividua s,

For a range of reasars, rol the 'east of which was a radical charge te the ratona!
apprenticeship scheine, Furiber apprenticeships d'd not come to friidor during the
evaluation periad.

Resulis

There were active vo unteers during 6 months of the ¢ month montaring pericc.
Ehere wiss vonteor irput ints 234,608 100 50 ely the vesunienr, 34 w'th
veluntzer working wil pad techinician, This is gotivaert to 268 jols i 22 mionths.
Applying the estimated average rationa job vave eleiled ir Parl 4} of £90.50 per
job te the 12 month equivalort jobs (268} produces a vauz of voluntesr input of
£24,354.

The Prester Care and Repair management comm 'ttee, after some ‘nitiz corcerns,
are now convinced of the banefis of voluntaer involvemenl and keen Lo expand
this area of zchvity

The programime Inet 'ts quzltative target of recruiting and retsining volunteors
who carried oul wark as part of the handyperson {gam arc there were also clearly
identifizd cost berefits resuiticg from this input.

Page 117



Learning

Fresron Cere and Repair, in ine wich a number of orhor agencies, is facing increasing
challenges with regard to recriiting paid skilied builders, let 3'one unpsid ones, a3
there is & skill shartage 'n (he bui dirg ‘ndustry, anc many competing 1ocal
employment cpporturities.

Those with a building trade, particuarly muiti-skilled buiiders, are ie high demand
as there 's a growing fabour shortage, herce anyone who wants to work even pert
Hme can relatively sssily firg paid empoyment.

These fectors, when combined with other coveopmenrts, such z: changss
welfare benefits, includine the rising pension age, tovgher rules with regard to both
unempicymenrt and gisabidry herefta, 25 weil as limited privare pensior provision
i1 he buiiding ragles, alse resulis in people with 2 buiiding skill contirting To wark
for longer (f they are physically abie to da so), thereby reducing the potentia. pool
of skiles., At ard well, vounger old’ bardypersor voluntesrs.

Mhere is a so iower “fo expectancy, ano particeiary lower heaithy Hfe expectancy,
zmanget manual workars, Builcers wha want or have to refire aftor 2 Hefime ‘on
the tocls’ will ofien have hezlth and molxlily problems e, arthrits, joint pain, oss
of grip/mmuscle tere ete, and thay are not ab'e o corticue to do manual work, or
ct least arz orly zhie to do very I'mitad jabs.

With regare to yaunger neapie coming into tha lrhaur marker, again, there seems
o be limited appetila for builing trades, excepl perhaps lor thase Lat are
specialist ard perceivec 1o Pave Weh earning potential, a.g prumbing and more
comp ex eectrical. The more generat 'edd Job’ domesiic buding work feld
striuggles 1o attract a rew generstion.

Work pacements of just 2-3 weeks of unskilied youny people are not particuiarly
benehcia to Care and Repair sgencles. Whilst they may be helpful to the voung
person, they take up the va'uable time of skil ec hardypersars, which needs to be
prioritised for cerrying out the essentizl Fandyperson johs for o'der peaple.

The rationa! changes to apprentdoeships have not belpec and revision of the
systern wouid be resces bafore small volurtary organisatiors coud effectively
parficipate.

Nevertheless, whilst noting thess issues and provisos, the benefits of well plarrec
and managed voluntser mvaivement it handypersor anc wider Care anc Repair
provision are evident from rhis triai ane the right volunteor cleariy offers 3 Lsefu
sdditionai resourae, 5 waell as parsonaily herefifing from the experienen c.g.
through maintaining socias cortact, @ sense of purpese and achievement etc.

Page 118



Preston Care and Repair Handyperson Evaluation Case Studies

Crocqrp e = s gl commm ey s femimn cdautsnoddbyem s Dagq 29

Page 119



“The toitet was i;f:‘;md z_mﬁé mz zﬁs&apam%e i ﬁmg‘%: ﬁ gsa%am?,;
.;szm’ ??(’ W@@fsﬁz e o i

thmugh remauai ef hazard on stair:
: dder or tr;ppmg gpina dark room whan Eile

A S RS il WS e R BRI S e SIS I T T A RE M B Y B S YCRE, T O P I SR Dr--ui:"r

Page 120



: _ngR£Edﬂﬁﬂim gaﬁ
%m fi?&” m}r{s: w::zs }’ i}ﬂsﬁé’*d }"iﬁ :fmmfzdeﬁ ihf

R Nty vhonemmterrne s wRuo o s Bagn L7
L B ! ! AEL L

Page 121



lmproved mental heatth and wellbeing - . Reduced anxiety and feeis better abie to.
ccntmue to live md@pendenﬂy and safeiy m c}wn home a{one fhmugh reassurance,ﬁ

Crnvprpa e e g tonmgin s gy femesw saarpgue semg iy pr=ige Saen &2
ot 5] _ LA ! £ 3 v s & o (f o dpfl =L

Page 122



T

R S et

Page 123




C(—fi»

[ e o BT T TR oA epT A heme s cl et sl by s e Papa L4
t 1 ¥ : o b o R Fagt

Page 124



Whilst this evaluation of the handyperson service considers a range of impacts on
older people, as well as wider benefits to related services, cost benefitis a particular
concem for statutory funders.

One of the aspects of provision which has a stronger evidence base is prevention
of falls,

In this section we examine in detail the impacts and cost benefits of the
handyperson service specifically in the context of falls prevention and then apply
accepted madels of the resulting savings to the NHS and social care.

The high cost of falls

Fal's ard fracwres ere 2 common and serious hea'th issue faced by o der people
The human cost can ‘reluds pan, njury, 1o3s of conhdence, emotional distrass, inss
of incependence ana mortaity.

For haa th services fal'z are both Pigh voltme anc expensive, with ee estimated
cosl {5 the NHS of more thar Z2.23bn per year. According L2 Public Health Epglang
{(PHE. 2017}

e ifere arg arouna 295,000 falls-reloted emerzency hosgital odmissions in England
amiong potients aged 65 and oider

ex

 Unoddvessed falls hawards i ihe tome 6re estimaled 1o cost the NHS in fngland F4355m

= tne tolal cost of fragility Froctures (o the UK has heen estimated of £4.46r which

iniudes £1 dbe for sogiol Core,

PHE has identihed fa s pravertion as cre of six {op areas where preventative
mrervertons cota save money to the Peaith andzor care system withn s nve-vear
lime scae.

A Public Hzalth ambiugn has been sst Lo achizve a 10% reduction in the number

of iniurtes due to Falz In people aged 65 - by 2020/ 21 tllrough improve:d and
maore ca-ordinated preveniative services.

The scale of the problem

e Caoh vear areund SU% of peopie aged $5yrs + and 50X of those agea §0+yrs
exnoricnice o foll INICE, 20150

o Fedls are theereason for aver half of hosnital edrissions for aocidontal ) iy end for
10-25% o ambuiance cail-ouis oy neapiz 6yre and over {13H, 20091

Aoy i

o Hip fracivres cost over £2 pithon paa. - or £6 midlion each Jay - most 05 9 resuli of
falis {PHE, 701 7}

5 b AR et e AT Ty P 5T} o - Sy amn by s domd, §po
s A current frencs within fwo years eearty 1000 odder progie o day wili be taken into
i . Al A s e s
nosoiia! after o fal 1LGA, 2018
ot B R R T i P ':'\_'!-'_“3\1:.»_'—_"- ERTITSE £ LRNCTC I S I SO

Page 125

[3]
™.
Lt



The housing connection to falls

The vasl majorily of fal's (ake place in the home wilh the miosl sericus irjures
caused by fatls on stairs or steps [ROSPA & RCEM, 2017)

= P———— O R e S R

wh
<o

¥ Home

o
o}

id Leisure

[
[

i Education
B Workplace

Attendance rate
per 1.000 population
[#+]
<

[
<

(=]

6569 7072 7579 8084 85I
Age groups

S e et ang gy o e « ~ SN - o189 s g ey b omen PN B T —— o bt

sutrce AdL stsidance races por 1LGOD poputalion, by locatian of urinlesiional njury amony older
& 3 / i aE aopyif e & . - prY f. RS

pacphe. fram Oxdord University Fosoitals NHS T notgoney Denorireards, Inhn Rad i and

Fioron General Jan §, 30rd 0 v Der 5, 2015

To reduce falls risk it 's increasingly recognised that 3 muitifeceted approad is
reeced, roluding 'mproving o'cer peopie’s strength ard halarce aloresice Fome
bazard assessment with remedal messures. Targered intervertions for those imost
at risk, as well as a comprehensive past-fal respense, are aso key eements,

The PHE Natioral Falls ard Fracture Consensus Slatement (PHE, 2077
recommends the commission'ng of services that provide:

& dn agoropnsote teegonse atfending geopiz who higve latler;

Fad 4 [ - e - P R L SRS Sy [
o mvthifaclorial vicl assessrnon and Yoy and evidencs bated aifovedd in Longs

for those of nigh risk of folls

» ewdence hased sirengif and balance pragramimes and opparlunilies for hose ol low

ta modarate risk of fals

» hiome hazord ossesseent ond impravemen! prograrames

Handyperson services reducing falls risk

As dascribea above, an in cepth Deglifv Homes Assessment is offered ro ali Proston
Care and Repair harcyperson service users (and carried out for the msjority). Staf?
are traned to underlake this assessment of risks in people’s homes srd, most
importantly, to carry out the necessary remedial inzasures as part of the
tangdypersor service,

This approach has resuted in more syslematic recorcing of the outcomes of
bancypersar interventions. |t aiso provides 2 more relizbe sssessment of restlting
falls risk reduction arc hence & betier foundation far modzling cost benefis.

R e R I NE N Bt R B Il SRS SR AU ST B S RV e

Page 126



Applying cost benefit models to the Preston handyperson
service outcomes

A 201Z Cochrane Collehoration syslemabic reviaw or ‘nterventions te prevent falis
in communty dwelrg adu'ls (Gillespie, 2022) foung that kome lazard assessmert
and mogification carried eut by occuparioral therap'sts reduced the rate of f2is by
19% and he risk of ialfing by 12%.

it Is worin noting Inawnearly half [46%] of the Presion Care & Revair handyperson
SErvice Lsers ore over B0vrs of age, nalf 9% have wong tern; teaith condifions and/or
disabifity, and many have alreacly hod a [ail (hence their referral Lo the handypersen
service). The risk of [alling for tre over S0vris age group Is significanity higher than [hat
far ¢l peante 65yrs and over i.e. 50% aninue! falls risk for ¢lf 80 rvre v 30% for 45+yrs
(NICE, 2013). Consequently. far this higher risk falls sroun of hendypersor service users,
the risk rechiction Impact is fikely to be higher than the Cochianie 19% reguced rate of
fails for aii older age groups.

Mgore recently. in 2018, Public Healih Englard published A Reiurn on Investment
Tool for the Assessment of Fails Pravention Progromimes for Oider People Living in the
Comemunity [PHIE, 2018]) which details the cost benents of a range of falls
prevertion measures.

This Tog! idertilied Home Assessment anc Modification (HAM} as aving the

highest cost bereft profie of a' the fai s recduchor ‘nierventions. with z financial
RO of £3.17: £1 ard a societal ROl of £7.34: £1.00.

Figure 7: Return on Investment (ROI) Tool: Assessment of Falls Prevention Programmes for
Older Peopla Living in the Community

Dntervention” |

esGontiiaM) "o BRI 6100 e a0

Soree

v Engloned {00 8 A Return oo dovestmani Too! for the Assessmant of Falis
Prevention Prog '

N Ihe Copn

Home Assessment ard Modification (HAM) intervantion was found to produce a
23% recduction in both the number of falls which requirsd a hospitat admissien
{over 2 vears) end aiso the number of serisus lalls,

it is interesting Lo note that the New Zealand RCT qescribad in Part 2 {Keali et al,
2014} identified a 26% reduction n injuries atiribulabie to home falis that neaded
medical treatiment fo'lowing the standardised, relatively minor, fal's preventior
heme modifications.

As noted previcus v, the ERE Housing Hezlth and Safety Rating Systern {(HHSRS)
madet prosvides a framework for quantifyrg total irst vear haaith and socia: care
costs reswitirg from fa is of different levels of severity.

Page 127




= £39,908 for serious fa'ls iriury
» E6464 for moderale fa s injury
= £1.545 for minor falls injury

cfng the Cochrare 29% fa s
on rzte to the Preston bandyperson

Below we appty these BRE SRS cos
reduction rate and the HAM 23% falls re
falis reduction cases.

trgs
duc

i} Applying the 2012 Cochrane Collaboration systematic review 19% reduction

As dete’led in Part 3, fals risk reduction was a specific outcome for 37% of the
Prestan Care & Rep:ur handypersen service users. With a full year equivalent of
929 uldey service users, this means that in a year 344 ulder poeple had recuced
lal's risk as a result of the hazard remova! ioh carried out by the harcypersor.

aenr

Anplying the Cochrane 19% fewer falls rate of recuction Lo these 344 handypersan
service users enables ug to calculate s conservative estimate of potentis savirgs
spacthcally for these fa s risk reductior ceses hoting agzin that this is a concenvative
estimate gven Lhal kalf of Fardyparsen service users are at FFigher risk of {3lls e,
over 80yrs, with muitple lorg terin heslth condifion: and/or disshled:,

If we make the conservative assumption that just 1 in 10 of these falis wou'd have
resultec 'n serious injury, and of the remzincer balf would result 'n modarate fails
inLry ard belf ir minoe fa's ‘rary, applying BRE HHSRS costings show- that total

T of 929 alder service isers - 344 pider servite sers where falls riskwas reduced T

APPLY Cathrane 19%to the 364 i, 199% fesier have Falgy
1955 of the 364 reduead Falls T older scriicy g S A S fatlinyr g5 02
Yr 2 {reatment cost savings from reduced falls injury (a1 t-,rpes) for lust 65 of the

344 falls tisk recuction bandyperson service users, basee on Cochrane 19% falls
recuction rate, produces 2 year 1 savipg i treatment costs of £472,242.

Figure 8: Savings from falls risk reduction - Madel 1 - Cochrane Review

£187.456°

T b Umr f 1 T e Y e gyt Yot At iwe e ey ol Trpaa p T Baen L8
! il eI ! i ! ATl =g

Page 128



i) Applving the PHE reported Home Assessment and Modification
23% falis reduction

The Home Assessment and Mocificatior (HAM) 235 Talls rate of reduction provides
& clearer framawork for tha types of / severity of the falls infuries preverted
(sericusirequiring hospitalisstion) which also firks to the BRE HHSRS's falls severity
costing model,

The HAM model rotes that non-sarious falls (8C% of all Tails) are assumed to
recuire no input fraom medica or social care senvices and hence there are no costs
for these everts, bui they note that ir rezlity, nor-Tjurious fails can kave ar
impact on peeple’s lives, such as incressirg snxiety, funchion:| decire ard social
zolatior. However. these outcomes are not inctuded in the znalysis, hence the
focus on sarious fals

Peopie who suffer e serious fali (20% of ali falls) are assumac 1o reguire a general
practiicrer (GP) appoirtmant (57%), an ambularce call-cut (62%) or atendance at
an accidant & emergency (AGF] department (80%). "he HAM inlervention was
mast efective where targoted at those at highest risk and where a fult bome
assessmoent was made (in the HAM stedy by an OT with folow up undertaken to
check that the medificetion had been carrieg out), The Preston handvpersen
service not only carrizs out a full home risk assessment but aiso undertakes the
recessary remedial works.

HAM reduced boih the incicence of falls injury resu ting ir hospitalisation and also
the ircidence of serious falls by 23%.

Anplying th's 22% rate of reduction to the Preston handyperson cases whare lowsar

falis riskowas a spaaific outcome rasulfieg from the completed bandyperson job
erables us to caculate potential savings. Again, it is imporlant to note the profte of
the handyperson service users which puts them inta @ higher fails risk category i.e.
half are over 80yrs, have inuitipe ‘ong fenm health coriticrs andfor are visabled
etc and so are mora in ine with the tIAM interventons impact for pecple who

bave bad & prosious fail.

Page 129



Utilisirg the HAM 23% reductior combined with the BRL HEHSRS mode serious
fal's iniury Year 1 ireatment cost of £3% 906 produces z total =aving of £638494
resultirg from Lhe reduction ir serious falls requiring hospitaiisation impacting on

thase 16 b rizk older service users.

Whiist mnor injury reductions were rot guantifizd o the HAM study, given the
high rare of faling amongst those 80=yre (50% pa) 2nd the prevalence of {bis age
group using the hancyperson services, thore sre very Hkely £ be furthor NES &

sc:uai care: savings due to the reduction of fails resteting N ess serious injury.

The r<k of injury cue to fal's was reduced for a further 275 o'der hanovparsan
service users 1344-49 = 275). Applyrg the BRE HHSRS model £1,545 minar ’njur\,f
first vesr freztinent costs to just 20% of the remaring group where fals risk was
recuces {20% of 275 = 55) produces a furiher polartiai first year saving of £84 975

Added to the serious njury with hospital sation risk reduction cases Lh's araduce

@ totel Year 1 treatmant costs saving of £723,471 £4328,4%4+ £04,975) st for tf
handypersan service cases where the work undertaker resulted in s gamcqﬂ{ falls
iniury risk reduction (71 out of 929 older people benefiting i rarge of ways from
the handyperson <ervicel,

Figure 9: Savings from falls rislc reduction - Model 2 PHE/HAM

Cost benefits of handyperson service specifically for falis risk reduction cases

As noted ahove, the recert Pubiic Hea th Fnglard falis reduction interventions
relurn on irvestmenl znatve’s [ound thal the Home Assessment and Medification
(HAN) interverbon ha¢ the highest cost henefil profile compared w'th other fails
recucton ntervertions, with a inancizl return or investment of £3.17: £1 and 2
sacietal return or irvestment of £7.34: £1.00,

Due to Lhe competilive operaling environmert for home improvemer! agercies
and handypercon services, and when urit cosee are 2 key foctor in awsarding
handypersen service contrzcts, it was gecided that il wouid be unsthical to publish
the prec’se costs of cefivering the Preston Care and Repair handypersan service.
These unit costs ars knowr 1o the ocs. commissiohers and they can thorefore
apply these to the HAM RO rates to calculate the iocal cost benefils.

However, we are tble to provide ndicstive savirgs based or naticn:! average
costings for hanoyperson service provisiop, ard a+o to :_:,zmmer‘-t that the Preston
Care and Repair bandyperson service is 'eghly competitive in comparison o thase
national averages.

Ti-teavee oo whore i ars asd oy tts 2L cre ek i TP bt Dagm 5¢

Page 130



Costing handyperson service provision

The iast government commissionad comprehensive national survey of
handypersan joly costs was undertaken by Foundations in 2007 (CLG, 2008).
Thiz survey founc that the average hardvperson Lolel iob cost wes bebweer
£/7008 E£90.60. the ameurt vared for 2 number of reasers, but the raport
identifnad a different average according ¢ urban ve rurar vs semi-rurai setdngs.

Figure 10: Cost comparisons between services in rural, semi-rural and city settings

The Prestan Care & Rapair service covers a mix of rural ang town areas and so we
applied the semi-rural rate of £70.08 average job cost.

Using 2 bistorical infatior caculator (Thisiscaoney,, £1 i 2007 '3 eguivzlent to
£1.38ir 2018, whch produces zn average semi-rura’ handyparson job cost tocay
of £90.50,

Preston Care & Repair handyperson service compietea 1,399 jobs for cider peopie
in 9 months, a 12 merth aguvalent of 1,865 johs mafing, as per eariier seciion, thar
in aadition jobs are undertaken for olker age groups as well as directly cormissioned
tasks where the level of outauf and outcome related data required for His evaluation is
not recorded), Multiplyirg this number of jsbs by the up-raled raticnal average cost
of £90.50 produced a tota annual handyperson service dalivery cost of £168.782.

1,865 jobs x £90.50 = £168,782

Cost benefit applying Mode! 1 {Cochrane)

Applying (s madel, wilh a 19% fa'ls reguction lacross ali Talis injury tvpes) to the
specihe talis prevention hancyperson cases produced a Year 1 saving of £473,242
resullirg from fals risk reduction for just 65 (7% of ak handyperson seivice users.
ALolel service runn'ng cost of £148,782 Tor unceriakirg 2l of the handyparson
service [assisling %29 people ard carryng oul 1,845 jobs) would preduce @ 2.8:1
cost benefit ratio i.c. a saving of £2.80 for cvery £1 spent. sy applving the
savings that arise solely from falls risk reduction for just 7% of service users.

Page 131



Cost benefit applying Model 2 (HAM)

Applyving the HAM Tindings of 22% [als with hospilzlisalion raduction to the
speciiic falis prevention hancyperson cases pius the estimated moderate fals injury
costs savirg, procuesd a total Year 1 saving of £723.471 resulting from falls risk
recrchion for just 71 (7.6%) of all handynerson service users,

Atotal service runnng cost of £168,782 for undertakirg 2l of the handyperson
service @ssisting 929 people srd carrying sut 1,865 jobs) wotdd praduce & tost
benefit ratic of 4.28:1 i.e. a saving of £4.28 for every £1 spent, solsly appying (he
savmgs that arise from fails risk reductiar for just 7% of service users,

PEepipacpme e o puape f'\‘!‘-'"'ﬁ‘\:ir"" LR R A TR A B S B L S O S

Page 132



Part 5- ?l-hsfl l:\nn.s.a:p; ‘-&1.!

1. Preston Care and Repair handyperson service met or surpassed both the
output and outcome targets set for the programme.

Output Target 1: Al leasi 400 older peopis receive handvperson help with repairs
and adaptations

Cutput: Durirg the 9 montk evaluation periaC 1,399 jobs were ¢carriec out n
the homes of 697 o'der people.

This is a 12 marth equivaent of 1,865 jobs completed for 929 older people.
Cutput Target 2: Volunteers will be recruiled and refainerd o carny oul work as nori
of the: hanayperson tears
Output: Volurteers were recruited and retained.

» There was volunteer input irte 234 jobs in 6 months, ccuivaiont to 268 jobs in
12 months.

» Applying the estimaled average raticna jeb value ([deleled in Part 4) procuces &
value of volinteer input of £24,35%41 ir one year

Qutcome Target 1: More oider peopie are abie to five safely, securcly and well in
fheir oam homes

Outcome Target 2: Gider people who wish to live independlently in their own homes
nave g setter quaity of life

LT BN D SE

(Cr

Page 133



Results

« improved welhe ng was a key ourcome for 903 of oider service users and was
the outstanding impact of the handyperson service.

= Sefer ‘ndepenacnt living spacifically resulted from the barayperson job in 23%
of cases.

» Qlder peop’e usirg the handypersaon service expressec a significant. emotioral
altachment to their home and re‘ghbourhood, with & strong determiration to
maintain thoir independence. They view the hancvperson service as a very
impartant e.emeart in enabi'ng them to achieve th's personal aim.

2, Preston Care and Repair handyperson service has a slgnificant impact on
older people's mental and physical health, wellbeing, independence and
guality of life.

« Faliz risk wes reduceo for 37% of the clder peop & who bad work carriec oul by
the handyperson service.

« Other culcomes include reduced risk of hospital admission. faster, safer hospital
cischarge to homs, improved safety 2nd security, phus reduced worry ang stress
azsocizted with maintaining the Fome.

» Improved welbe'ng was a key outceme for 90% of cider service users and was
the aLtssancing impact of the handyparson service.

3.The handyperson service is reaching older people who are at high risk in
terms of housing related health probiems, accidents and injury.

« Nearly half (46%} of the cleer peop'e usng the hardyperson service are over 80
yrs of age, a significantly higher r'sk group in terms of fs-'s and housing reistad
poor healih {e.g. impact of coid) and ihe majority have a ong term health
condition and/or ¢ sabilivy

« 77% cf the pzople using Lk handvperson serv'ce are femzle
v 72% ive slore

= 7%% sre owner occupiers, the majorty iving on «ower ircomes

4.The handyperson service is exceptionally highly valued by older people

I resparsas to the postal suivey:

» 96% of cicer peop e sa'd that the bandynerson service made them fess waorried
ahout thelr borne,

» 00% of older peop & saiz that they would use the hancyperson senvice agein
and would recommend it te others.

» 77% said they would not have iobs fore 'f the hardyperson service was not
thire cue to worry about finding 2 trushworthy buitder.

» Whist aFordabiity was important, trust and relizbility ware key. Mary service
Lsers were I"appy to make a contrbution 1o the cost of smell ‘obs drmal'y ab
pay for malaria'sh,

[ RN T T N

Page 134



Both the posta survey and gualitative irterviews cemonstrated tha

« The handyperson service provides great peace of ming, reessurance and hops
peop ¢ feel more 'n contro! of their homes and lives.

» Trustwas g key factor ard it was ‘mporrant to oloer people thar the handypersen
serviee was defivered by Preston Care and Repair bacause of ‘s locz! reputation
a5 2 bighly trusted, reliabie and nor for prom provicer.

» De'ivery of the bancypersor service by Prestor Care ars Repair was also 2
cruciet feature because this provided a link (s othar practicsl bousing help e,
seen 23 'someers to turn to' for help with Gargor repairs and adeptadors, as wel

for imparfiz! housing reated informestion and advice.

« [he service provices mporiant e:ement of consumer profection for more
viinerable service users who can so easily fall prey Lo unscrupulous tradsers.

» Easy access Lo lhe hanayparson senvice {ie. via a diracl Lzlephone caif to Preston
Carc and Repairl was a highly valued sspect of provision. It gave oicer peop an
impertant sense of contro, over thelr homes and 'ves anc greatly racucac werry
ahout their bousing,

5. The handyperson service results in significant cost benefits to health and
social care

Whiist there are urdeoubteciv other cost henefits resulting from the wiger
improvaments to the mental and physical }“E’Bfﬂn and weilheng of handypersen
service users, eviderce hase with regard to the cost bensfits of {3z reduction is
mate rebust, parficularly with regerd to housirg ;r:tefrventi::r's.

Therefore this eva uation specincary mocelled the cost benehts to heaith and care
soley for ti“e hancyperson cases for which the primary recorced outcome was fak
risk recuction (37% of the 929 servize users i.2. 344 older pcoplel.

The evehiztion appliet the natioral fincirgs of recert studies concerring rates of
recuchion of iore serous faks resulong rrom home acaprabon ang mac hcation,
slongsize nationaily recagrisad BRE HHSRS cost henefit morelling of savings in
Lerms of Lotz firsh vear realmznl costs fo NHS ang soca cais).

A vary conservative approzch was taken with regard to the number of o'tfer peopie
who were likely Lo hava a serious fati/ene resulting in hospilalisation. usirg the
generic natioral rate of 20% of those over 65yrs Ikely to have a fail ir a vear
(notirg that the rate for those over 8CGyrs is 50% and kalf of the handyperson
serv'ce Users are oyer S0viss.

s Applying the 2012 Cochrane Collaboration systematic review 19% falls risk
reduction and BRE HHSRS cost benefits model

Cost savings from reduced falls injury (! leve's! for jusl 45 oul of 22% o'der
service hantyperson results in cost beneft:

b Total Year 1 treatment cost saving = £473,.242

-
LRI R SR Y Ga;:'ru\ ==

Page 135



o Applying the 2018 Public Health England Return on investment Tool’s Home
Assessment and Modification 23% falls risk reduction to the 20% most at risk
and BRE HHSRS cost benefits model
Cost savings from reduced fa'ls mury (a3t leve s, for just 71 out of 92¢ ocer
service handyperson results in cost benefit:

B Total Year 1 treatment cost saving = £723,471

This Fomz Assessmert ard Mocificehon mode hae the highast cost benefit prenle
of ab' the fails reduction nterventions included ir the PHL Falls Prevention Cost
Benefit Tookit. It demonstrated:

s Tinancial Reiurn on Investment of £3.17: £1 arc

s Sogietal Return on Investiment of £7.34: £1.00.

To caculate the Return on Investrnent for the co#t of the whaole hencyperson
sarvice but basec ar the savings resulting from the faiis risk reduction. we appiied
naticnal average unit job cost for undertaking 1.865 jobs for 929 peopie which is
£148,7/82 (noting that the Prestar Care and Repst handyperson service ‘s very
competilive compeared with nalicral average),

This produces 2 cost beneht reto of 4.28:% i.e. 2 saving to heath and care of
£4.28 for every =0 spent on the handyperson service, soizly applying the savings
that erise from [ails risk recuction fur just 7% of service users.

4. Contributes to achievement of a range of NHS, Public Health and Adult
Social Care policy objectives and targets.

For the NHS and Public Health

« improves oloer peopie’s physica hea'th

= improves cioer peeple's merta: bealth ana wetbe'ng

» prevertiraducs risk of hezlth acute eplzocos, partict'arly recuced f2'ls
o preverlireducing risk of urplanned hospita) admissions

» reducing GP visits/cals on cther heath professionais' ame

= reducing risk of delaved transfers of care/enzhie care et home
s impreving managemeart of chropic iong term beclth cond'tions
For Social Care

o oxtenong safe. incependent iving

o celay ng/pravenling admission Lo residential care

2 reduning are aril support peed

L]

improving welibeing and quality of life

Thereby contributes to meerirg Care Act 2014 obligations and ASC Gurcomes

e Mty

Page 136



Comparison of evaluation findings with previous national evaluation

The above findings 2nd conciusions are very much in line with the ore nationai
government commissioned academic study of handyperson services (CLG, 2012) -
key findirgs below.

Page 137



T T T R
AT 0 WP LT

Unusual but critical job

Mrs . I her 70s lives alone in a rural area. She has arthritis and mobility problems.
Her rmain source of heal'ng i3 a kg fire angd she gals her log celivery slacked anlo a
shielf in the outside moal shed. The shalf had collapsad and the logs wore autsise
getting wal, with Mrs | slrugging to pick them up off he fioor,

Mrs Us neighbour contactes Preston Care and Repair because of concerns about Mrs L
either fallng or getting cala if she could no longer bring in her logs.

The Handyperson Volunteer vistad Mrs | the following day. replacing the leg shalf anc
stacking the lngs back n pasiton to make it casior for Mrs L to collect them and to
keep the hiovse warm,

Dementia and helping carers

When Preslon C&R had a stan at South Ribble Derment’a Carers day they were
approached by the caughter of Mrs K who was concerned about hor mother's safety
and woncered about possible adaptaliens (o keep her sale and indepencent ol home,

Mrs K15 92, Iving alonz with mobility issucs as well as early stage derrentia. The
Heallhy ~lames Caseworker carried out an assessment of 1he horre with Mg s two
daughters present. A numbzr of acaplations were alrzady in place but the casewarker
was able to offer si.gzestions of other possibls hema mogifcabions, as well as
explaining the possibility of a downstairs wet room should the time coma when Mrs K
i5 no longer able Lo gst upstairs.

The Handvperson fites a grab ral to assist Mrs K when using the WC she was usng
the towel rail), glus a grab mil af the back door to enable sater access to the garden.
He repated the bolt on back deer as ths was stckenz. < he advice and hancypersen
sarviae gave peace of ming te Mrs K's dau ghters, reassuring ther that thers ware
proctical steps to help their mother stay Feing ndependently ang salely 1 ber own
home. ™ hey now know whers to go to for helpiacavice regarding repairs/adaplations 10
the: pronarty.

“INgme of handysersont was kird, cheerful and patient and Mum suys o very
understanding man”

Mrs N is 71 vears oid living indepericently in her own home bul with cerentia. Mrs
N's dacghizr contacted SCE&R Tor advice as Mrs N was fera=iting (o rerrove the key
from the frent coor after lacking i and this was preventing carers from getting in
(ising the key in the Keysafe) The handvperson lilled = Thumb qured lock so thal a key
was no longer neeced t lock the door from the insice. This s the comment from Mrs
N's caughtor, "Tris service has enabied my Mother fo stay independent i har own rome
for ionger. The lock on the front door is great - family and carers can get in ond ouf now as

s can 0o oy leave a kow i e ok, Ve think This 15 an excellent service”

frprest i Page 58

Page 138



Stopping the rot

Mrs Z, 76 years old, Ivvng alone on a low income in her small tarraced hause. She has
mobiltly difficulties and a number of long term heatth concitions. Mrs 2%5 caughiter-in-
law contacted PCSR because the drainpipe at the rear of the house was leaking, Our

He removed the ol wacker cast iron dovnspoul and replaced il with 2 new PVC pipe
and spout head. As well as reducing worry for Mrs 7 and her davghter-in-law, this
work prevented detarioration to the home. Left unrepaired the water from the lealing
Fipe wouls have caused an noreasing amount of damage to the solid br ok wall,
potentially resulting in a gamp, mouley ‘nternal wall which veould have exaserbated
ivirs £'s respiratory problem.

Small adjustments reduce injury risk

Mr His 80 years ol2 wth numerous fonz ferm health concitons. Me is Iv ng
ingependently in his own home which has been acapted, inzluding recent installation
of a stairbft. However due to the layout of the small houss whi=n he uses the stairlft
Mr 4 was catching his knee on a deer frame causing great: discomfort to his already
swollen legs. The handvperson removed part of the architrave and doer frame
removing the risk of Turther leg njury.

SRR A e o T e e R R L R R T e e e e S R e

Timely interventions - and going beyond the requested small job

Mrs 2 had been dischargsd from hospital the previous day w'th an arrangsment for
carers to come in three Bmas a day. Jnfortunately, 3 koysafz had not beon installes
and as s B struggled o get to the front coor to open {, she was leaving her door
cpen uill Lhe last care visil at 9pm leaving her al sipnificant securily risk,

The handvperson service filtec the key safz in vnder 24 hours Trom rece'ving Lhe in'tial
chone call.

As fie neboed possble wsees wilh vsing Lhe Bathreom, the PCER [=chrizal offeer alse
visited Lo effer ideas and advice about possible adaptations to the bathroem lacilities,

Ly vy ]
- B ki

Page 139



Names have been changed or removed

As Tlive on my own | sometimes feel vulnerabile. | can trust Preston Care & Repair to
send me a vetted, trustworthy worker.

Peace of mind. Other parts of country doesn't have this chaice. My sister needs this in
Yorkshire.

We are very happy with the very professional service we received and so much happier
to have the extra hiand rails. FANTASTIC!

Yes it matters and Care & Repair people who have done jobs for us are ali very
pleasant. Just a pity you have stopped peinting garden fences!

I is nice to know that they are local people, also they seem to care.
{Name of HP) is an excellent worker did a great job.

t am very elderly and live alone. | find it very difficult to find trustworthy builders to do
large and small jobs around the house.

Aithough these jobs were small they have been getting on my nerves - always would
have managed to do most myself, but realise | can't now and am so grateful for the help.

The jobs | had done may not seem much, but | have been worrying because they didn't
yet sorted. Thank yvou

Fam 93yrs of age and unable to do small jobs. Service much appreciated.

Ltry to do littie jobs but feel | shouldn't ciimb steps etc. Nice to know | don't have to.
People | contacted did not respond to my calls

I have tess worry knowing that there is someone to help me

(Name of Handyperson) Is very trustworthy - Makes ail the difference compared to
commercial sector {obviously most of the commercial sector is fine just the odd cowboy)

I would have tried myself but | am aware that | am not steady enough to use step
ladders any more

I am able to get into the sun-house and not be frightened of falling.

Without this service my elderly mother 9 1yrs with Alzheimer’s would not have been
able to arrange or sort out the materials needed, and | have a job. We think it is an
excellent service.

Sypessio

Page 140



it has enabied mum o stay in her own bungalow for longer. The lock on the front door
is great, family and staff can get in and out now without her leaving the key in the lock.
Thank vou.

1 appreciate the quality of your employee and efficient jobs done.

{ now know that there is someone to help with small jobs that need doing. It is not
always easy to find somebody who wants to carry out small jobs.

Very nice and trustworthy
{ am very pleased with the jots that the handyperson has done for me.

It's really good to know thet i can cail on someone | trust. | have needed the work
doing for some time but was reluctant to find someone.

! have always found them courteous and friendly.

I have used the handyperson service since | became a widow, it provides small jobs
and DIY my husband used to do.

| feel | can manage fo maintain my home end not have to think about leaving it.

I have been extremely happy with your service. Your employees are cotirteous, very
helpful and do an excellent job{s). As sameone who is 86 and lives glone it is 50 very
important knowing that you are only a phone call away.

Your service is like having a man ebout the house who vou know and trust,

Without the support of your service, | really would not know where fo turn. i dotry to
do things but | suffer from very arthritic hands.

l live alone and have many health issues which eases my concerns.
A rolier blind was fitted to my bathroom window, | now have privacy.

One always struggles to find builders/joiners efc. for those smalf jobs which get left
and then irritate or lead to stress. Those of us who operate independently are reluctant
to invoive family or friends preferring a business relationship with people qualified to
tackle minorjobs beyond our capability.

tmportant is the attitude of the person carrying out the work. ! have found your
employees to be of a high standard, poiite ond respectful. My latest experience was a
delight (HP name} was a most empathic person of great kindness and initiative, Thank
YOU.

After using the service for some 3 years | would turn to no-one else for reliability,
kindness and understanding, | am a disabled 60+ lady g widow and feel safe with your
workers.

Page 141

Daen A7
A A



it is good to know | can get those small jobs done by someone ! can trust, as most
tradesmen don't want fo do small jobs, It makes me feel more independent os | have
just had 2 new hips + 2 broken bones in my wrist.

| was delighted to have my kitchen taps changed, | had a constant drip and had swivel
taps put on se much easier for me to turn on and off. [ was very pleased at the cost.

The workmen are trustworthy and will explain things to me in a nice way as | am
elderly nerson, [ hope this service confinues for a long time.

{ found over the few years | have been using this service everyone | dealt with were
very helpiul and pleasant. 1t's nice when you reach your 90th vear.

Worlc was done by (MP name) and he fs a very helpful and theughtful person. falso
enjoyved having e nice friendly chat with him. [t Is such a refief to know vour service is
available if needed. Thank you very much three cheers for Preston Care and Repair.

A few years ggo you fitted safety locks on my windows and safety chains on my exit
doars, and | shall atways be grateful to you for making me feel so much safer in my
home. (HF name) did this work for me and was a lovely man.

| have used the service 3 times on every occasion the quality of the work has been
excellent. The attitudes of the men have been helpful and very polite. It is to be highly
commentied.

1 was delighted when (HP name) szafed up cracks in my conservatory, nove | den't get
giant slugs coming in. This prompted me to get him to block up holes around my
garage doorto stop mice coming in. Thanlk God for {HP name) and the rest of the
team, | am a happy woman again,

The handyperson who did my jobs was friendly, polite and efficient, he did an exceflent
job, very happy.

 am delighted that there is a handyperson te call on for small jobs.

Very grateful for tne stair rail gs | have a problem with balance holding on to rails on
both sides makes me feel safe. Thank you for a job done well.

{ would recommend them to anyene needing vour service, Thank you.

{ cauld not open my waoden windows which were made in 1936, they required
adjustment, The joiner was excellent, Thank you.

What | personally like regarding your service is the personal aflention one receives,
particularly | am impressed in your excellent service you offer. Not anly is “job well
done" but the type of staff vou employ always willing fo advise and friendly too. Over
the years I've got ta know (name of HP) [ look forward to his visits, please convey my
thanks to him.

It's q brilliant service for my auni to help with jobs that nephews and nisces can't do.

A 4

Page 142



I coulan't find anyone efse to do odd jobs.

When you're very il and there's no mate in the home, the service has been irreplaceable,
good response, good people, helpful, excellent all round in many difficuit situations.
Thank you for vour service aver the vears.

The service you offer is excellent. Finding a trustworthy and capable handyperson is
very difficult.

I'was more than happy with the handyperson service. Could not tell you how grateful | am.

Due to my heaith conditions doing the important smali jobs was a source of anxiety.
Finding Preston Care & Repair was a blessing.

It makes my life a iot more comfortable knowing that the smail jobs that need doing
which | cannot do myself, | can always call the handyperson service.

ffeel f can trust the service you supply.

As a disabled homeowrier | cannot undertake all the small/medium repairs which
periodically arise. F am so pleased to know that your service will tackle them without
fuss, saves me endless trouble,

[ have used your service on several occastons with great satisfaction. As a result |
recommend your service to my friends.

it is hard to find someone reliable and trustworthy to do odd jobs. | find that vour
organisation have done the checks i can't.

Not as stressed now jobs have been done, | no longer have to worry about them,

| cannot thank you enough for sending (MP name}. He was very polite, efficient and
gave good advice, plus he made my broken window frame good and safe and promised
to come back in a few months' time o inspect the cther window fo ensure the same
problem worddn’t arise next winter. | would recommend this service to anvone.

The service you offer is excellent.

I just want to comment on the wonderful service that you offer people like myself who
have health problems and feel vulnerable. The handyman you sent out are helpful,
polite and give us reassurance we can go on living on our own, knowing there is
someone to help us. Thank you from the boftom of my heart.

The handyperson put in a bath grab rail. This will help me to get out of bath easier and
feel better not to worry to fall. He alse made sure my patio doors lack properly with g
minor repair when he heard | have been burgled two weeks ago.

Page 143



Y F
(RGeS TR

Adams S (2004] Smz | thirgs matrer. Nomngham, Care & Repair Englard
Aram= S (2010) A Perfect Storm, Nothingham, Care & I{('rmir [nglard.

F A

hitg:doomiindrepar eoglona.org ks conlen: umioads: 20141 248 Perlect Srorm-

oy T3 ndr

Adsmix 5 (2016} Off the Radsr: Housing disrepair & haslit inpact i ater bie
Nattingharn, Care & Repair Englard. kira.roeandrepaicerdgend orguking

R i L 0 IR R Mo T (S G ol 10 ik Loimmt Lamid
conleni sloads: 2014512 00 the-Rador F516-Finol pak

Audit Cornmission (2004) O der people- invependence arc well-being London
Audit Commission

Brarnelly 7, Gray £, Matthews B {20055 Vhe BCOP Handyperson Service,
University of Birmingham

Centre for Ageing Better (2027} Room to improve. The role of home acaptations i
improving later Ife. Lendon Centre for Ageing Becer.

Commurities arc Local Government (2010 Haroynersors Finaroiz! Benenits
Took't Lordon CLG

hio A Coninunaiies sov ks puelicglions fiousing “ fnoncialbenefitstooiit
Commurities arc Locz! Government (2028) The Futurs Homsa Improvameant
Agency Handyporson sorvices r=-‘purt London, CLG

wavafoiidaransak cam mendiacd44 /ithe Fubure-hio-handyperson ervices.paf
Communites and Local Govarnmant (2C20) Handypersons firanciz! benefits toolkit
vt gOv. U oo nrents sublicationsiandyuersons -nencied e fils ool - 7
Commurites ane Locai Gavernment (207 2] Nafional Evaitiztinn of the
Handyperson Programme ondor; HPMSO

Jept for Comimun'tics and Laca! Goverrment {Anneel; Lng'sh Housirg Survey,
DLL(; Avalable from hiiy

SRV LN i OV N

Dept for Commumities and Local Government (2006) Reducing the risks:
the: housing health and safety rating system (HHSRS; Lendon: I}CI G

Bept for Commuryfics and Loeca! Goverrment (20148) Crglisk | lousing Survey,
Housing for Older Peopie Reporl 2014-15 london DCLG

Dept of Heallth (2009) Fzlls and fractures: Developing a local joint stralegic neecs
assessmert. Larcon, DH

Dept of Hea:th (2014) Care and Suppert Statutory Gu'darce, Lonoor. DH

ept for Communities and Local Government (2018) Englisk Housing Survey
[Headling Report for 2016 w17 Landon: HMSO

Garreit H o Burris S, {2015} Homes and ageing in Englare, Building Rasearch
Estab.ishmert, Brackned, IHS BRE Press

Page 144

seovgciinns engieh housing susvey



Gilespie L. D, Robertson MC et &l 12022} Irterver-tiors for prevertng falis ir older
peopie iivirg in the community Cochrane Database Syat Rev 2012, CDO07346
Available from;

wivw.onheclibeary vileycom Gols 101002 48518 E5.CD00 7 L e B st rece L

Haouse of Lerds (2014) Reacy for Ageing? Selact Comimittee on Pubiz Service and
Demographic Charge Reporl of Session 2012-13 Londar: The Stationery Offce

Ipsos MORI (2015; Later life in 2015: an analysis of the views and experiences o
peopie agzc 0 ard over Lonuon: Cenwrs for Againg Beter

Josepk Rowntree Foundstior {2004) Oider Peepic shaping policy and pracrice York
JRF

lozepk Rowntree Foundabion (2005] T hat fittle bit of belp Fingdings Ref: G625 York
JRF

eall, M., Pierse, N., Hoween-Chapmzn, P, Cunningham, C., Cunnirgham, M.,
Guria, 1, o Baker, MG, (2015). Flome modifications to reduce ‘njurics from falls in
the Fleme Injury Prevention Intervention (HIP stucy: a cluster-randomised
contrarled tria . The Lsrcef, 385 (9964). 231-238,

Kings Fu", : (2014) Mzking the case for pubic health interventions [onling infographic]
weya KNgsiind org i s essdef ot ies madia/mok g wose nutlic-neaill

NG 'Sl"p —.‘."\.»' i 4‘-.1‘5\.‘;

fligs.s

ki

f

Llovd, 1. (2015} Older Owners Reseerch or the fives, aspirations and Fousing
outcomes of older homecwners 'n the UK. Londaor: Stratagc Suciety Cantre.
Local Goverrment Assaciadon (2018} Aracle:

VWSSO0 L 50 LR

rg\ ‘l, H (Ji_..'

Loutirene R spifdl-gin issions die-fatls-older oconie sl fened

ned "'1’

Nationa: Institute for Health anc Care Excerience (201.3) Mads in eider peopie:
assessrgrisk anc preventor. Guidance and guide.ines. NICE {internet..

WAV RO o, m ' ‘ul..un( !rf:‘
NHS Englard (2014 The NMS Five Year Forward View, London NHSE

NICE {2C13} Falis ' o.cer peop.e: assessng risk anc preventon Guidarce and
guidelings NICE ilntc'met? 2013 {cited 2076 Nov 25] Availahie fron:

WAV I'|r' \"’:_;' Jh' ""Jf 1(,!"1:; i L 1

Nicoi S. el 2l, (2015 Quanrtifying the Costs of Poor Housirg Walfore, Builcing
Rescarch Estabiishrrent

Nico! S, Roys M, & Garrett H (201.5) Briefing paper: The cost of poor housing to
the NHS Buildirg Research Establishinent.

Oface for National Stehstics (2045) Naricnzl popuation projecrions for the JIE,
2014-based

Ofhce for National Stetistics. Mortalty Statistics 2015 (accessed from romic Oct
2017, Avallabie from:

Toe = i si e il ran i " -r‘All/\\.’li‘ B
VUV AL OIS I L0 LAY R # 'J:Fl}}!‘:‘.ﬁfi-t.n'.‘::’:"[."!r..fﬂu -

—— Dacn A3
fere 4 AET A

Page 145



slston Tinios, Francesca Betto and Gisrni Bett {2023) Men, Women ardd Pensions,
Europeen Commission hr:r.- Tie ~-.fr.v-.:;:.m:uz.-r.w.-»-‘;grmcf'.w-
aquotiiyfiessfocur.onis 130618 wien wones gensions en piff

Profescor Sir Michzael Varmot, Dr Jessiza Allen, Dr Peter Gelehiztt, The Marmat
Reviaw Team (2010} Fair Sccigty, Hes'thy Lives: The Marmc;t strategit.: review of
bealth nzqualities 'n aniand pn”# -2030). The Marmoi Review London Instifuie of
Hezlth Eguity Avzilzble at ket
btorels o ol ;"u';‘" \Lrt.lﬁ'!jy "n'fih.’.li?-!:‘JF.‘S‘{:iFf FTITIOT FEVIE

. i B g
reuori-pdlodf

Public Hzalth England (2044 Public Hea th Quicomes Frzmework

; B O di sl giel i e s iy
WAL CNOLICOE S O SEQIL A TN

2 " 138 -
cansttuleoioolnhieqult voreresowces

w Tl sority-healihy tives full

Public Hazlih kngland {201 71 Fails and fraciure corzensus stalement: Supporting
commiss.onng for prevention. Loncon, PHE,
W goviin/eovernment ‘oublications fulls - e tuces-consesus-stat erivent

Public HHealth Lngland (2018 2) A retuen on investment tool for the assessmeont of
f3 iic IJI‘{‘\‘(‘H‘L'I" 1 programmes for oder people iving n the community
A EOVUR SOV enl S puttiCaHons A fnis-provention L ast-e e CH i

£an z:.s".:ds‘omn,,,

Public Hezlth Cnglend (2018 b} A structured iterature review to identify cost
effective interventians ro prevent falis 'n oiger peopie living 'n the community
AiEs v govulks sovarnmenb publicaiionss fols preveniion cosieffeclive

Coniny 33‘“’"5’!1

RoSPA anc Roya! Col ege of Emergency Medicne (2017) Acton to Prevent Fa'ls
WAYALISIAO0RnGwes Tiocs Bavice sanvices home -sotei ik -prevennon-

faci sl gy

Royal College of Physicians, Nationz! Hip Fraciure Dalabaze Annua! Repart 2017
hidprweavninidco w7201 Fresor

zvechom A Haimiurd £ lvergéara v, Compsior J, Cooper C, Bterunark ), McCloskey
EV. et 8. Osteoparasgin the Furopean Urion: a compenaium of country specific
reparts. Arch ilf;tcopom% int..i neti. 2012 dred 2016 Now 241801 - 2. Availzb e from:

e AR
waLachining SPMO3BEU482Y

Lqreret 1

Page 146



i

arke

Shig

R R R

Page 147



Page 148



The NHS (NHSE) England view of housing

The Nexi Steps in the NHS Five Year Forward View' highlights the importance of keeping
people healthier for longer, impraving care, reducing health inequalities and working joinily
across professional boundaries, including housing.

NHSE's CCG Engagement Programme has published a ‘Quick Guide fo Health and Housing’
and ifs housing prograrnme focuses on three key elements:

1. How hausing can help prevent people from being admitted o hospital;
2. How hausing can help people be discharged from hospital; and
3. How housing can support people to remain independent in the community.

This brochure outlines how a local service is delivering fo achieve these cuicomes.

Why housing?

Where people live, the physical quality, suitability and stability of their home, has a significant
impact on their health, and hence on demand for NHS (as well as social care) services!.

Home adaptations and repairs both enable people fo continue to live independently af
home and improve quality of life.

A forward-looking view of the NHS which envisages not only prevention but also more
health care delivered at or closer 1o home, will only be achievable if people live in decent,
suitable homes where such care can be provided effactively.

-+ 2 million older households five in non-decent homes, 78% in the owner-occupied sector.
95% of homes lack even basic accessibiliy features.

* Two thirds of people with dementia in the UK live in their own home in the community
mostly in mainstream housing, with one third living on their own.

* = Older people are more prone 1o falls, most of which occur at home with falls risk level
linked o home hazards.

A local solution
Homewise Memory Matters: Supporting people with memory
loss, dementia and their carers at home in East Lancashire

Homewise Memary Matters has been funded mainly by NHS East Lancashire Clinical
Commissioning Group [CCG) since 2014, If is run by Homewise, a home improvement
agency in Accringfon, Lancashire that offers comprehensive, impartial help on all aspects of
home improvement, adaptation, repairs and maintenance to enhance independent living

in Hyndburn and Ribble Valley.

TMicol S, Roys v, & Gurrelt H (2015) Briefing paper: The cost of poor housing 1o the NFHSButlding Resenrch Estastishment

Page 149



“Homewise Memory Matters supports people with
memory loss and demeniia to stay at home
confinuing to live independently keeping them safe
and out of hospital and residential care. It also works
with their carers o ensure that they are aware i
of local services including respife care and have o W
network of support available to them. '

Simple innovations in the home can make all the
difference whilst advice on care, support and
benefifs ensures continued independence, good
heaith and wellbeing.

Homewise Memory Maifers makes the home a safe and comfortable enviranment for people
with memory loss and dementic. f offers changes to support visual and orientation difficulties
and other repairs and adaptations where necessary and appropriate. It also supports their
carers by referring them 1o appropriate advice and suppart.

Caseworkers visit people for free in their own home and, working with their carers, come
up with a plan to adapt the home environment to meet needs supporting the person to
raise the funds needed, organising the work and offering advice on care, support and
income issues. A feafure of the project is the parinerships developed with other local
agencies fo offer wide ranging support meeting the client's holistic needs.

Since 2014 to lune 2017 548 clients have been helped alongside their carers.
As an example of their work, from April 2016 1o March 2017 Memory Matters
helped 226 clients with memory loss and dementia with work to their home.
This included making the home safe and accessible with help such as:

e bannister and grab rails

£ b e Y
= stair and bath lifts “My Mum feels a lot
« path and shower boards --_:--nggr;md now does
+ bed levers 24l and NOW aoes ™

- not worny when
..o fems supporiing navigation and orientation to aid P

home alone” |

memory such gs:- e L B

_ _ Carer i

+ nightlights L oo i B 3
* sighage

= specially coloured ifems such as grab rails and light switches and
= remory aids such as memo minders, clocks

* items providing reassurance such as ‘dementia bracelets’

= door alarms and sensors

In addition, some clients undertook repair and improvement work; many clienis were
helped with welfare benefits such as Attendance Allowance and offered advice about local
care and support services. Carers, oo, were supported with referrals to respite services
and other support networks including sitting services, dementia support via the Alzheimer’s
Society, ‘peace of mind’ care plans and befriending services.

Page 150



1 Reducing falls/Preventing hospital admission (2016)

A lady (79) whe lives at home with her grandsen, had no formal package of care
in place, has poor mobility and numerous other health problems. Her grandson
was waiting for an operation on his back and has very poor mobility. He helps
with all aspects of daily living and was finding things increasingly difficult.
There are no daily living aids in place and should the tady take a fall her
grandson would struggle to help her. Her grandson does have to leave her home
alone on occasions. Telecare including falls pendant alarm, smoke, CO1 and
flood detectors were installed for when the lady is left at home alone and
following a referral to Social Services a care package of evening and night visits
was also put in place. Bannister rails and landing rails were prescribed and now
the lady can access upstairs once again safely with the assistance of her carers
and grandson.

~ SAVINGS
Reduced risk of unplanned admission to hospital {each incidence) £2,8372.

2 Preventing admission to residential care (2017)

A gentleman (75) lives alone with no social care package, has poor mernory with
na diagnosis. He recently had a stroke and is losing weight. He was admitted
into hospital due to pains in his groin and a brain scan was also carried aut. He
has problems with his heart and suffers from depression and anxiety. His
mobility is poor but manageable, but there are no daily living aids around his
horme to help him remain steady on his feet, he struggles particularly with
bathing. His wife passed away two years ago and he has not got over the loss.

* Referred to Age UK; this resulted in him attending a grief counsellor and a
men’s club both with the assistance of an Age UK liaison officer

-

Referred to Occupational Therapy for bathing and daily living aids

+ Homewise installed nightiights and fundraised for a dementia clock

-

Referred to Social Services for a package of care to help with bathing, meals
and medication prompts to enable him to stay safely at home.

SAVINGS
Reduced risk of admission to residential care — annual costs £25,636 per year®.

Homewise Memory Matters - based on local residential care costs for people
with dementia - estimate savings at £39,000 per year.

Page 151



The Impact

Through the support given by Homewise Mamory
Matters people with memory loss and dementia have
been able fo continue living af home independently and
their carers supported 1o help them to do so.

Their performance daia in 2016 — 17 ideniifies:-

[ b e

226 people were halped. Qut of these:-

» 66 applications for benefits ware made, mainly for Attendance Allowance
fotal increased benefit including ail benefits was £119,043.34 for the year?)

» 126 people were referred for telecare

+ 79 far Occupational Thercpy‘

¢ 156 had supporf from Homewise with works fo the home

» 40 were referred to the Alzheimer’s Sociefy for practical support

= All 226 carers seen were signposted to carers agencies and/or Social Services
for advice and support

Approximaiely 2 maonihs affer the home assessment and
inferventions clients are contacted and the following
oulcomes met: -

103 people benefitted from a reduction in falls

¢ 111 identified improved wellbeing and personal safety

22 had improved home security

= 19 saw a reduction in social isolction

86 saw improved wellbeing of the carer

108 cases prevented hospital admissions

109 cases prevented residential care admission

"The patients I have scen by Homewise have been made safer
 and able to continue to live at home due to this service”

2 Unif costs of health and social care PSSRU
*Unit cosls of health and sociul care PSSRU for general residential core
1 Since inceplion annual increqse in benefits of £298,000 has been achieved

Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



The NHS England view of housing

The ‘Next Steps in the NHS Five Year Forward View’highlights the importance of keeping
people hedlthier for longer, improving core, reducing health inequalities and warking jointly
across professional boundaries, including housing.

NHS England (NHSE] is signed up to a national Memorandum of Understanding as a
commitment fo suppert joint action across housing, health and care. NHSE's CCG Engagement
Programme has published a ‘Quick Guide to Health and Housing’

This brochure outlines how an independently evaluated* local handyperson service is
confributing fo achievement of NHS, Public Health and Social Care outcomes.

“As I five on my own (with health problems) I sometimes
feel vuinerable. I can frust Preston Care and Repair to
send me a vetted, trustworthy worker”

Why improve older people’s homes?

Where people live - the quality, suitability and stability of their home - has a significant impact
on occupanis' physical and mental health. There are quantifiable costs resulfing from housing
disrepair, with annual first year freaiment costs to the NHS and social care in excess of £1.4bn*2

A forward looking view of the NHS, which envisages not only a greater emphasis on prevention
but also health care increasingly delivered at or closer fo home, will only be achievable if
patients live in suitable, decent and adapfed homes where such care can be safely provided.

- @ Each year around 30% of people aged 65yrs+ and 50% of those aged 80yrs+ experience
a fall, most of which occur at home and with falls risk level linked to home hazards

~ « 2 million older households live in non-decent homes, 78% in the owner occupied secior

- = Many fong ferm health condifions have a causal link 1o or are exacerbated by poor
housing e.g. respiratory conditions, arthritis, mental health problems, heart disease,
stroke etc.

Preston Care and Repair handyperson service

- helping older people live independently and well at home

Covering four Lancashire Boroughs - Preston, South Ribble, Chorley and West Lancs - the
Preston Care and Repair handyperson team carry out a wide range of smail repairs and
minor adapfations in the homes of older and disabled people. They offer everyone a
Heafthy Home Assessment' with remedial measures fo reduce home hazards, particularly
to reduce falls risk, and also alert Care and Repair caseworkers if they identify older people
with other housing issues.

VRt coreondregnir enlnnd org skfw-corient/ ploods/ 28407 Smoil-h-Sinnifcon - Handypar son-Eviivatinn-CRE. 2018 nof
*2Nicol S, Roys M, & GarreliH [2015) Briefing paper: The cos! of poor housing fo the NHS Building Research Establishment

Page 155



The Impact

Results of the independent evaluation of the Preston Care and Repair handyperson service.

o Fochen  feny ga iy b
Sied ks, By yaar iS

* Nearly half of those helped by the handyperson service are over 80yrs (46%), older
women (77%I, living alone {72%) often living with chronic long term health conditions and
disability.

* Falls risk was reduced for 37% of the older people using the handyperson service.
* Improved welibeing was a key outcome for 90% of older service users

¢ Other outcomes include reduced risk of hospital admission, faster, safer hospital
discharge fo home, improved safety and security, reduced worry and stress associated
with maintaining the home.

q
P T 5
Ve, PN

P : :
Iuan 2 i e
THOITREF Wi

* 96% of older people said that the handyperson service made them less worried about
their home.

* 100% of older people said that they would use the service again and would recommend it
lo others.

» 77% said they would not have jobs done if the
handyperson service was not there due to worry about
finding a frustworthy builder.

* Trust was a key facfor. It was important to older people
that the handyperson service was delivered by a local,
not for profit, frustworthy provider to which they had
ready access i.e. a phone call away.

ey

For every £1 spent on the handyperson service the
saving 1o health and care from falls reduction alone

is £4.28. (This refurn on investment does not include
many of the other fiscal and social gains e.g. improved
weflbeing, reduced anxiety, hospital discharge efc.).

**12 month equivalent figures based on 9 months data collection. Additienal handyperson jobs were completed e.q. for younger
disabled people (not included in Ihese figures)

Page 156



“My husband used fo do everything, so it
makes ali the difference to me just knowing
Preston Care and Repair are there. If makes me
feel that I can manage, It is such a relief when
Hou have never had to do these things and you

don't know where to turn to.”

Page 157



(2pj44 pue 224}

.} .:o_mm" ol U:m m c?;o__d.mo:mvcwﬁ{
ul oy Ew o} mﬁbmuw_mmm om_m VIH 82Ul ‘pelaldwos
B}mcf . :

: ‘sdey sy soeidar Emﬁmcu mmz, ue c:ou._.cow._w%uzmx By ulse

] oxd m..z Lp_.mucﬂ ssg m_nmuzmno
ST e) :o:mo“_u&mc mme OS[E 19310MBSED B |

S21pN1S ase) 31n13S JudwaAosdw] SWoH pajeisanu|

Page 158



73.{ PuD 3uksy)
wwday p aves

_mo_czuﬁ mF,_.
S8yl Em: m

S2IPNIS ISE) IIAISS JudBA0Idwi] DWOH _om”_m..mm“_:_

Page 159



idopd Aef ety E g £ xn..:

ML N B

m__n:\:.._n..ﬁ.u fﬁiﬁw&
Suik =Vl b o
— _(_U (D14 puom 2k
afpday T o003

= el ssaooe Dcm stliq sy] ow 186 xtmnmo.ﬁ mﬁ wwmuum ,a.&mm E:oo BUS JBL
o cw@s Jamod B 8N umwumwcoo O wﬁ_b__ﬁoE pesea .

vmmmmmcum niGou

Co_m SaAlL'plO m._mm h@.m_ ] m.:a\

aYs EN UL 8L PEQ E epey mc_)m Jo n_m noE LwI Bon_gmmu:m.@
© obe Jo siesk }g 8| 8yg Inoqubleu B Ag sn 0} PaLajal Sem U \

Homgcmmc Aiqeqoiday
NG LY SSBsSe pUe 200 0}.01sAUd o) [el@l .

_.__>_mom SIOUM 'S0/ SIU cwEm_Emm e Joy _m:mm: e um> 1203l m>>\\

S2IPN1S 3SE) IINIIS JudwIAoIdw] SWOoH pajesSalu|

Page 160



ounoD

. Bt mmw_'_mU—.._U

ispuaip Aurjie @
0} NOA pusLULLIOIB) |

- jnoApunoy arey
‘03 pases(d Ajlgey

- BoIBS INOA

hv!..i n:_. A 4)
SN | USUM BIES

- [e8) shemz |

"Heay Aul Jo Wopeq au) woy -
noAsuey | sh diey 0} aUoawos
=81 alay] BuimoLun *LUmo 1no ua Buing
- Lo 0B uep emaoueInsseal sn 8AID
0 pue anjodfimidjay sie Jno ues -

- noA uetuApuey syl m_nm_mc_3>
o esppue swagosd yyesy i ;-
< aaelp oM JiesAu e m_anma
Joo NOA ey @0IAIaS INUSPLOM
N\ | 841]uaLLIo o Juem jsn|

Bcz.o mEo; mmc g -
3 .Eoc BsUe leyisiy qoid

" Aueuralj jo doyuoidasy
: OLUNOIP AssA j1 puy pinom
- AOAINOYIAA "apIACId NoA

8OIAIRS U] Y Umwm

o .waoo 0} piey i puy. op oM

m}mm swos pue sIASg sipuegsny -
AursiALg we | nguBnouy

_u_._m puby sem cmEzu:mc ayl

L .:oﬁ_cm_._._( PUBL e
les ”n_wm | MOLBY 01 pulu Jo sorad Hmmzm :
mE mmao ‘1o a_mn o} Ajile] ou unm
DI %mn_m e Se.aul 0] Sl 80jAI8S -
AU INLIRUOM Moy Aes JouLieD | -

>=m§m aul o)
S Uelal ases|d
- Bunybii Aw yoa.

o3 asuodsal 1884

921A19S Ju3wdAoadw] WO pajessSanu] ayl 1noqe Aes sjuaip) Ino 1eymm

Page 161



[ensn se sojias Em_

Hounon

FECoa Y mmw_hnucu

noknolmop
UPINOM | TRUM AMOUM §, cov _

(apiks pus sain) . : m>mz pInomays
et “DBLUOM SBM | 'DIAIRS -
Apeads auyy Joj yuey]

- s, Aujologg o} mﬁ;m@m:aa bms..
" ale cosmwwcmm‘_@ SQ\E mso_E pey

2 mc_ou Ble mc\., cou sw pue Em£
ol syuey) Bio yesib e os 'sjusied -
Al ol UstApuey V|- @yl jnoge -
Lol Lo 10 §10) 196 uo .@Emé o
S|y ssed0pall MSe 0] SjoIM pUR WL
40, paylf sfielpuey aul tim vﬁcm__wv
- staH-jusned e Aq wesy.inok o) ¢
6&55 uo mmma..ou paysE’ us8q m>m;\\

mm:oc m£ banm

,_mmm})

m:_w_mm; m_nm m;_vcm.

mc_xm: pLie 100p 84} 0} Buiob

305_5 Auadoid ay) ssaooe -
- HUeo sisle0 AU Se-1s|Ses Yonu
08 3yl Aw apew sey afes Aoy auL

: S .Uﬁmmcm:an_m
”xusE -yoddns sl 10f mcobmSw

a1qe We | Jeu) oL o) Addey we |

221AJ9S JUswanoadwi] dWOH paleldaiu] 3yl 1noge Aes spuai]) 1no 1eYym

Page 162



10 January 2018

Dear

RE: BUDGET PROPOSALS 2019/20

We are aware of the budget cuts considered at your last cabinet meeting amounting to £77
million pounds. At our recent full Town Council meeting, members expressed their serious
concems around the following issues:

1

The impact of switching off street lights will be catastrophic because we have already lost
800 police officers in Lancashire due to government cuts and your proposal will give the
green light for petty criminals to commit crimes.

The proposal to reduce the family well-being service will have a massive impact on the
Walton Lane Children’s Centre in that it will lead to it's closure. The children’s cenire was
one of the first in the country to achieve beacon status. Already because of cuts, 16 FTE's
have been lost. These proposals will decimate support for children with special
educational needs and devastate parents who have no altternative provision.

Your proposals around adult social care, in particular reducing carers from two fo one for
those with complex needs could lead to loss of life and/or ensure that people end up in
nursing homes or hospitals. We believe that this measure alone will end up costing not
only the NHS buf the County Council more in the medium to long-term.

The cuts to the ‘hreak time’ service which provides such a valuable resource to parents
with the children's with S.E.N needs will adversely impact on the families potentially
costing the County Council more and impacting on the families health and well-being.

On street car parking charges in Nelson will further discourage shoppers and businesses
1o invest in a town cenire which is struggling. We are not Lancaster or Preston which are
thriving city centres. Any improvements planned in Nelson will be destroyed by the
implementation of car parking charges.

Clearly we understand that the govemments cuts fo LCC are having a massive impact in terms of
your budget proposals but do believe that instead of spending monies on giving free iphones to
Councillors it would be better spent on front line services.

Page 163



We hope that the views expressed by all political parties on Nelson Town Council will be taken
into consideration.

Yours Sincerely

Page 164



Dear Sir/tdadam

Get Colie Mioving ~ Transpork Survey

] recently sent us a letter updating us on some of the issues relating
to the above. As a result we would like o submit our response for your consideration.

Re-opening of the Colne-Skipton Pail tine

Some 5 years ago we came to live in Colne after a 10 year spell in Cumbria. Prior to that, and
prior to retirement | commuted daily on the Airedale line into Leeds, Initially from
Keighley and Iater from Steeton after that station there was repgened. Apart from the odd
oceasion when there were problems on the fine the journey was Tast and efficient. it was alsa
used to capacity. On those occasions when | needed to drive into Leeds the journey took at
least twice as long and involved sitting in long queues of very slowly moving traffic. In addition

I had the added problem of finding parking which was also very expensive. The Airedale line

is also very popular with shoppers going into Leeds. It has zlso proved popular with those
wishing to visit the Dales and as Tar as Carlisfe. When we fived in Cumbria we regularly used
the line to visit Yorkshire and Leeds and again, regardiess of the time of year, trains were
always busy. We have no doubts that re-opening the Colne-$ kipton line would prove popular
and would be well used. It would alsa provide a valuable link with the Airedale line and into
the Dales. Unless transport links are improved the North Wast, above Manchaster and

i) 3 GIGE {) i

AR TN

Preston, will suffer. We afse nes i 1he trafiic.off thecnads.

Colne and Villages By-Pass and Traffic Congestion

Living just off Red Lane in Colne we find ourselves in the middle of major traffic problems.
Regardiess of the time of day getting around or gettingin or ocut of Colne is a nightmare. We
struggle with the traffic on Vivary Way but the alternatives of going through Colne (Albert
Road) or using Red Lane to go through Barrowford are just as bad. Red Lane has become 3
“ratrun” with cars and vans trying to avoid the traffic going far toc fast for the narrow twisting
road. It is only a matter of time before there is 2 serious accident. Red Lane also has the
additional problem of parents collecting their children from Sacred Heart School. They park
on both sides of the road with total disregard for the yellow lines, making it impossthle for
two way traffic. Equally they ignore the “no parking” signs in our cul-de-sac. There are Bimes
when it is virtually impossible to get to and from our house, Again itis only a matter of time
before there is an accident or there is 2 need for emergency services to get through. We have
even had to put up with abuse for asking them to move to let us through. As the cul-de-sac is

Page 165

AR A AT



the last turning point before the road substzntially narrows and the weight restriction applies
we also have large wagons and buses turning round, often driving over the kerbs. A By-Pass
is the only answer to the traffic problems.

Street Parking Charges

Despite all the traffic problems above, Colne has managed to maintain a vibrancy and
attractiveness that many smail towns have lost. This has not happened by accident - there
are a lot of peaple working very hard to achieve this. We have a wide variety of smali specialist
shops and the owners/shopkeepers work hard to attract customers. We also have an MP who
is passionate about the town. The town centre isn’t large and doesn’t have much in the way
of car parks. Applying on street parking charges will deter peopie from going into the centre
of the town and push them inta using large shopping centres further afield with easy, free
parking.

We are sending a copy of this letter to

Yours faithfully

Page 166



?.‘_iDn-Street F'arkmq, Great i—!arwood

| write to inform you tha1 at a meetlng of Hyndburn Boruugh Gounclt FuEI Counctl hetd on Thursday 10“1 i
- January 2019, a motion relating fo “the proposal for charges for on—street park:ng in Great Harwood -
3 bemg abandoned" was moved and secunded EL L : . o

. At was resoived that E wnte to yourselves te requat lhat tha proposai in Lancashire County Councﬂ s {
-~ budget for 2018/20 tp introduce on-street car parking charges in Great Harwoed is abandoned. - [

' This Council believes that this would be a regressive move for the high street shops in Great
Harwood and the introduction of on-strest parking would drive customers away. The changes that
~ have occurred in the retail sector means that we need fo be innovative in our approach in supportmg
_ . our high street and the mtroduchon of an- slreet charges would go agamst this PO

--We request that the pwposal to mtruduce m~street car parkmg charges in Great Harwond iS

abandnned

Yours smcerely

Hyndburn Borbugh Council

| It A mmdzsutnnty
] . : . ’ . 1 e B N Emccnf’dent

Page 167




Zl
4 O Ay
Date 21 December 2018

Dear
On Street Parking

At our Full Council meeting on 19" December 2018, the following motion was considered and
approved:

“That this council resolves to write to Lancashire County Council to urge that the
proposal in their budget for 19/20 to introduce on street car parking charges in Burnley
and Padiham be abandoned.

We, the council, believe this is a regressive move for high street shops and other
businesses in Burnley and Padiham town centres that will drive customers away. The
changes in the retail sector especially mean we need to be innovative in our approach
in supporting our high street and this goes against that.”

| should therefore be grateful if you would report this to your Cabinet and Full Council, when
considering the item at your budget meetings.

Continued ....

Page 168



In addition, as requested by Burnley Civic Trust, please find attached a copy of their letter
outlining similar views.

Many thanks.

Yours sincerely

Page 169



'

Tth lDecember 2013

leer

PHOMOSAL oy PaYulbdw JF PARAING
(5 U o L

— i s — ——

wE Ve notec the proposs.s o: the L' nessnire County Council
publicised in the loc 1 press nd would as: th t 'uraley korousn
Council objects to 1his idea,

the ,resent system 21 up to 40 minutes of? street perLings
Larks very well 1or everyone from car users to locfl shopa snc

U 1nesses. Wo cathidrrw tais facility will only »nsure th-i
Burnk y centre becomes & rhosl town nd ihe pubnliec will be sorely
1nCONVINieNced, "o a ¢ this provosgl ¢f # time when thr

hish sireet generally is under so much threst se-ms to us to be
rither foolish -ad the wount biow ht in oy tne .urupossl would
be msignit_cent in relste to the totrl neficit of Lhe budeet

of the Count Council.

If you = ,.ee will 0. yleszse m ke stron/ re.resenisiions snd 1 rwer
2 Qopy oI this letter to the Countv Couneal.

Yollvs sinoemelr .

Page 170



Lancashir

County - %«’
Council %‘%@%ﬁﬁ

Dear all

We are writing to you as a collective group of secondary Pupil Referral Unit (PRU)
Headteachers to express our frustration and anger over the further proposed budget cuts
that will impact directly on the most vulnerable pupils in the county, some of whom have
social, emotional and mental health needs. We are hoping that you will be able to help us
in ensuring that the pupils who need the most help are not failed yet again through local
authority decisions.

We understand the financial constraints that the LA is under and we have taken part in
discussions and planning meetings with the High Needs Funding Forum. At a meeting on
Monday 19" November 2018, we agreed to cut the £2,000 per place funding for any
pupils requiring additional high support. The impact of this cut will be different for each
PRU, but we recognised and supported the cut as we understood the pressures on the
schools’ budget.

However, following that meeting Headteachers received an email at 18:35, Friday 23"
November via (Head Teacher of Virtual School for Children Looked After
and Vulnerable Children), informing them that all taxi transport for permanently excluded
pupils will be stopped from April 2019. There was no mention of this cut in the meeting of
the 19" November despite being present. There are wider implications for
some of the PRUs with this proposed transport cut which will directly affect the children.

Page 171




-

There are seven PRUs to cover the whole of Lancashire and in each PRU there are
pupils who have to travel long distances in order to attend school. To explain with a case
study may help you to understand; one pupil attending Oswaldtwistle PRU will have to
catch the 06:45am bus from Whitworth to arrive in Accrington Bus Station at 07:58. They
may miss the 08:03 bus and may have to wait for the 08:18 bus to Oswaldtwistle Centre.
They will then have a 15-minute walk fo school. They will have been travelling for almost
two hours to get to school. For many pupils who have been permanently excluded there
are complex underlying reasons why the exclusion has happened. In many cases pupils
have underlying social, emotional and mental health needs that have not been picked up
by their mainstream schools. This was also identified in the LA Ofsted area SEND
inspection (January 2018.) Other underlying needs may include autism, communication
or learning needs. Many pupils have been let down aiready by the school system and by
the time pupils arrive in the PRU their attendance and motivation to engage with
education is at rock bottom. How will that pupil then motivate themselves to travel for two
hours to get to school? The system will once again have failed them. Wherever possible
Headteachers encourage pupils to use public transport and provide bus-passes, so
where a pupil is within travelling distance of school this is encouraged. Our concern is for
the pupils who have long distances to travel from a wide catchment area.

In one PRU the cost of transport for the financial year was £50,000 and the cost so far,
this financial year is £29,000. This PRU also provides bus passes wherever possible.
The number of permanently excluded pupils who are presently using taxis are as follows:
Oswaldtwistle School 58 pupils

Shaftesbury High School 49 pupils

Coal Clough 78 pupils (including six year 8s)
The Acorns School 39 pupils (including one year 7 and seven year 8s)
Larches High School 14 pupils

Chadwick High School 7 pupils
McKee College House 28 pupils

The cut in transport is only to be applied to pupils who are permanently excluded but how
will the LA justify to parents living on the same street where a pupil attending the PRU for
a mental heaith/medical reason is allowed a taxi and the child next door who has been
permanently excluded is not? What would happen if that permanently excluded child
then receives an EHCP for social, emotional or mental health? Where would the LA
stand and would the parent have rights under the Equality Act 20107

There has also been a cut to the number of places commissioned across the secondary
PRU sector. Four of the maintained PRUs have been informed that their place funding
will be reduced. PRUs have also been told that any places commissioned by the
mainstream schools will not be funded if it takes the school over their agreed
commissioned places. This will impact directly on permanent exclusions; if a PRU has
been commissioned for 100 places and they have 90 statutory (medical or permanently
excluded) pupils then they will be able to offer 10 ‘intervention’ places to schools. These
are usually for a short term to support the school, pupil and family to return successfully
back to their mainstream school and avoid a permanent exclusion. However, if that PRU
then has an increased umber of statutory pupils to take them to 100 statutory pupils they
will then have to decline any intervention places as they will receive no funding for that

pupil.

Page 172



.

PRUs are working hard within their own local areas to work coliaboratively with
mainstream schools to aim to reduce the tide of permanent exclusions through
intervention and support. The LA has one of the highest permanent exclusion rates in the
country. The knock-on effect of budget cuts, taxi transport cuts, place funding cuts and
caps on infervention places will only impact negatively on the rates of permanent
exclusion. There needs to be some long-term thinking and planning to enable PRUs and
schools to he more pro-active. This letter unfortunately highlights the short-term
monetary gains against the longer-term expense of increased numbers of NEET
unqualified young people who have been failed by their local authority and will be unable
to make a positive contribution to society. PRUs have always had every child at the heart
of their work and work tirelessly to help turn lives around so pupils leave the PRU with
qualifications, aspirations and a drive to succeed in life. Please help us to make sure this
vision remains and we can continue to support and help the most vulnerable children in

Lancashire.

Yours sincerely

Page 173



West Lancashire
Clinical Commissioning Group

08 January 2019
Dear

Response to Lancashire County Council Draft Budget 2018/20
Service Challenge Proposals for Adult Social Care and Public Health

| write on behalf of the West Lancashire Integrated Community Partnership (ICP), which is the
Integrated Care Partnership for our geography. Both the December and January ICP meetings tock
receipt of and considered your service proposals. We have considered them with full understanding of
the financial and efficiency challenges that your organisation is faced with. With that in mind, we know
that not making significant service changes is not an option. There are some elements of your
proposals however that do give us a greater level of concern, but we also see that these areas are
ones by which we could work collectively to define and adopt a different, innovative, more efficient and
sustainable approach.

Redesign of identified public health and behaviour change services. We acknowledge that the
welibeing service will cease. We are concemed about this but, in West Lancashire, we have made
investment ta related services (such as social prescribing) where we see that with some redesign, we
can mitigate against the impact of reduction of some of the service reductions currently proposed.
This would include drawing in to the model community restart funding and the thoughts locally about
the development of recovery college model. This has a direct relationship with our ICP priority of
protecting good physical and mental health. it will demand our commitment from a number of key
partners to make this a reality and our ICP provides the vehicle to achieve this.

Service proposals relating to the care sector. One of our ICP priorities is about stimulating,
sustaining and innovating around the care sector. We well understand the challenges for this sector
locally and we see further collaboration in working together in putting resilience into the care sector for
the short and longer term. We note that a number of the budget proposals are aiming fo better
manage demand for such services, and we would like to have a joined-up approach across the system
to understand the impact on the finances and sustainability of the system in West Lancashire

We welcome the input your organisation is giving to the ICP in West Lancashire through Tony
Pounder and we look forward to working more closely together to find solutions for West Lancashire
that mitigate against any potential adverse impact for the local population and users of these services.

Yours sincerely,

Page 174



14/01/19

Dear sir/madarm,

Re: Consultation response to LCC’s Budget Proposed budget savings for 2019/20

Thank you for your email regarding LCC's proposed budget savings for 2018/19. As invited, | wish to
make the following observations as feedback which | submit to you as part of the official
consultation process.

l'am mindful that the County Council has a budget shortfall of £135 million for the period 2019 to
2023, as the result of cuts by the Conservative and previous Coalition Government, however | have
serious concerns about many of the proposals outlined in the proposal document and wish to
register my particular concerns on the following issues:

L

SC023 proposes reduced street lighting in some residential areas, namely no lighting
between midnight and 5am. With police numbers having faced unprecedented cuts over
the past 5 years, this would in my view be foolish and reckless in the extreme and in effect a
burglar’s charter. Current police advice states that effective lighting is the most important
deterrent against burglary. The proposal would also leave night and shift workers {including
nurses) increasingly vulnerable to assault as they travel to and from places of employment,
often alone, at night. My Burnley and Padiham constituents have a right to feel safe on the
street and in their hores.

SC609 proposes the ‘remodelling’ of the Health Improvement Service. This terminology
‘remodelling’ s misleading to say the least. In reality this will mean that service users will
have a reduced access to drug and alcohol rehabilitation services, abesity services and
smoking services, all of which will be to the severe detriment of constituents seeking
support to improve thelr health and wellbeing. This proposal is in my view short sighted and
would leave those who wish to take responsibility for their own health, stranded high and
dry without support. In addition to the personal misery and unfulfilled potential experienced
by many of those experiencing alcohol and drug dependency and their families, such
problems can spiral if not addressed, culminating in acute need. This in turn goes on in many
cases to places huge demand on the National Health Service, Social Services and the Criminal
and lustice Service. It also flies in the face of the Government's recently announced 10 Year
Plan which advocates a far greater focus on working with the public to promote hea lthy
lifestyles and make positive changes. Similarly, smoking cessation and obesity support
service cuts would represent missed opportunities to make positive interventions, sacrificing
long term gains in favour of short term savings.

Page 175



3. 5C514 The proposal is to increase costs for self-funders accessing day care services by an
eye-watering 15%. it is well-documented that many self-funders are already unwittingly
subsidising those funded by the local authority due to the County Council’s implementation
of Government funding cuts. To further increase the financial contribution of the elderly and
vulnerable to make up the shortfall by such a significant percentage is simply unfair. With
Loneliness and isolation now recognised as one of the greatest public health challenges of
our time, the disabled and the elderly are particularly vulnerable. In addition to the general
imperative for public services to do ali they can to alleviate personal suffering and distress,
there is also strong evidence that failing to address this issue can increase the pressure on a
wide range of council and health services. The proposal is therefore short-sighted.

4. 5C611 Cuts to Home Improvement services. This proposal also targets those who are
predominately elderly or disabled and in reality means that there will be a reduction in aids
to independent living and adaptations to prevent falls. Again, this not only negatively
impacts service users causing unnecessary hardship and suffering, but is extremely
economically short-sighted. Those who may well be able to live independently with minor
adaptations to their homes, will be forced into the social care system or even experience
preventable falls requiring hospitalisation and ongoing treatment and support at far greater
expense,

5. SC608 The proposal to limit the provision of the Welfare Rights Services This will not only
cause redundancies to those working in this field but in the words of LCC's own impact
assessment, ‘will be unable to support as many vuinerable people at a time when we expect
the need to grow.' Again we see the most vulnerable bearing the brunt of these proposals.

6. 5C1199 The proposal to remove the Breaktime service which supports the parents and
siblings of children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). For many parents
this service represents a lifeline as they struggle to support children with sometimes
extremely challenging conditions. To remove this support and provision could be the final
straw and the difference between coping and not coping. Again there are significant human
and economic consequences when people who have been able to manage with a litde
support are denied that support and become unable to cope.

It is very apparent to me that the most vulnerable groups would be dispropartionately affected by
the above points 2-6 and for this reason | believe that the proposalks are unconscionable and should
not be implemented.

I would also like to formally put on record my strongest possible disapproval at the following budget
plans which | understand do not require consultation:

®  5C109- End external audit of child safeguarding services

*  5C112 Cut budget for children’s social care, fostering, adoption, youth offending team and
SEND

*  5C136 Reduce budget to support looked after children and those leaving care.

®  5(358 cut to legal services for child protection

To fail to safeguard and meet the needs of our most vulnerable children and young people would
represent a gross dereliction of duty and care and abdication of responsibility and accountability
which could have the most appalling consequences. | believe that LCC should recensider these plans
as a matter of urgency. To proceed with these plans would be dangerous in the extreme with
potentially fatal consequences in addition to being morally reprehensible.

* SC501 Reduced access to residential care for the elderly

Page 176



® SC505 Reduction forthose with severe disabilities requiring double handed home visits ta
cope at home to single handed visits

Again it seems that these measures unfairly target the elderly and those who are less able to fend
for themselves without suppart. This is inhumane and makes no economic sense. People will not
suddenly begin to be able to manage at home when their support is cut, they will instead experience
considerable suffering and require increased use of acute services when they can no longer manage.

* 5C034 —increased on-street parking charges in Burnley — This will have a negative impact
on town centre businesses in an already challenging economic business environment.

In conclusion the areas which LCC has chosen to target for these cuts reveals a shameful value
system which has over and over again targeted those in greatest need who are the least likely to be

able to raise their voices to be heard at consultation. For this reason, and in the interest of sound
economic sense [ urge the Council to reconsider.

Yours faithfully

Page 177



Dear Sir/Madam

Budget Consultation Response from Burnley Borough Council

| am pleased to see the County Council tackling its budget challenges and wouid like to thank
you for the opportunity to provide feedback.

On behalf of Burnley Borough Council, | wish to make the following points in connection with
some of the proposals.

= $C023: Highways: Part Night Lighting

> The proposal could, potentially, have a negative impact on community safety in some
neighbourhoods in Burnley. We request that, through the Pennine Community Safety
Partnership, we are consulted on the neighbourhoods affected and that if a threat to
safety or perceived safety is identified, that the lights remain switched on.

= SC608: Welfare Rights Service
o A universal cut to the service will have a disproportionate impact on more deprived

districts like Burnley. We would like the County Council to implement a targeted
approach to the remaining service,

| www b“m?eygouuk n m v

Page 178



= $§C609: Health Improvement

o We welcome the proposal to deliver the service in a more targeted way. We ask that
the County Council continues to engage in local partnerships, such as the Burnley
Health and Wellbeing Partnership, to facilitate this approach and to ensure that health
improvement activity is joined up with local CCG commissioned services.

* S5C610: Lancashire Well-being Service

o We note that LCC hopes that the VCFS will meet some of the demand when this
service ceases.

o To this end, we strongly recommend that LCC protects the Community Infrastructure
Support grant which is worth £60k to Burnley Pendle and Rossendale Council for
Voluntary Service. This provides for the CVS's bread and butter service; ie,
supporting community groups with management and governance.

o  Without this support, it will be difficult to sustain the VCFS to meet demand.

o Wealso feel that there is a need to ensure that any reductions in this service do not
result in costs being transferred to other agencies such as the NHS.

* 8C611: Home Improvement Service

o Welook forward to further dialogue with the County Council regards the proposal to
fund the core service through Disabled Facility Grant allocations. Our initial view is
that existing central government DFG allocations will need to be maintained at current
levels to make this feasible,

* SCO012: Integrated Transport Services: use of taxis to transport children excluded
from mainstream education

o This proposal will, potentially, have a disproportionate impact in Burnley given the high
exclusion rates in the area. It may increase absenteeism and late arrival at school and
therefore have a negative impact on attainment and aspiration.

o We strongly welcome, therefore, the commitment to adopt an assessment procedure
to ensure that proposal does not put an insurmountable barrier in the way of education
for a small number of pupils.

Page 179



* SCO034: Highways Network Regulation: increase on street parking charging

Q

e

On 21 December, the Chief Executive of Burnley Council wrote to Angie Ridgwell in
connection with this: proposal.

This explained that, at a meeting of our Full Council on 18th December 2018, a motion
was passed requesting that the proposal to introduce on street car parking charges in
Burnley and Padiham be abandoned.

= SC602: CFW: Reduction in family support workers

o}

o}

Until the location of the posts proposed for deletion is known, it is difficult to assess the
impact on Burnley. Any loss of staff will mean a greater caseload for remaining
workers and so across the wider area less demand is going to be met.

Given Burnley is an area of high need, we ask the County Council to consider a
targeted approach to service delivery going forward.

» SCB811: Economic Development

a

Burnley Council fully supports the LEP, Marketing Lancashire and the Lancashire
Growth Hub, as key agencies in promoting the economic growth in the County. In the
absence of a combined autherity, the LEP is the only county-wide (incorporating the
two unitaries) body that is engaged with government on economic growth. It will play
2 lead role in developing and delivering a Local Industrial Strategy for the County.

As raised in the recent LEP review, it is right that there should be a clear separation
between the LEP and the County Council, with the LEP having its own independent
secretariat. However, this does raise questions as to how it is funded, We understand
that LCC has carried the burden of the net funding requirement for these bodies for
some years, and it is right that the other two upper tier authorities should pay a
proportionate contribution.

However, given that they also face significant budget challenges, and nor do they
represent 50% of the LEP area, then it is highly unlikely that the 50% gap could be
met.

If districts, again facing their own funding issues, are to contribute then it needs to be
fair and propertionate. If this does occur, any increase in contribution for District
Councils should be aligned with increased representation and influence on the LEP,
Marketing Lancashire and the Lancashire Growth Hub.

We would also want to see that efficiencies are made in the operation of these bodies.
We would welcome the opportunity to further develop proposals in relation to this.

SIMPLYCLI

YCUR ceutie

Page 180



..M.‘\E’{2 é é%{“

LS

You will see from many of the above comments, that there is an overriding theme of making
sure that any cuts are targeted to minimise the impact on our communities, and in particular
protecting our most vulnerable residents,

I hope you will seriously consider these comments in making your final budget decisions.

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the consultation.

Yours faithfully

Page 181



UGH COUNCIL

BORO

Thursday 17" January 2018

Dear
Lancashire County Council Service Challenge Savings

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed budget savings for
2019/20 and 2020/21. | understand that this is a difficult time for the County Counail,
with a huge amount of savings to be made as a result of the Government's austerity
measures.

I am pleased to see that a large number of proposals will use digital transformation,
service redesign, and restructures to drive efficiencies without impacting on the front
line.

However, | do want raise concerns with a number of proposals where | feel there will
be a potentially significant detrimental impact on Rossendale residents, which will
ultimately cause additional pressure on the system further down the line. This is
against both County and national policy and good practice.

The specific proposals | am most concerned about are:

+ S8C610 - Lancashire Wellbeing Service. This service is well used and well
respected in Rossendale. The Council, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service, the
Police and local GPs all use the service to refer in vulnerable adults. Our
Transforming Lives Panel provides a much needed multi-agency case
management service, and uses the Wellbeing Service as a key referral pathway
for people who are vuinerable, with a range of lower level complex needs. This is
a major part of our prevention and early intervention work, which is designed
to spot and tackle issues early in order to prevent them escalating. This
preventative work fits with the Police, the NHS, Public Health and Social Care

Keep up to date with Rossendale Borough Council via www.rossendale.gov. uk or follow us on
4 @RossendaleBC #] Rossendale Council

Page 182



policies in terms of supperting people early to prevent cases becoming more
serious and therefore having a bigger impact on local communities and service
budgets.

To stop this service at a time when it is becoming embedded in the way we deal
with a growing number of cases seems counter intuitive, and the pressure it will
ultimately cause in Social Care, Health and Police budgets would be significantly
more than the cost of the prevention work.

In Rossendale we have been working with the CCG, Public Health and others to
look at ways we can join up a number of referral services and funding streams to
get the best outcome for our residents. We see the Wellbeing Services being part
of this salution. We would welcome the opportunity to continue these discussions
before any decision is made about the future of this service.

+ SC611 - Home Improvement Services
The Home Improvement Services and handy person services delivered in
Rossendale by Mosscare St Vincent's provide a valuable and necessary service
which build confidence and resilience and enable people to remain independent
in their own homes for longer. This is a key priority for LCC and the NHS.
Without the LCC contract the organisation could be in danger of folding and this
work would cease. This would have a detrimental impact on vulnerable people in
the Borough, and with an aging population profile both here and across the
County this has to be a real concern. The potential additional pressure on the
NHS and LCC Social Care would far outweigh the £880,000 saving being
proposed and appears to be a false economy.

The proposal implies that the funding gap could be plugged through District DFG
funding. Whilst we want to be as flexible as possible with our DFG and would be
happy to look at this, we are also bound by national guidance and policy on the
spending of DFG. We would need this national and local (through the Better
Care Fund steering group, the DFG Board and the Health and Well Being Board)
policy and guidance to be changed in order to give us the freedom to use our
DFG allocation in this way.

We would therefore urge you not to make a decision on this proposal until further
work had been carried out by your officers to ascertain whether it would be
possible to fund this work in a different way.

We are also concerned about the reduction in Welfare Rights Advice outlined in
Proposal SC608, particularly at a time when concerns are being raised locally and
nationally about the impact of Universal Credit and increases in the use of food
banks and rising child poverty.

The £2.175m proposed saving from Health Improvement Services outlined is
Proposal SCB09 is also a concern, particularly the potential reduction in access to
rehabilitation services. We would want to know what specific impact this may have
on Rossendale residents before any access to service is removed.

Keep up to date with Rossendale Borough Councll via www. rossendale gov. UK of follow us on

.4 @RossendaleBC B3 Rossendale Council

Page 183



There are also a number of proposals in the document entitled Service Challenge
Savings (Consultation not required) which we feel may have a detrimental impact if
the cumulative impact of all the proposals are considered. We would urge you to
carry out some urgent work to weigh up the cumulative impact before any decisions
are made. By looking at this cumulative impact it may mean that some of the
proposals will need to have formal consultation in order for your Councillors to pay
due regard to their equality duty as vulnerable older and potentially disabled
residents will be affected. The specific proposals we are concerned about are
$C124 - Children's Social Care (reduction in Family Support Workers) and SC501 -
Adult Social Care Community - Clder People/Physical Disability (reducing number of
admissions to residential care).

As already stated, we do understand the pressure that the County is under, and we
know that you will need to present a balanced budget to Council. We also
understand that if your Members reject any of these proposals then other alternatives
will have to be found. We have therefore focused our attention on those proposals
which we feel will have the biggest negative impact, not only on our residents (our
primary priority) but also on the whole system of public service provision and
particularly health and social care.

| would be more than happy to discuss these proposals further and look at other
options and alternatives which would enable us to protect these valuable services
and help our residents stay health and well and in their own homes for as long as
possible.

Yours faithfully,

Keep up to date with Rossendale Borough Council via www.fossendale gov. uk or follow us on

{5 @RossendaleBC ] Rossendale Councl

Page 184



Date: 17 January, 2018
Your reference:
Our reference; MBIED

To whom it may concern
Lancashire County Council

 Citv-Coungil

Dear SirfMadam,

Thank you for your invitation to comment on the County Council's Budget Proposals
for the period 2019/20 to 2022/23. This letter provides a response on behalf of
Preston City Council.

We recognise the severe financial pressures which the County Council's budget is
under. Local government continues to bear the brunt of the government's squeeze
on public finances — and unlike our colleagues in central government the legal
requirement to set a funded budget in every year means that we do not have
Ministers’ luxury of kicking the financial can down the road.

So we recognise that the County Council is faced with some hard choices and
difficult decisions. We are therefore not commenting on the County's overall
approach or on every budget proposal. Instead we have sought to focus our
response around the best ways of dealing with the potential impacts of the proposed
budget decisions on the most vulnerable in our communities.

Our comments on specific proposals are therefore as follows:

Traveller Sites

» There is clear evidence of demand for the county’s existing sites, including the
one in Preston and central government continues to press the case for
maintaining or enhancing existing levels of provision nationally. We believe
therefore that there is no policy case for reducing provision. Any loss of
provision would be likely to result in an increase in unefficial sites and
associated negative public reactions.

Page 185



Although Preston City Council currently manages the site in Preston on behalf
of the County Council, our concern is not around who owns or manages the
site, but that it be retained. Should the County Council decide to sell the site,
we would strongly urge that this should only be done with a condition that the
site can only be used as a fraveller site.

Any new owner would only be likely take on such a proposition if they felt it to
be a paying proposition. We would therefore suggest that the County should
develop a business case which moves the sites towards at least cost
neutrality so that any enhanced levels of income are retained within the public
sector.

Welfare Rights Service

While we recognise that provision in this area is discretionary, there is strong
evidence of increasing need in this area, including demand from the “working
poor” and the impact of the challenging transfer of benefit beneficiaries to the
Universal Credit system. Given the challenges likely to arise from the UK's
weak economic performance and Brexit uncertainties demand for the service
is likely to rise.

While limiting support fo more complex cases may appear superficially
aftractive, in practice this is likely to result in more complex cases being
created, in the absence of support to resolve issues at an earlier stage.

Additionally, we are conscious that any reduction in L.CC's provision in this
area is likely to throw additional pressures on PCC's own welfare rights and
debt advice provision. Given that other Lancashire councils and third sector
providers, such as the Citizens Advice Bureaux (CAB) are likely to have
similar concerns and cost pressures, we would have thought that there was
scope for productive discussions between the parties about realising further
efficiencies through joint working, whether this was a formal shared or more
closely integrated service approach, as an alternative to relatively crude
service level reductions.

Health Improvement Services

We understand the pressure to explore ways in which to remodel the existing
service. But we have concerns as to how potential changes may impact on
the most vulnerable in society. Interventions through these activities
potentially reduce public sector costs further down the line - and any
reductions in the reach of these activities are likely to see those costs
increase. We would encourage further discussions with health service
colleagues as to the relative distribution of costs and responsibilities.

Lancashire Well-being Service

We consider that the proposed reduction in service would represent a
significant loss to vulnerable residents, with potential health impacts on
economic participation levels, likely to be an area of concern but also

Page 186



potential, post-Brexit. If residents can be helped into the labour market as a
result of upstream interventions such as these, then not only will individual
lives be improved but future cost savings to the health service and enhanced
levels of economic performance will be delivered. We would encourage you
to ensure that these considerations are foregrounded.in any service
remodelling.

Within Preston, we note that the team currently supports the Moor Nook
Integrated Team and it would be unfortunate if reductions in this area had the
effect of undermining wider service integration and partnership working.

Home Improvement Services

Reductions in this area are likely to prove a false economy, as, without access
to the property repair, maintenance and improvement services which enable
vulnerable individuals to remain in their own homes, there will be increased
demand on other health and social care services, including expensive
residential care.

More specifically, reductions in funding in this area are likely to raise
guestions over the viability of a range of third sector organisations, such as
Preston Care and Repair, whose absence is likely to place further service and
cost pressures on social care budgets.

If budget savings do have to be made in this area, we would recommend that
LCC explores issues of phasing and explores different cost models, including
what scope there may be to generate additional income through differential
charging systems.

We recognise that these are challenging times for us all and the issues involved are
complex. As such we have sought to formulate our responses in as specific and
constructive way as possible. We commend them to you and wish you success in
finding a constructive way forward.

Yours sincerely,

Page 187



Date: 17" January 2018

To whom it may concern,

Re: LCC budget cuts

As the GP Clinical Lead of the newly formed Rossendale Primary Care Network, | would like to
place on record my objection to the recently publicised cuts totalling £77m in expendlture by
Lancashire County Gouncil. These proposals were discussed at a recent meeting of the GPs and
wider community partners earlier this week and we were all in agreement that some sort of cbjection
from the locality of Rossendale be made.

First and foremost I'm concerned that the withdrawal of funding to the Lancashire Wellbeing Service
will wipe away a whole tier of support; that myself as a GP and my GP colleagues across
Lancashire have previously been able to rely upon. The implications of these cuts will inevitably
place more pressure upon the Health Service and front line clinicians like myself. The wellbeing
service provides an extremely effective intervention to those patients that are struggling to cope with
low level mental health issues.

Secondly, and more local to myself as someone both working and living in Rossendalg, is the
reductlon in the funding of Homecare Providers, such as MSV Homecare (St Vlncent‘s) My
experience is that MSV provides a prompt and efficient service, in the provision of aids and
adaptations to some of the most vulnerable people of Rossendale allowing them to stay
independent in their own homes.

Please piace on record my objection to these proposals.

Yours sincerely

Page 188



Dear
Thank you for your recent |etter.

In response | am completely in favour of the re-opening of
the Colne- Skipton line.

Here's hoping that potholes are improved further.

Street parking charges are not something | like the idea of as
it seems local residents will suffer unfairly. | think it will push
more traffic to the big stores on Vivary way, which is already
badly congested.

Yours sincerely

~Page 189



From:
Sent: 08 December 2018 18:09

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Budget Consultation

Re: Street Lighting

Street lighting could be delegated down to Town and Parish Councils as it was up to
the early 1970s' when Street lighting was done jointly, street lamps were turned off a
midnight and back on at 6 am. Town/Parish council billed accordingly and street
lamp locations and wattage jointly decided as needed

This would give local people more control and invelvement in the decision making.

Yours sincerely

A Parish Councillor on Slyne with Hest Parish Council

From:

Sent: 10 December 2018 12:27

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Lancashire County Council - Budget Consultation

Thank you for your email. The documents run to almost 200 pages. | think it is
unreasonable and rather foolish to expect meaningful reaction to such a large
document. | do not have the wherewithal to print the papers . Can yo send me a hard
copy of them to

On 12/12/2018 17:02, wrote:

Hi,

I live in Colne and am very concerned about your plans to place parking meters
along Colne’s Main Street. The system we have in place works perfectly. People can
park on the road for brief periods whilst they go to the bank or pick up some
shopping or if they want to park for longer we have disc parking in several car parks.
Many traders are struggling to make enough to keep themselves in business and |
think this will put people off stopping in Colne to visit the shops.

Please can you explain why you want to put parking meters in our town? It looks like
a money making exercise fo me. | know the government has been continually
reducing the council’s funding and | understand the need to raise money but this is

Page 190



not the way to do it.
I await your response with interest.

Regards,

From: (SOUTHPORT AND ORMSKIRK HOSPITAL NHS
TRUST)

Sent: 04 January 2019 09:06

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Lancashire County Council - Budget Consultation

Many thanks for sharing your proposed budget savings for 2019/20. As a colleague
public sector provider we are very aware of the pressures you continue to face to
deliver on your financial obligations,

We have had a look at your Money Matters report and are concerned that some of
the proposed changes in Appendix C could have a detrimental impact on our
patients, in particular SC119 Special Educational Needs and Disability Service,
SC514 Older People Care Services, SC609 Health Improvement Services and
8C811 Lancashire Wellbeing Service. We note that any changes made will be
subject to consultation and we will of course be involved in this as required.

Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust

From:

Sent: 10 January 2019 09:36
To: Medern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: On street parking meters

Dear Consultation team,

Page 191



| understand that there is a proposal to introduce on street parking charges in
Chorley. | have been unable to find the draft order but | would like to lodge an
objection to the proposed charges. The introduction of parking charges would
inevitably lead to more shoppers choosing to shop on line or at out of town centres to
the detriment of town centre traders and the vitality and viability of the Town centre
as a whole. The proposal seems to be driven exclusively by the financial position of
the County Council, with little or no consideration having been given to the effects of
the charges on local people and businesses.

| trust you will take this objection into account.

Yours Sincerely

From:

Sent: 11 January 2019 15:20

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: bBUDGET CONSULTATION

Reply attached as footnotes on paae 25

SC001 PROPOSED AMENTMENT TO BURSCOUGH AND SKELEMERSDALE
TIPS.

AT THE SAME TIME AS CREATING A GREAY INCONVENIENCE FOR
RESIDENTS IT ALSO INCREASES THE LIKELY YHOOD OF MUCH MORE
FLYTIPPING.

SCO11 PUBLIC AND SCHOOL TRANSPORT.

ALTHOUGH IT MAY NOT BE A STATUTORY REQUIREMENT THAT TRANSPORT
IS PROVIDED FOR CHILDREN IT IS A STATUTORY REQUIREMENT THAT
CHILDREN ATTEND SCHOOL.

IN RURAL AREAS WITH MINIMUM OF LOCAL TRANSPORT, MANY PARENTS
UNABLE TO GET THEIR CHILDREN TO SCHOOL OTHER THAN THE SCHOOL
BUS CUTTING THIS SERVICE IS VERY SHORT SIGHTED.

SCO23 STREET LIGHTING. AGAIN THIS IS A MAJOR ISSUE IN THE FIGHT
AGAINST ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR.

DUE TO THE INTRODUCTION OF LED LIGHTING GREAT AREAS OF STREETS
NOW HAVE HUGE SHADOWY 'BLACK' SPOTS. BETTER BRIGHTER LIGHTS
ARE REQUIRED TO PROMOTE A SAFE ATMOSHERE FOR THE GENERAL
PUBLIC.

Page 192



From:

Sent: 11 January 2019 14:20

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngovi@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Lancashire County Council proposed budget options

Hi

The Parish Council considered the information on proposed budget savings for the
2019-20.

The lack of public transport in rural areas means residents must travel by car to shop
and the inclusion in the proposals of the introduction of on street parking charges is
felt to unfairly penalise rural residents.

The Parish Council would ask for consideration for rural residents, who have no
option to travel other than by car to shop, in the deliberations on cost savings.

Kind regards

From:

Sent: 15 January 2019 11:37

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Response to 2019/20 Budget Consultation

Dear Sirs
Halsall Parish Council wish to comment as follows:

‘That the village street lighting budget should be ring fenced and any savings should
be made by reducing lighting in towns and cities where additional lighting is
generated from buildings.'

Regards

From:

Sent: 15 January 2018 15:14

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qov.uk>
Subject: On street parking charges - Chorley

Page 193



Reference

| wish to express opposition to the proposal to introduce street parkin g charges in
Chorley. Such ascheme is detrimental to the well being of Chorley and an
encouragement to shop further afield such as at Middlebrook, where no charges
apply. Many parts of Chorley have no bus service and hence car travel is essential to
use local facilities. Many towns are now cutting car parking charges as High Streets
are struggling and need help rather than hostility from council authorities. Whereas
there is a case for parking restrictions, such as time limits, to ensure there are car
parking places available at busy times charges should not be used as a short term
cash fix which will backfire by killing business and encouraging shoppers to travel
further by car to areas where they can still enjoy free car parking.

| Cho-rley Liberal Democrats

From:

Sent: 17 January 2019 21:24
To:

Cc:

Subject: Lancashire County Council Budget Cuts
Dear Sir

| write to register my objection to your suggested Budget Savings in Adult Social
Care and Public Health,

| disagree with the premise that funding for these services should cut.
| agree that these services should be provided in a seamless manner to clients.

The services should not be cut until alternative source funding has been shown to be
available to enable them to continue without any break and for staff transferred to the
new employer where appropriate.

The current ideological Conservative Party attack on the Welfare State must be
halted. We do not want our country to be like Malaya with survival of the fittest and
the rule of the jungle running society and driving the economy with a baseline of
starvation and absolute poverty. We are a wealth nation and shouid aspire to a
decent society similar to Sweden where productivity is high because people know
that they will be cared for if and when they fall ill or become old.

For this reason the following cuts to services should not be implemented until the
Conservative Government guarantee that alternative funding for them will be

Page 194



available through either the Department of Health or the Department of Education or
other areas of Local Government:

1. Day service fees for self-funders Equalising the charges for people attending
older people’s day services, with the aim of self-funders paying the same rate
as that paid by statutory agencies paying for their placements. Saving
£0.079m

2. Welfare Rights Service Reduce the provision of welfare benefit advice and
suppert. Saving £0.380m

3. Health Improvement Services Remodelling drug, alcohol, tobacco and healthy
weight services and reducing service offer. Saving £2.175m

4. Lancashire Wellbeing Service Ceasing the Lancashire Wellbeing Service
which is contracted externally. Saving £2.01m

5. Home Improvement Services Reduce funding to Home Improvement Services
which oversees maintenance, report and improvements to help people stay in
their own home, Saving £0.88m

| hope that these points will be taken on board and you will inform the Conservative
Government that these cuts cannot be made until detailed alternative funding
streams have been produced to a satisfactory level of competence.

Best wishes

From: ] _ _
Date: 16 January 2019 at 14:08:33 GMT
To:

Cc:

Subject: LCFT response to LCGC’s budget proposals
Dear

Thank you for sharing with us Lancashire County Council's future budget proposals
for social care and public services, and for the opportunity to provide our feedback.

We would absolutely acknowledge the current financial pressures faced by LCC, and
your point regarding the wider system pressures faced by NHS services, as well as
those commissioned/provided by LCC, is well made. In this respect, we would agree
that a collaborative approach with partners to develop integrated services should
have the effect of making them more sustainable and more joined up for the people

- Page 195



who use them. Indeed, Lancashire Care has developed a track record in recent
years of developing and delivering services in partnership with providers from the
statutory, private and VCFS sectors. We would welcome conversations with LCC to
share learning and consider how we can continue to progress this approach,
particularly around the areas highlighted in your document. You will know too that
health services across Lancashire and South Cumbria are coming together (as part
of the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership) to produce system plans so
that we can find efficiency opportunities whilst improving the quality of services,
something that can only be delivered through our combined efforts. We would very
much welcome LCC as a partner in these plans.

It is positive to see that you have identified areas that are currently working well and
that you intend to build on these. There are some areas where we would welcome
more detail so that we can fully understand your proposals, in particular, “new
models of support in learning disability and autism, and mental health”. In this
regard, we note a number of areas highlighted as “budget savings options” and the
proposals to cease or reduce the service offer, particularly in relation to

» Health Improvement Services, such as drug and alcohol
Lancashire Wellbeing Setvice
Adult Social Care Community
Home care for older adults
Changes in respect of LD&A services (supported housing, supporting living,
enablement)

We would raise concerns regarding the potential impact of these, not just on
people’s physical and/or mental health but also on people's social

functioning. Again, we would welcome further detail and the opportunity to discuss
prospective remodelling of these services.

We look forward to receiving your respdnse and to the outcome of your consuitation.

Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust

From:
Sent: 18 January 2019 13:18

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Car parking charges Colne

| am opposed to car parking charges in Colne.

Should they be implemented people will shop outside of the area, leading to the
death of yet another town centre.

Page 196



Regards

From:

Sent: 18 January 2019 13:18
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Ce:

Subject: Feedback re well being service
To whom it may concemn

I Would like to share feedback on the benefits of the well-being service for
individuals who have been open to the integrated neighbourhood .

The staff from wellbeing have become an integral part of the neighbourhood and
contribute to the integrated working we are alf working towards. They attend multi-
disciplinary meetings and provide regular updates on their actions which helps fo
progress cases.

The wellbeing service have supported individuals to gain confidence in life skills that
in the long term wilf support seif-management.

The wellbeing service compliments the work undertaken by other services and
frequently steps individuals down to the CV'S which appears to be a natural
progression.

Kind Regards

Page 197



From: L

Sent: 18 January 2019 15:54

To: Modemn Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: On Sireet Parking Charges

Goed afternoon,

| write in response to resent speculation into the above proposed charges in Colne,
the shops in resent years and more so in resent months have taken a severe
downfall in foot fraffic.

I strongly feel, if there were to be parking charges in Colne of any nature it would be
the final nail in Town as shopping centre.

At the moment | frequently use the independent shops on Albert Road and Market
Street in Colne but if charges were to be introduced | would NOT be paying to
parking anywhere in Colne.

Yours much disappointed

From:

Sent: 18 January 2019 16:35

To: Medern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Proposed cuts to Waste Recycling centres in Skeimersdale and Burscough

Dear Sir/Madam,

Newburgh Parish Council is sorry to hear of the proposals to reduce the service at
our two local waste recycling centres in Burscough and Skelmersdale. However, we
recognise the massive pressures that the County Council is facing in trying to
balance its budget. While the proposals to reduce the opening days and hours at the
two centres are regrettable and we are concerned about a possible increase in fly
tipping in the area as a result, Newburgh Parish Council hopes that any changes
implemented will lessen the impact by ensuring that both centres continue to be
open at weekends and that any closure days can be staggered so that there is
always one centre open in the area,

Page 198



Regards

Fram: ] i
Sent: 18 January 2019 17:50

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov. uk>
Subject: On- Street Parking

| have received a newsletter from our local MP. A section regards a consultation ‘On-
Street parking charges’ . | would like to express that any additional parking charges
to already failing high streets would be even more detrimental.

Regards

From: .

Sent: 18 January 2019 18:37

To: Modern Gov Enguiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Street Parking Charges - Colne, Lancashire

To whom it may concern

| would lke to let you know that | wholeheartedly disagree with the proposal to put in
place - Street Charges in Colne, Lancashire.

Our town has been thriving in what can only be described as challenging times for
the high street. From the bottom of town to the top, businesses are working so hard
to make a fabulous shopping and social experience for those who live in the town
and for those who come in from the surrounding area. There are many bespoke
shops and venues and these do encourage people to come in and shop. | feel that
street parking charges will discourage people from coming to shop in the town. Also
the streets leading off the main street are mainly residential.

People have been signing petitions asking for a re-think.

| would like to encourage you to re-think this proposal.

Yours faithfully

Page 199



From: -

Sent: 19 January 2019 14:13
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: colne - business owner - on street parking charges

Dear Sir / Madam,

| write to you as a business owner in Colne town centre _

| wish to voice my response to the current consultation regarding on
street parking charges. |feel very strongly that this would seriously effect business
for the whole town. Our town centre is definitely on the increase and | would
consider Colne to be a good shopping town. People ‘pop into' various shops,
currently able to park directly outside freely. They may pop in, book a boiler service
and be back out again in 10minutes - likewise with all the other shops, | park outside
savers, boots, tesco, indeed many shops, then quickly head off to work or
somewhere. Would a parking charge stop me doing this ---- most definitely yes - I'd
probably try and get more of my bits and bobs in the supermarket. That is truthful
but not something | like to confess. | like to shop locally and suppport local
businesses.

| seriously think that you need to start listening to local people and business owner.
I, personally, will be appalled if parking charges are introduced.

Yours faithfully

From: -

Sent: 19 January 2019 09:49

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire. gov.uk>
Subject: Street parking charges

Hi,

| live in Colne and am very concerned about your plans to place parking meters
along Colne’s Main Street. The system we have in place works perfectly. People can
park on the road for brief periods whilst they go to the bank or pick up some
shopping or if they want to park for longer we have disc parking in several car

parks.

* Many traders are struggling to make enough to keep themselves in business and |
think this will put people off stopping in Colne to visit the shops.

Please can you explain why you want to put parking meters in our town? It looks like
a money making exercise to me. | know the government has been continually

Page 200



reducing the council's funding and | understand the need to raise money but this is
not the way to do it
| await your response with interest.

Regards,

From:

Sent: 19 January 2019 10:28

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street parking charges

Hi

We would like to voice our opposition to street parking in Colne. We feel that this
would further deter people from shopping in the high street, an area that contains a
number businesses that are already struggling.

Regards

From:

Sent: 19 January 2018 14:21

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street Parking Charges in Colne Lancashire

I'should fike to point out that free roadside parking in Colne works perfectly at
present and introducing parking charges would jeopardise the livelihoods of our
shops and cafes. | for one never seem to have the right change for parking and in
tha situation would just carry on without stopping until | found a supermarket and this
will be true of many other people even though they would like to support their local
shops. It seems like a callous and badly thought out attempt at money making.
Yours faithfully

Page 201



From:
Sent: 19 January 2019 18:28

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Street parking in Colne.

| agree with the opposition to street parking in Colne .| am sure people would not be
happy to pay to go shopping.

From._  _
Sent: 19 January 2019 19:10

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street Parking Charges

Good evening

We would both like to echo the opposition of the local Member of Parliament,
» to the introduction of street parking charges in Pendle.

The high streets of the whole of the UK are suffering and closing down, and these
charges can only exacerbate the issue.

Please think again.

Regards.

From:

Sent: 18 January 2019 19:59

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Parking

Please do not let them put parking charges though the town There are lots of small
businesses that will be badly damaged | am a member of st Bartholomews and a lot
of our people are elderly we also have funeral and wedding were cars park in front of
the church

Page 202



From:
Sent: 20 January 2019 09:37

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Street Parking Charges - Colne, Lancashire

Dear Sirs

In a recent circular from . MP, | have been made aware of the
push for on-street car parking charges in town centres across Lancashire.

Whilst | understand the need to raise funds, | do not feel that Colne Town Centre is
an area that would benefit from such a move. In fact, | would go as far to say that it
would have a detrimental impact on the town as people avoid the town centre
causing shops to close (this will then mean no business rate payments to the
government).

It is clear to see that towns where there is free parking - even for 2-3 hours - do far
better than those with on street car parking charges.

People will do all they can to avoid paying (people even park on the road leading to
Wycoller Village rather than the £1 per DAY car park that is made available for
them).

| would urge you not to take this proposal forward and look at ways to improve
visitors to Colne Town Centre rather than create barriers.

regards

From: )

Sent: 20 January 2019 10:04
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qov.uk>
Subject: Get colne moving - transport survey

Dear Sir/Madam,

| am writing to you to send my suppert for the re-opening of the Colne to Skipton line.
| believe this will be a great investment and will prosper economically for the area. As
Colne is the end of the line many people don't even consider rail transport as an
option. Plus our pacer trains are due to be scrapped so this is the perfect time to
regenerate the dysfunctional line.

Secondly, | would alse like to send a clear message about the proposed street
parking charges in Colne. | am completely opposed to this idea. | believe it would
damage our high street as much as the internet shopping. | have already signed a
petition against these charges and as a colne resident | hope you will take on board
my opihiohs on both these matters.

Page 203



Many Regards

From:

Sent: 20 January 2019 15:14

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: reopening the train line between Colne and Skipton

| strongly support the re-opening of the above rail line. As a consumer who was
familiar with the original track | recommend that for ease of goods

transport, passenger service and a boost to the tourist industry that this line be
reinstated. It takes at least 30-40 minutes at peak times to pass through Colne by
road a journey of 5-7minutes. It is unclear why our access to ease of travel stops
when the M85 staops at Colne.

The way is still open along the “old" track. | do request that a new system serves
ALL the original stations en route. | would really appreciate that this part of
Lancashire is not overlooked once again.

On a second note, Celne has a thriving High Street. Please do not ruin this by
imposing parking charges.
Thank you

From. .

Sent: 20 January 2018 17:29
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngo ncashire.gov. uk>
Subject: Street Parking charges in Colne.

| want to voice my concern regarding the possible introduction of street parking
charges in Colne town centre. Our town has done its very best to be a thriving
community with High St shops well patronised in spite of Sainsburys, Aldi's and Lidl
supermarkets on the North Valley. If street parking charges are brought in, the High
St will take the brunt of customers using free car parks at these large establishments
and the small traders will suffer and the whole ambience of our little town will alter
considerably.

I hope you will take these views into consideration during your consultation.

Yours faithfully

Page 204



From:
Sent: 20 January 2019 17:30
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@Iancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Golne on street parking charges
Good afternoon

I am emailing in regards to the current consultation to introduce parking charges to
various towns across Lancashire including where | live in Colne.

If this is true it's a disgrace.

Colne is a very small but thriving town with local shops, businesses, bars and
restaurants, The great thing about the town is the free on street parking meaning
people can park and shop locally instead of using main stream supermarkets. The
other great thing is that there are also a number of other businesses like vets,
dentists, florists, hairdressers and beauty salons to name a few that all have local
customers who use the on street parking for various appointments.

If on street parking is introduced | can guarantee it will be the death of the town, it's
high street and many businesses. In times of austerity and cuts it is madness to even
consider introducing charges.

Local people oppose the potential introduction of these charges as do local
councillors and more importantly MP for Pendle

| implore you to reconsider and take into serious consideration the massive impact it
will have on such a small town and it's local businesses.

Regards

From; )

Sent: 21 January 2019 08:08
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qov,uk>
Subject: Parking Charges in Colne

Introducing parking charges in Colne would be detrimental to both the business
community and the people of the area, as it would discourage people from shopping,
socialising and being able to take advantage of all the wonderful amenities of this
place. It would also be difficult for all those who attend various activities eg The
library, the churches, children's centre. Colne is a thriving community with a
wonderful high street and shopping area as it is accessible to all, please keep it that
way for the benefit of this community

Yours sincerely

Page 205



From:

Sent: 21 January 2019 13:29

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@iancashire.qov.uk>
Subject: on street parking proposal

PLEASE DO NOT BRING IN ON STREET PARKING CHARGES TO EAST
LANCASHIRE TOWNS.

WE ARE STRUGGLING ENOUGH ALREADY TO KEEP THE TOWN CENTRES
ALIVE. THIS WOULD JUST DRIVE EVERYBODY TO THE

SUPERMARKETS WHERE PARKING IS FREE.

DO NOT KILL THE EAST LANCASHIRE TOWNS

please confirm my protest will be logged

From: L ' o

Date: 21 January 2018 at 12:05:13 GMT

To: _ —

Subject: LCC Cuts consultation response

Hello please find below my response to the consultation

These cuts mean that the council will only have intervention services at the point of
crisis, the cuts to the wellbeing service for example will likely increase mental health
issues and the severity, impacting on suicide rates. There is currently a 25 week
waiting list for Minds Matters 1-2-1 support, the LCC wellbeing service is able to help
bridge this gap. With no prevention services the pressure on social services and
mental health services and the health service will increase, costing more money and
more lives in the long run. What steps are LCC taking to address this? |s there any
work alongside the health service, such as transforming lives, that will help meet this
need?

The focus is getting people to live independently within the community, yet propose
to cut home improvement services, which can prevent people from entering
residential care, this is counter-intuitive. Also, there is huge pressure on social
housing, this will increase, there seems to be an assumption that ‘supported flats' will
be empty and available for aduits with learning difficulties moving back into the
community, this is an unrealistic expectation.

Perhaps LCC need to look more internally at their management and organisational
structure, cutting jobs rather than cutting entire services first. Have there been any
cuts to jobs in LCC, has the organisational structure already been streamlined? All
cuts appear to be frontline services.

Page 206



Not sure what the small grants scheme is? |s this the Care and Urgent Needs
Scheme, as there is no mention of this, is this being cut too?

What campaigning and pressure are the current council leaders putting on central
government to increase funding to LAs for social services? It is obvious that LCC
will struggle to meet it's statutory obligations in the near future, surely this should be
recognised by council leaders, who should be lobbying parliament to increase
funding for LA's.

From:
Sent: 21 January 2019 16:34

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: My comments on "Money Matters 2018/19 Position - Quarter 2"

To whom this may concern,

Page 207



| apologise for the fact that the following comments are several days beyond the
deadline for submitting them, but | experienced technical problems with my computer
on Friday.

Appendix A TOTAL CHIEF EXECUTIVE SERVICES £65.040.

This would appear be excessively high with the salary of the chief executive a major
part of this. It has always been my contention that the salaries of local government
chief executives in the Public Sector are excessive and neither reflect the work that
they themselves do or even participate in. | have campaigned for a long time for a
change of policy in relation to this matter from central government. Council tax
payers expect to see positive outcomes from Frontline services in the principal
authority despite withdrawal of funding from central government. It is not only a
question of prioritising services for council tax payers, but also restructuring the
upper echelons of the authority, reducing the senior administration and reducing
salaries of the chief executive and others in accordance with reduced financial
cxircumstances of the authority.

Appendix C REFERENCE SC023 - Service Challenge Savings (Consultation
Required)

| regret the negative approach in the following statement "What are the risks
associated with this change and how will they be mitigated"?

There is a risk of public dissatisfaction with revised lighting levels and an increase in
complaints. Not all locations may be suitable for part night lighting potentially leading
to complaints of inequity"

| cannot agree with either of those statements, it is already trying to place negative
attitudes about the proposed scheme into people's minds. Light pollution and loss of
the night also contributes to ¢climate change. Not only during the recent Festive
Period, | and many others ‘carbon offset' to combat the use of excessive and
damaging artificial lighting, but also all year round, street lighting is causing light
pollution, which could include glare; light clutter especially in urban areas; light
trespass; or excessive illumination. A single offending source often falls into one or
more of these categories.

The Dark Sky Association was founded to reduce the light going up into the sky
which reduces the visibility of the night sky and the stars. Any light which is emitting
80 degrees above nadir causes light pollution. Streetlights also adversely affect
nocturnal wildlife with most pollinating plants, bats hunting prey and spiders
emerging under cover of darkness all suffer under the glare of artificial lighting. Sky
brightness is increasing at the rate of around 6 per cent annually with the disruption
of natural dark and light cycles damaging the health of cells to whole ecosystems.
Whilst there are social issues, such as safety, associated with turning off streetlights
as the night progresses, it will almost certainly have a positive effect on the health
and well-being of people; the natural environment and wildlife.

Excessive or unnecessary street lighting can be a source of annoyance to people;
harmful to wildlife; undermine enjoyment of the countryside and detract from
enjoyment of the night sky.

Page 208



From:

Sent: 21 January 2019 15:15

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Colne Street parking charges

Parking charges deter people from shopping in town centres. You should be trying to
attract shoppers and improve the envirenment, rather than lose them to out of town
retail parks where parking is free.

did an independent review on high streets and the main source of
dissatisfaction was paying to park. She also noted that more progressive local
authorities are providing free parking.

Let's breathe life into Colne town centre, not kill it!

Regards,

From:
Sent: 22 January 2019 07:39
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Parking charges in Colne

Dear Sir,

| wish to object to the proposed charges for road side parking. These spaces serve
small businesses along Albert Road and Market Street. Charging will seriously
affect people just popping to the building society or collecting perscriptions, having a
quick trim or even buying a pair of shoes, paint, a ball of weol. Colne has a unique
town centre and it will be threatened due to the inconvenience caused. Not
everyone can walk from the car parks in the centre of town, |am able bodied and
able to walk into town. These proposals are short sighted and unsuitable for our
town. Visit and see.

Yours

Page 209



From:
Sent: 22 January 2019 11:18
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: On street parking charges |

Hi | understand You may be thinking , or have already introduced on street parking
charges in some town centres.

Whilst [ can understand the monetary attraction short term | think long term vou
“must be mad !"

The sure way to speed up the demise of town centres is to start charging for parking.
All you will do is drive residents to out of town retail parks (with free parking

) or encourage further the use of on line shopping thereby rewarding large
American firms who pay very in the way of tax to the UK.

Sorry, but the proposals are rubbish !

From:

Sent: 22 January 2019 11:28

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qov.uk>
Subject: on-street parking Colne

Dear Sir/Madam
I'm writing to express my concerns about the suggested introduction of parking
charges on the streets of Colne, currently under consultation. From traders to visitors
to residents, there will not be a single person who will look favourably upon this
notion. The traders of Colne have struggled to maintain a decent high street with a
broad range of shops and amenities, and the fact that parking is free has
undoubtedly helped them enormously. Parking charges would surely result in a lower
footfall and the consequent failing of businesses, with all the negative implications of
this (including of course reduced revenue from business rates). | therefore repeat
that (along with everyone | have spoken to on the subject) I object most strongly to
this proposal.

From:

Sent: 22 January 2018 11:46

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Car meters in Colne

Page 210



We totally disagree with this proposal. Cars will no longer park, shops will empty and
close, hence no business rates.

Colne centre has prospered with no parking charges, do you want to kill the high
street.

From:

Sent: 22 January 2019 14:35

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qov.uk>
Subject: re support

Having emailed you about my thoughts around Brexit, | feel | must now respond to
your recent |etter sent to all your constituents in Pendie about Getting Colne moving.
We are unanimous as a household and for the re opening of the Colne to Skipton
railway. A fast road connection through to Yorkshire and the M82 would be
phenomenal too. Living in Laneshawbridge, we are closer to Bradford than we are
to Blackburn by about 1 mile, but the journey to Bradford takes a full 60 minutes and
the journey to Blackburn, half of that thanks to the M65 motorway.

We also support the call for no parking charges in Colne.

Kind regards

From:

Sent: 22 January 2019 14:52

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.ulk>
Cc:

Subject: Street Parking Charging - Colne

Page 211



| understand it is under consideration to initroduce car parking charges to Colne town
centre,

I would like to register that I object to this in the strongest possible terms.

At the moment Colone town centre is a pleasant and vibrant place. People can park
their cars safely and at no cost whilst they shop, which keeps the high street
businesses trading and promotes a pleasant atmosphere, unlike Nelson town centre
which is a disaster, where many shops are vacant and the Shopping Centre is oniy
half occupied.

Car owners already pay through the nose for using their vehicles. Road tax & fuel tax
reaps vast sums of money for the treasury whilst little is spent on the road network
and its upkeep. We spend hours in traffic jams and have our cars damaged by
potholes. A lady was killed near my home recently when she fell off her bicycle

after hitting a pothole and was crushed to death under a wagon. Apart from the
death of the lady, the whole area was in chaos for hours and hours due to the main
through road being closed whilst Police carried out investigations.

[ implore you to leave Colne alone as far as car parking charges are concerned.

Yours sicerely

From:
Sent: 22 January 2019 23:25

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: On-street parking charges in town centres in Lancashire

I wish to voice my opinion regarding recent reports that on-street parking charges
may be introduced in my home town Earby.

| don't know if you have actually visited Earby, but businesses find it hard enough to
attract custom in the first place without placing this financial obstacle in the way. In
my opinion if there is a charge to park outside a shop here in Earby, drivers will
simply drive to the nearest supermarket where there will be free parking.

Please keep your meddling hands off our town which is trying its best to survive in
these tough economic times. Maybe if you paid your Council Senior Management
team less eye watering salary packages, you wouldn't need to fleece local people in
the way you do.

Yours faithfully

Page 212



From:

Sent: 23 January 2019 10:35

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qgov.uk>
Subject: Introduction of car parking charges in Colne

| have been informed in a letter from | that there is a possibility of
car parking charges being introduced in Colne town centre. | wish to raise an
objection to this as | feel it would seriously damage trade in the area. Two years ago
I invested a lot of money in opening an electrical sales business on road in
Colne. We sell everything from washing machines and fridges to light bulbs and
vacuum cleaner belts as well as a high turn over of spare parts and repairs. As such,
many of our customers simply pop in and out and find convenience in there being
accessible short stay and long stay parking spaces close by. | strenuously object to
there being a car parking charge introduced in Colne as I feel it will be extremely
damaging for my business trade and for the trade of neighbouring businesses.

Yours Sincerely

From:

Sent: 23 January 2019 15:24

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.qgov.uk>
Subject: Budget Consultation Responses

Dear Budget Consultation Response Team,

Please accept my apologies for not having submitted the Parish Councils
observations on the Budget Consultation by Friday 18th January as requested. | am
afraid | only got back off my 2 week holiday on Sunday 20th January and found out
that the Parish Council wished to submit the following response cn Monday 21st
January. | would therefore be very grateful if the following observations could be
taken into account when discussing the feedback from this Consultation.

The Parish Council object to the funding cuts as many have a significant detrimental
impact on the most vulnerable people in society ie: children, vulnerable adults, the
elderly. Year after year these vulnerable members of our community face changes
and cutbacks to their service provision from education services, to housing provision
and elderly peoples services. These services are often a lifeline for the people using
them. The Parish Council feel that the people who are being most affected by the
proposed cuts should be those who are primarily consulted on the cuts, as they are
more likely to be able to give an accurate account of how these cuts will affect them

Page 213



and the significance of the impact it will have on their lives, their health and well
being, and their financial status. The Parish Council would suggest that the deficit in
funding should be raised from other sources eg: a small increase in Council Tax
across the County would bring in significant revenue towards this type of service
provision. The Council would like to ask if the cuts in the LCC Budget are proposed
as a result of alternative Central Government provision for vulnerable people and
related to the changes in the provision of benefits to children, the elderly and
vuinerable adults?

Thanking you in anticipation of your consideration of the Parish Councils response.

Kind regards

From; )

Sent: 23 January 2019 19:10

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Ce:

Subject: On-street Parking Charges in Colne

Hello,

We understand that Lancashire County Council is considering the pros and cons of
introducing charges for on-street parking in Colne.

In our opinion, any such charges will simply encourage shoppers to make more use
of Asda, Sainsbury's and the North Valley Road retail parks, to the detriment of
shops in the town centre and along Albert Road. The relative health of these shops
contributes significantly to employmient and the town’s sense of community and
relative prosperity. No one wishes to see empty properties and charity shops take
the place of our much needed retail businesses.

We have no connection with any retail business (except as customers!) but we do
hope that the Council will make every effort to retain our local shops by continuing to
allow free on-street parking.

Kind regards,

Page 214



From: -

Sent: 23 January 2019 20:01

To: Modermn Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street Parking Charges

Good Evening,

My email is in response to the news that you're considering infroducing street
parking charges in town centres. | live in Salterforth and | think this is a terrible idea.
It will put people off using local shops and restaurants/cafes etc. It's not like there's a
shortage of parking either in my area. There is plenty for all, and it's one of the things
that brings people to our area. Local businesses would suffer if you introduce parking
charges and this could even lead to unemployment.

Kind Regards

From:

Sent: 24 January 2019 08:16

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: street parking charges

I am a resident of Colne and would like te put forward my objection to the proposed
street parking charges in Colne town centre.

The people of Colne do not have vast amounts of money, however the rents and
rates of business are kept low and as a result our town centre prospers and most
shops are occupied. A lot of their income is generated by the through traffic which
the parking enables people to stop off easily and pick up what they want.

If parking charges are introduced, people are not going to stop and bob into the
shops. They will drive through and go the larger companies where they are able to
park. Today’s society is one where people do not want to walk anywhere, they want
to park right outside where they want to be.

Golne is a vibrant place of lots of shops, café and bars. If the charges were to be
introduced the town would slowly die and become like many of the other towns in the
area. Colne has bucked that trend so far so why interfere with what is a good thing
for the business and local people of the town.

Please object to the introduction of street parking charges on behalf of Colne and its
continued success.

Page 215



Many thanks

From:

Sent: 24 January 2019 10:15

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street parking charges

Dear sir,

We would like to register our strong objection about the proposal for Lancashire
county council to introduce on street parking charges.

We live in kelbrook and regularly attend Colne and Barnoldswick in the car to do our
various shopping, these are both successful and thriving towns that have
independent shops which are accessible because of no worry parking, whereas
towns with limited and payparking are struggling.

The council should realise it is better to obtain rates for these businesses that
flourish rather than end up possibly shutting them down when people stop
patronising them if you introduce on street parking charges.

All this will do is send people to out of town shopping malls, surely a recipe for
disaster for our local towns.

Regards

From:

Sent: 24 January 2019 12:52

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov{@iancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street Parking Charges

Dear Sirs

I would like you to add my name to the list of objectors to the proposed street parking
charges in Colne,

Since moving to the Colne area 4 years ago, | have been very impressed with the
promotion of independent traders in the town and personally make an effort to
support local businesses.

One great advantage to enable this has been the provision of free parking and it's
always an element of the town that | promote to visitors.

Proportionally there are fewer empty retail business units in Colne that anywhere
else that [ visit in the North-West, and it would be a negative and backward step in
my opinion to start charging for parking.

Thank you.

Page 216



From:

Sent: 24 January 2019 16:52

To: Medern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Ce: ) o

Subject: Re: Possible introduction of on street parking charges in Colne, Lancashire

Dear Sir, Madam,

I strongly oppose any charges for parking in Colne, Lancashire, both on street and in
car parks.

Our local shops and businesses would suffer, and as these enterprises pay a lot of
money in Council Tax anyway, any further expenses would be very detrimental.

Most cars are only parked on the main road for a few minutes, just for people to pop
into a shop and out again very quickly. It is very convenient just to park for a few
minutes and dash into a shop, and out again, to carry on a journey. Colne is a busy
market town type of place and has a great atmosphere.

Why change this just to gain a few pounds in the short term. It might bring a decline
in the number of people using local shops and businesses.

Please leave things a s they are. Everyone is satisfied with things the way they are
at the moment.

Yours truly,

On 24 Jan 2019, at 13:51, -wrote:
Dear
| am one of the parent representatives on the SEND Partnership Board and have
been involved in discussions about Lancashire Break Time. In September,

asked me to help + understand why parents weren’t making
as much use of LBT. Within 2 hours of putting the question to 1000 parents, I'd
received over 200 responses which shows the strength of feeling out there.
Unfortunately, did not respond to the summary | collated and the next | heard
was that LBT is likely to be cut.

Page 217



| know first-hand how important LBT is for many of our families and so would like to
have the opportunity for a small group of us to come and speak with you about why it
is so important, who & how it helps, what the impact on other services would be if it
were to be scrapped and also why numbers dropped last year.

We're aware that there is going to be a consuttation but feel an open and honest
chat can convey far more than the written word. Everyone is knows that resources
are limited but so far there has been no attempt to sit down with parents and look at
how to use what there is for maximum benefit.

Kind regards

On 25 Jan 2019, at 14:07, wrote:
Dear County Councillor,

Please find attached a letter and further briefing information about the Integrated
Home Improvement Service in Lancashire. As you will already be aware, Lancashire
County Council's budget proposals include a proposal to reduce and then end the
funding for this service. While we fully appreciate the difficult financial situation that
the Council faces, we strongly befieve that removing this service — which Supports
the most vulnerable people in our local communities — will not bring the savings
desired; in fact it will result in additional costs to the council and its partners in heath
as a result of increased demand for other services including home care, residential
care, A&E visits and hospital admissions.

We are urging you to reconsider the proposal and to open a dialogue with the
organisations that deliver these services to find a way to ensure this vital,
preventative service remains available to older and vulnerable people in Lancashire.

If you would like to discuss this further, please contact myself or one of my
colleagues in your local area (see table below)

Kind regards,

Provider = = = =~ [Districts Covered

Care & Repair (Wyre & Fylde) | Fylde, Wyre

Chorley Borough Council Home Chorley
Improvement Agency

Homewise Society Hyndburn, Ribble Valley

M8V (Mosscare St Vincent's) Burnley, Pendle, Rossendale

Preston Care & Repair Chorley, Preston, South Ribble, West
Lancashire

Page 218




From:

Sent: 25 January 2019 12:24

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngovi@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Proposed parking charges

25-1-2019
Dear Sir or Madam,
We are writing to you in connection with the proposed introduction of on street
parking charges in Colne.
Although in the area around Colne we have quite a few supermarkets this makes it
more difficult for the town to keep a variety of independent shops available to our
community .
The small businesses in Colne have managed to give us an excellent variety of
shops and we are worried that the people who use these shops are not going to pay
parking charges and eventually Colne will become vet another Ghost Town with local
shops losing valuable custom .
Perhaps extra funds could be raised by more speed cameras and instant fines for
the numerous vehicles parking on double yellow lines which seems to be very
prevalent in our area.

Yours Sincerelv

From:
Sent: 25 January 2019 14:11

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@Ilancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Parking charges proposal

Hello,

| have been informed Lancashire is undertaking a consultation on introducing
parking charges to town centres across |lancashire. | cannot find any information
about this on your consultaion website which is very annoying, and means | do not
know exactly what you are proposing. Please send me details immediately as | do
not even know the consultation dates.

Regards,

From:
Sent: 25 January 2019 14,35

Page 219



To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Parking charges

Good afternoon, following my earlier email, and other attempts to find out more
information, | am going to make a response to your proposal to introduce parking
charges across towns in Lancashire.

| am appalled. | know you are hard up but this is a real ‘shoot yourself in the foot'
idea. Colne is surprisingly economically vibrant right now, and any change to the free
parking system will knock it to pieces. You are supposed to be supporting us, that's
what we pay a huge amount of council tax for, not making decisions that actively
negate all the good work done over years by yourselves, Pendle Council, traders,
and residents. Closing the Colne tip was the last really stupid thing you did, and this
is going to be the next, if you push this through against local peoples wishes.

Small towns can be decimated by small changes to the structure of how things wark.
Local residents, visitors and those passsing through, need to be able to park free, to
give the time to walk around, use the cafes, do the weekly shop, chat to friends they
meet, go to the pub, volunteer in charity shops, etc. Worrying about time limits
because you have to pay, worrying about costs, which will be significant for people in
East Lancashire, is not the way to maintain Colne's economic basis.

It will also push parking into residential streets. Colne is small, the car parks need to
be used. Lots of people live in the town and already deal with significant non resident
parking. This will become unsustainable if you start charging and is completely unfair
on residents.

Whatever your financial reasoning is for this, it would be a mistake, on every level |
can think of. Colne is not a city, or a big town, it is still quaint and people like it that
way. | therefore request strongly that you do not introduce these measures in Colne.

| may submit a second response on receipt of further information.

Thank you,
Best regards,

From: ) _
Sent: 27 January 2019 15:14

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Street car parking charges in Colne

Regarding the current consultations on the possible introduction of street car parking
in Lancashire. Colne does not lend itself to these type of charges due to the type of
town it is. So far it has been one of the few towns where the high street has adapted

Page 220



to modern times successfully, and incurring charges at this time would be
detrimental to it’s future.

Please don't let this town suffer the same way so may others have. We are proud of
Colne for the way it has a diversified and bucked the trend and wish it to continue
doing so for many years to come,

With regards

From:
Sent: 29 January 2019 12:05

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Colne

To whom it may concern.

My wife and | are writing to object in the strongest possible terms to the suggestion
of introducing ‘on - street’ parking charges in Colne and other small towns. We both
use the shops and facilities quite regularly but rarely for more than 30 minutes — as
do many other shoppers. If we require a longer stay then we use the spaces on the
main disc parking areas (ie. Health Centre or Library).

Many Colne shops are small, family run concerns who are already operating in an
unfair market with increased rental on leases, higher rates and on-line shopping etc.
Nevertheless they are coping but ‘on street’ charges may well deter a few
customers thus being the final straw for some shops.

If | may quote part of an article by MP (Colne Life - Winter
2018/20189)

“.... we should not forget about all the good things that are going on in our
town, especially the health of our high street. We are really blessed to have such a
strong group of local retailers.”

Another point to make - every shop that closes means less money for the council.
Suggestion (not sure if it is possible) — For every free car parking space provided by
the large stores maybe a levy of £5.00 per year for each space ( not a big proportion
of turnover for the big stores) would raise a considerable amount for LCC funds.
(Levels the playing field for small businesses!)

Yours faithfully

Page 221



From: )
Sent: 29 January 2019 15:09
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>

Subject: Street parking charges

In times when town centres are struggling and shops are closing because of high
overheads, people shopping on line and at out of town shopping centres where
parking is free, it seems to me to be the most ridicuious idea to bring in on-

street parking charges. Town centre parking should be free to encourage people
into towns to shop.

If people stop going into town more and mote shops will be closing down and then
there will be a drop in income from business rates.

From: .
Sent: 29 January 2019 16:55
To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Cc;

Subject: Car Parking Consultation

Good afternoon.

| live in Colne, East Lancashire. We have quite a vibrant High St. In fact, it's doing so
well there is actually a shortage of Charity shops! Colne has coped better than many
local towns in dealing with the fallout of the financial banking crisis, but any recovery
is always delicately balanced.

Threatening to raise revenues by introducing High/Main St (or other town centre) car
parking meter charges is just short sighted and could have a devastating impact on
the the local economy. Don't introduce Car Parking charges in Colne. | know
councils are cash strapped, but econemic growth will bring more prosperity and
greater revenues for Councils through sensible avenues. Please don't gamble with
the livelihoods of our local employers and employees.

Many thanks,

From:
Sent: 30 January 2019 10:40

Page 222



To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Pendle traffic

DEar Sir or Madam,

I consider on street parking in the towns in Pendle unacceptable.

Apart from that, the traffic on North Valley Rd needs very serious attention. If the
railway link could be restored it would be essential for transport companies to be
persuaded to use rail rather than road for a lot of the heavy stuff.; a Colne by-pass
would be the next step as traffic is never going to reduce.

From: )

Sent: 31 January 2019 16:42

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@lancashire.gov.uk>
Ce:

Subject: Street Parking Charges

We would like to register our opposition to the proposal of street parking charges in
town centres across Lancashire.

It is hard enough now for small shops to make any profit. Do you really want to have
empty vacant shops in our town centres. The Government have said they will do all
they can to help shop keepers, if you put street parking charges in place all you will
be doing is driving trade away.

We also do not want to have to pay to park outside our own house.

No doubt the cost of installing parking meters and policing it will outweight the
revenue received.

Street Parking Charges in a town centre is outrageous. Help town centres to
flourish.

From:
Sent: 03 February 2019 11:47

To: Modern Gov Enquiries <moderngov@Ilancashire.gov.uk>
Subject: Street Parking Charges

Page 223



| am dismayed to learn that Lancashire County Council propose to apply possible
parking charges in towns across Lancashire. In particular in Colne, it would be a
disastrous retrograde step to impose this. The town centre is unique, well used and it
would destroy the little shops and businesses. | cannot believe such a proposal has
even been suggested when everyone knows the high street is “dying” this would be
the final nail in the coffin. Where is the common sense in this? It is just greed,
parking should be free everywhere, why do people use the big stores and
supermarkets because there is plenty of FREE PARKING. Please DO NOT destroy
further our beautiful towns and villages by this illogical action. There is no point in
gaining monies by parking charges when you will loose it further down the line with
shops going out of business and the town becoming deserted. If there are no shops
why would people pay to park?

Be logical and use a little business sense!

Page 224 o



Appendix C

Service Challenge Savings
(Consultation Required)

Lancashir
anCasare

www.lancashire.gov.uk COUHCI| ‘53

Page 225



Contents Page
SCO001 - Waste — Household Waste Recycling
Centre service provision 3
SCO011 - Public Transport - School Transport 5
SCO023 - Highways County Wide Services —
Street Lighting — Part Night lighting 7
SC119 - Special Educational Needs and
Disability Service (SEND) — Lancashire 9
Breaktime
SC400 - Estates — Traveller Sites 12
SC514 - Older People Care Services — Day
Services 14
SC608 - Welfare Rights Service 16
SC609 - Health Improvement Services 19
SC610 - Lancashire Wellbeing Service (LWS) 29
SC611 - Home Improvement Services o4

Page 226




Reference — SC001

Service Name: Waste — Household Waste Recycling
Centre service provision

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £8.064m

Income 2018/19 £0.600m

Net budget 2018/19 £7.464m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.367 -0.367 0.000 0.000 -0.734
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
TBC 0.00 0.00 0.00 TBC
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted

savings

Longridge
Barnoldswick
Clitheroe
Burscough
Skelmersdale
Carnforth
Haslingden

To change Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC)
opening hours to 9:00 — 17:00 throughout the year.

To reduce the opening of the following HWRCs to 5 days
per week:

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,

service users and
external partners
service.

Reduced opening times and days at Household Waste
Recycling Centres (HWRCs).

There is potential for staff redundancies within the HWRC

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Restructuring of the HWRC service staff to accommodate
changes in service delivery and provide most efficient
staffing provision.

Page 227




The saving is based upon minor changes to staffing
levels at four HWRCs to provide consistent levels of staff
provision across the service.

In addition, as part of the restructure all posts within the
service will be on county council terms and conditions
removing the legacy of differing terms and conditions
across the service.

Is external Yes

consultation required

What are the risks These proposals could result in slightly longer waiting
associated with this times but this is minimal.

change and how will
they be mitigated

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one An equality analysis is
been undertaken? required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

Page 228




Reference — SC011

Service Name:

Public Transport - School Transport

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20
relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £7.860m
Income 2018/19 £3.512m
Net budget 2018/19 £4.348m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.050 -0.050 0.000 -0.100
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to deliver
the budgeted savings

To agree to the removal of school bus services
where no pupils statutorily entitled to free school
transport have travelled on a contracted school bus
for 2 years and where season ticket revenue does
not cover the cost of the contract.

Impact upon service, other
LCC services, service users
and external partners

The proposal will impact upon school age children
travelling to school by bus. The proposal is likely to
have a greater impact on children living in rural and
low population areas where traveling numbers are
low. It may also impact upon school numbers in
certain schools if parents/guardians make school
placement choices based on existing school and
public bus transport availability.

Actions needed to deliver
the service change

The removal of bus services will only take place
where there has been no statutory entitlement on
the route for 2 years.

Schools and parents will be informed of the removal
of the service 12 months in advance to allow time
for adjustments to be made. The earliest a service
will cease is Sept 2020.

Is external consultation
required

Yes

Page 229




What are the risks
associated with this change
and how will they be
mitigated

Services may have to be reintroduced if new
statutory scholars start attending schools where the
service has been removed. This would be mitigated
by focusing on those route where there has been
no statutory scholar for at least 2 years.

Is an Equality Analysis
required and, if so, has one
been undertaken?

An equality analysis is required and will be
informed by the results of the public consultation
and provided to Cabinet along with the
consultation report.

Page 230




Reference — SC119

Service Name:

Special Educational Needs and Disability
Service (SEND) — Lancashire Breaktime

Which 'start year' does this option
relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or | 2019/20

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £1.040m
Income 2018/19 £0.000m
Net budget 2018/19 £1.040m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.683 -0.357 0.000 0.000 -1.040
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

savings

Decisions needed to Agree to remove the budget for provision of the Lancashire
deliver the budgeted Breaktime Service.

Impact upon service, o
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Parent/carers receiving a short-break through
Lancashire Breaktime may no longer be able to receive
this break. Children/young people who are involved in
a positive group activity from Lancashire Breaktime
whilst parent/carers receive a short-break may no
longer be able to access this service. Parent/carers
may therefore request a statutory assessment under
Section 17, Children Act 1989 to receive this support
through a Child's Plan, requiring the case to be
assessed by statutory social work teams. Following
assessment, the needs of some children and young
people and their parents/carers may be required to be
met through an assessed package of support (for
example, commissioned services, Direct Payments).
This may require a Child in Need Plan, an allocated
worker and ongoing involvement (e.g. reviews, visits).
Lancashire Breaktime offers group activities which
currently are difficult to provide through assessed
packages of support (e.g. Direct Payments packages
of support). There may be reduced opportunities for
children/young people to access provision appropriate
for their needs.

Page 231




A reduction in Lancashire Breaktime would reduce the
resources available to education providers, health
services and early help services to signpost
parent/carers to for support.

There is a potential impact on Lancashire Breaktime
commissioned providers. The proposal may result in
staffing reductions or a reduction of hours.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Development and communication of information to parents
and carers about provision that may be accessed by
children and young people without an assessed need.

Consultation with parents, carers and young people.

Development of final proposals for decision.

Is external
consultation required

Yes

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

Capacity of statutory services to undertake any
requests for assessment which result as a reduction of
Lancashire Breaktime provision. There is some
mitigation as caseloads in Children's Social Care are
considered manageable currently. Once assessments
are completed, cases could be held by Family Support
Workers. The numbers of children and young people
requiring assessment and subsequently receiving
assessed packages of support would be monitored and
consideration given to the impact of this on the service
capacity.

Financial impact — Possible increase in Section 17
budget spend. The cost would be informed by
assessment and we would monitor the numbers of
these from families who previously received
Lancashire Breaktime.

Local Area SEND Inspection impact — Parent/carer
dissatisfaction and potential negative inspection view.
We will consult with parents, carers and young people
and communicate the proposed change and reasons
for this. There will be some mitigation through the
development of clear information to parents and
carers, through the Lancashire Local Offer, of potential
alternative provision that may be accessed by children
and young people without an assessed need.
Reputational risk — Parental representation regarding
the reduction of Lancashire Breaktime on social media
and through complaint as well as potential risk of
escalation to national support organisations. We will
consult with parents, carers and young people and
communicate the proposed change and reasons for
this.

More broadly, we will build on the improvements and
investments made in SEND services since the

8

Page 232




their needs

inspection to ensure that children and young people
with SEND are able to access support appropriate to

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one
been undertaken?

An equality analysis is
required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

Page 233




Reference — SC400

Service Name:

Estates — Traveller Sites

Which 'start year' does this option
relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2019/20 to undertake consultation, to
consider the options, make a

2022/23 recommendation, and action the final
decision.

Gross budget 2018/19 £0.131m

Income 2018/19 £0.000m

Net budget 2018/19 £0.131m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.131 0.000 0.000 -0.131m
(This does not include any potential future capital expenditure)
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Lancashire County Council set a budget of £0.131m each
year to maintain three traveller sites across the County.
As there is no statutory requirement to retain these sites
this has been identified as a potential saving.

To deliver this saving a decision is required to begin a
consultation exercise with the proposal to declare the
three LCC owned traveller sites surplus to LCC needs.

A further decision will follow the consultation process and
seeking interested parties views for consideration. This
will make recommendations on how the savings could be
achieved and could result in a decision such as to retain
or put the sites up for sale. It should be noted that an
option to sell could contain the condition that the sites are
to be retained as traveller sites.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Impact on Service Users (occupiers of the sites)

District Councils (including staff on site) who manage the
running of the sites

Other agencies

10

Page 234




Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

An initial decision, to undertake a consultation with the
proposal to declare the sites surplus to LCC needs.

Undertake a consultation exercise to determine options
and views.

To Review the findings, and options, and make a
recommendation on option/s to achieve the savings.

A final decision on preferred option, will be required

Implement decision.

Is external
consultation required

Yes

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

The decision to undertake this consultation, will start the
process.

Options available are to be identified following
consultation, but could include sale.

Potential legal challenges.

Community relations

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one An equality analysis is

been undertaken?

required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

11

Page 235




Reference — SC514

Service Name: Older People Care Services — Day
Services

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £2.145m

Income 2018/19 £2.577Tm

Net budget 2018/19 £0.432m

*This budget represents the day service of older people in-house service only

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.040 -0.039 0.000 0.000 -0.079
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

To equalise the charges levied on individuals for attending
the county council's own older people's day services (and
associated transport costs) so that self-funders pay the
same rate that statutory agencies pay for the places they
commission.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Charges to self-funders will increase by 15% which is a
significant above inflation increase.

Approximately 300 older people who self-fund use the
services in any given quarter.

This will increase the income for the service and better
reflect the true cost of running day services.

Some changes to internal finance systems may be
needed.

Communications with those likely to be affected will need
to be clear and timely.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

This will need consultation and communication with all
affected people who currently use the service or are
considering doing so before April 2019 so they can

12

Page 236




express their views and make alternative arrangements if
they so wish.

System changes.
New marketing materials to be developed.
Reassessments may be needed for anyone deciding they

no longer wish to use the day service due to increased
costs.

Is external
consultation required

Yes

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

Lancashire County Council's own day services operate in
a competitive market and so older people and families may
choose to go elsewhere if they prefer services in the
independent sector which may reduce income.

Reassessments may be needed for anyone deciding they
no longer wish to use the day service due to increased
costs.

If consultation raises significant concerns about the impact
of the increase in rates there would be the alternative of
phasing in the increase for existing service users over a
two or three year period. However older people using the
day services for the first time from April 2019 could still be
charged the new rate

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one An equality analysis is

been undertaken?

required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

13

Page 237




Reference — SC608

Service Name:

Welfare Rights Service

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £0.670m
Income 2018/19 £0.000m
Net budget 2018/19 £0.670m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.380 0.000 0.000 -0.380
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 -12.20 0.00 0.00 -12.20
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Agree to limit the provision of welfare benefit advice and
guidance to complex cases only

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The likely impact:

e The Welfare Rights Service will have a reduced
capacity to address the lower level benefit enquiries
from citizens, partners and other LCC services and
will not be able to support as many vulnerable
people,at a time when we expect that the need for
that support may grow.

e There could be an escalation of level of need which
may increase pressure on other public and LCC
services

e There may be increased demand for advice and
support from the voluntary, community and faith
sector which, in turn, may not have the volunteer
skills or capacity to cope.

e There will be a reduction in the Welfare Rights
Service team (potentially 10.5 fte posts) and there
will be an impact on the LCC Customer Access
Service (1.7fte posts) as a result of reducing the
telephony support provided for the Welfare Rights
Service.

e The costs of unclaimed welfare benefit used to
support care packages may need to be picked up

14

Page 238




by LCC and could lead to increased costs and
demand on statutory services.

e Lancashire economy — potential reduced benefit
income and spend in local economy

Actions needed to e Develop and undertake consultation
deliver the service e Manage the transition and staff reduction
change e Prepare other services (internal and external to

LCC) for the implementation of the change
e Manage communications / reputation

Is external Yes
consultation required

What are the risks associated with this change and how will they be mitigated

Risks Mitigation

There is a risk that vulnerable citizens will | Remaining capacity deployed to
have to wait for the service or not| target a proportion of the most
challenge or succeed in their challenge | complex cases through tribunal
to receive their correct welfare rights | support and representation, working
entitlements. in conjunction with external services
such as Citizen Advice Bureaux, at a
neighbourhood level; and also align
more closely with similar internal LCC
services.

Reduced capacity to provide generic
welfare benefits advice and represent
cases at tribunals.

There is a risk that vulnerable citizens | Mitigation has yet to be fully
may not have the competency or digital | understood and developed.

accessibility and technology to be able to
challenge their welfare rights application
or entitlement concerns without support.

Reducing capacity and technical support | Review skills and capacity to deliver
in relation to financial assessment (Adult | technical support across a number of
social care) and special guardianship | similar services within LCC.

orders (Children's social care), at a time
when complexity is increasing e.g. in
relation to Universal Credit.

As Customer Access capacity for | Fully developed project plan to
telephony support reduces, customers | implement changes with customers

find access points to other LCC services | effectively and consistently

to require this information. signposted to alternative services,
including signposting to online
guidance.

Increased demand on LCC — Adult /| Explore potential for working in

Children's Social Care and on health | neighbourhoods to develop

services more generally. community connectors and social

prescribing with partners.

15

Page 239




Inequalities in how long people live and
poor health will increase, especially for
those from more deprived communities.

Utilise the remaining Citizen's Advice
Bureaux (volunteers) / VCFS / district
council / online benefits advice offer.

Savings not delivered as profiled — lack of
service capacity to meet multiple
consultation, analysis and Cabinet
meeting timelines.

Utilise corporate capacity for legal,
consultation and equality audit
support.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one

been undertaken?

An equality analysis is
required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

16

Page 240




Reference — SC609

Service Name:

Health Improvement Services

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £20.300m
Income 2018/19 £0.000m
Net budget 2018/19 £20.300m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.337 -1.838 0.000 0.000 -2.175
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.500

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Cabinet to approve consultation on service remodelling

(drug,

alcohol, tobacco and healthy weight services) and

reduced service offer.

Approve additional investment of £0.500m to undertake
work in relation to the service redesign.

Reducing the funding resource whilst simultaneously
making them more efficient through redesigning the
service

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The likely impact of service remodelling:

Service users will have a reduced access to drug
and alcohol rehabilitation services (estimated 100
less placements per year);

Community substance misuse services likely to
see an increased demand and burden on their
service

Service Users — the priority focus will be on the
most vulnerable people, for example those with
learning disabilities and mental ill health, will mean
some people will find it more difficult to access and
may have to wait longer to receive the services
Service users may be less likely to successfully
complete treatment and more likely to re-present

17

Page 241




The reduced offer for smoking cessation services
may result in an increase in smoking rates and
demand for clinical services.

People will no longer be able to directly access
healthy weight services to address their obesity and
physical activity needs to improve their health.

May increase demand on social care, criminal
justice, NHS services and Voluntary, Community
and Faith Sector services.

Renegotiation of existing provision will have an
impact on those who currently provide the services
and those people who work for them.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Develop approach to service remodelling and
engage with potential bidders / providers

Develop consultation approach

Confirm relevant policy changes, procurement
options and service model

Notify providers of decision (potential for service of
notice / service decommissioning / service
commissioning and contract variation)

Manage communications / reputation

Is external
consultation required

Yes

What are the risks associated with this change and how will they be mitigated

Risks

Mitigation

addiction

Reduced access to drug / alcohol /| Repurpose some of remaining budget
tobacco support services to manage / | provision to:
improve health outcomes associated with

e Enable community substance
misuse treatment services and
recovery support to provide a
clear pathway to sustained
recovery led by lived
experience;

e Enable better use of current
physical, environmental and
partner assets to increase
physical activity;

e Maximise the potential of digital
technology to support healthy
lifestyles

Utilise the voluntary, community and
faith sector offer along with better
alignment with Lancashire Adult
Learning and services offered via our
libraries that relate to prescribing
social activities

18

Page 242




Cease access to targeted healthy weight
|/ physical activity support to manage /
improve health outcomes associated with
inactivity / overweight

Explore potential for neighbourhood
working for community connectors,
social prescribing with partners

Inequalities in how long people live and
poor health will increase, especially for
those from more deprived communities.

Potential increased demand on
Children's and Adult Social Care and on
health services more generally

Savings not delivered as profiled — lack
of service capacity to meet multiple
consultation. analysis and Cabinet
meeting timelines

Utilise corporate capacity for legal,
procurement, consultation and
equality assessment support

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one An equality analysis is

been undertaken?

required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

19

Page 243




Reference — SC610

Service Name:

Lancashire Wellbeing Service (LWS)

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021
2022/23

122 or

Gross budget 2018/19 £2.660m
Income 2018/19 £0.000m
Net budget 2018/19 £2.660m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.503 -1.507 0.000 0.000 -2.010
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to Approve the cessation of the Lancashire Wellbeing
deliver the budgeted Service.

savings

Impact upon service, The likely impact of service cessation:

other LCC services, .
service users and
external partners

Possible increased demand on statutory adult
social care (which has been accounted for within
the saving value)

Service users — Although the original contract
required 20,000 individuals to be supported,
approx. 11,000 service users per year access the
service for a range of support interventions and or
onward referral.

Health services / primary care — Increased demand
on clinical services if non-medical support is
withdrawn from the system, and need escalates.
Potential increased demand on voluntary
community and faith sector

Actions needed to °
deliver the service °

Develop consultation approach
Notify provider of decision (potential for service of

change notice / service decommissioning)
e Manage communications / reputation
e Neighbourhood working for community connectors,
social prescribing with partners
Is external Yes

consultation required

20

Page 244




What are the risks associated with this change and how will they be mitigated

Risks

Mitigation

Impact on vulnerable citizens in terms of
social isolation, debt, low level mental
and physical health

Further erosion of VCFS offer in
Lancashire

Increased demand on Adult Social Care
and on health services more generally
and on Adult Social Care and on health
services more generally

Inequalities in how long people live and
poor health will increase, especially for
those from more deprived communities.

Utilise the wider Voluntary
Community and Faith Sector (VCFS)
offer - Neighbourhood working for
community connectors, social
prescribing with partners

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
investment in similar services in parts
of county (Fylde and East
Lancashire)

Current mental health services and
primary care provision

Savings not delivered as profiled — lack of
service capacity to meet multiple
consultation, analysis and Cabinet
meeting timelines

Utilise corporate capacity for legal,
procurement, consultation and
equality audit support

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one

been undertaken?

An equality analysis is
required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

21

Page 245




Reference — SC611

Service Name:

Home Improvement Services

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £0.880m
Income 2018/19 £0.000m
Net budget 2018/19 £0.880m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.220 -0.660 0.000 0.000 -0.880
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Decisions needed to Approve the cessation of the Integrated Home
deliver the budgeted Improvement Service Contracts held by the authority.
savings

Impact upon service, The likely impact of service cessation:

other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Service users (predominantly people with long term
conditions and people with disabilities) may not
have access to other support to assist with and
oversee maintenance, repair and improvement of
their properties, housing options advice, income
maximisation or have access to a reliable
handypersons service.

Capacity and viability of home improvement
agencies for undertaking case finding of eligible
and vulnerable residents, and trialling the delivery
of trusted assessor programme may be
compromised.

This service supports the delivery of non-medical
support for falls prevention and minor adaptations
to aid independent living. Cessation of service
might lead to increased demand on health and
social care services.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Develop consultation approach

Notify providers of decision (potential for service of
notice and  service  decommissioning /
recommissioning with narrower scope in relation to
minor adaptations)

22

Page 246




e Manage communications / reputation

Is external Yes

consultation required

What are the risks associated with this change and how will they be mitigated

Risks

Mitigation

Increased demand on Adult Social Care
and on health services more generally,
particularly in relation to falls in the home

Inequalities in how long people live and
poor health will increase, especially for
those from more deprived communities.

Would need to remodel delivery of
statutory minor adaptations by Adults
Social Care

Work with district councils to consider
whether the core service could be
funded through Disabled Facility Grant
allocations (may vary by district). This
grant is likely to increase following the
recent budget statement by the
chancellor.

Consider retaining an element of core
funding to facilitate delivery of
statutory minor adaptations work

Savings not delivered as profiled — lack of
service capacity to meet multiple
consultation, analysis and Cabinet
meeting timelines

Utilise corporate capacity for legal,
consultation and Equality audit
support

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one

been undertaken?

An equality analysis is
required and will be
informed by the
results of the public
consultation and
provided to Cabinet
along with the
consultation report.

23

Page 247




Page 248



Appendix D

Service Challenge Savings
(Consultation not required)

Lancashir
anCasare

www.lancashire.gov.uk COUHCI| ‘53

Page 249



Contents Page

SCO002 - Waste — Reduce non-recyclable waste 4
disposal at HWRCs
SCO012 - Integrated Transport Services 6
SCO013 - Bus Shelter Advertising 8
SCO029 - Highways — Gully Emptying 9
SC034 - Highways Network Regulation (Parking 11
— On street pay and display)
SCO035 - Highway Regulation (Bus Lane 13
Enforcement)
SCO048 - Highways Regulation (Street Works 15
Permit Fees)
SCO060 - Core Business Systems - Digital 17
Contact by Consent
SCO074 - Customer Access Service — LCC 20
Customer Journey
SCO075 - Customer Access Service — Reduce o5
Opening Hours
SCO078 - Customer Access Service — Stop 07
Delivery of Highways Emails
SC103 - Lancashire Youth Offending Team 30
(YOT)
SC104 — Lancashire Youth Offending Team 32
SC109 - Safeguarding, Inspection and Audit 34
(Audit Team)
SC112 - Review of the management structure 36
across Children's Social Care
SC113 - Education and Children's Services

. 38
Business Support
SC122 - Lancashire Safeguarding Children's 40
Board
SC123 - Demand Management Projects
including an expansion of Family Group 42
Conferencing
SC124 - Children's Social Care 44
SC134 - Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities - Independent Non Maintained 46
Special Schools
SC136 - School Improvement 48
SC312 — Exchequer 50
SC316 - Corporate Finance 51
SC317 — Corporate Finance 53
SC358 - Child Protection Legal Services 54
Legal Fees/Disbursements
SC366 - Child Protection Legal Services 56
Reduction of 25 Public Law Outline cases
SC368 - Child Protection Legal Services 58

Police Disclosure costs

Page 250




SC374 - Democratic Services — Freeze Annual

Uplift 60
SC375 - Democratic Services — Member

, 62
Subsistence
SC401 - Facilities Management 64
SC501 - Adult Social Care Community (Older 66
People (OP) / Physical Disability (PD))
SC505 - Home care for older adults and people
with physical disabilities — promoting single- 69
handed care
SC507 - Changes in Night Time Support rate for 73
commissioned services
SC508 - Modernisation of Supported Housing 77
SC511 - Enablement 83
SC512 - Acceleration of Disability Service 85
Supported Living Remodelling
SC513 - Lancashire Care Foundation Trust
(LCFT) supported living scheme transfer to 87
LCCs Disability Service
SC518 - Adult Social Care — Reassessing Direct 90
Payments
SC520 - Adult Social Care — Promoting Direct 92
Debit
SC521 - Adult Social Care — Residential Care 94
Status
SC602 - Children & Family Wellbeing (CFW) 96
SC605 - Bus Network Education Resource 98
SC616 - Patient Safety and Safeguarding 99
SC801 - Planning and Environment 100
(environmental information charges)
SC805 - Economic Development - Increase
Income from Lancashire County Developments 101
Limited (Lancashire Business Park)
SC811 - Economic Development 103

Page 251




Reference — SC002

Service Name:

Waste — Reduce non-recyclable waste
disposal at HWRCs

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £8.064m
Income 2018/19 £0.600m
Net budget 2018/19 £7.464m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.250 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.250

FTE implications:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Agree measures to reduce non-recyclable waste disposal
at Household Waste Recycling Centres.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The saving will be delivered through changes in operations
at Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) in order
to ensure recyclable waste is prevented from being
deposited in the non-recyclable waste containers. This
change may be noticeable to service users as it will result
in increased scrutiny and separation of the wastes being
delivered. There is potential that on some occasions
customers may encounter minor delays in depositing their
rubbish. Facilities may appear more untidy at busy times
as separated items are gathered prior to storage.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Changes to operations at HWRCs to reduce open
accessibility to non-recyclable containers for members of
the public.

Increased engagement between HWRC staff and
customers and greater promotion of waste separation.

Staff will be encouraged to actively open bags, boxes or
other containers containing waste in order to retrieve
recyclable materials.

Page 252




Operations will be planned on a site by site basis to take
into account the general layout, size and usage of each
facility.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

Reducing the amount of non-recyclable waste may not be
achieved in sufficient quantities although analysis of
materials deposited in non-recyclable containers indicate
that the required levels can be achieved. Delivery of this
saving will be difficult to measure as the amount of non-
recyclable waste collected varies each year

Some customers may perceive the active sorting of their
rubbish as an invasion of privacy. In general it is
anticipated that customers will be encouraged to separate
wastes themselves but where they refuse to do so staff will
be trained on recovery of recyclable materials in this event.
Procedures will be put in place to allow the disposal of
personal or sensitive items without intrusion.

It should be noted that the outcome of the separate HWRC
budget saving has the potential to impact delivery of this
saving.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required

been undertaken?

Page 253




Reference — SC012

Service Name: Integrated Transport Services - Provision
of Bus Passes for Secondary Excluded,
wherever possible

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £23.982m

Income 2018/19 £2.658m

Net budget 2018/19 £21.324m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.400 0.000 0.000 -0.400
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

To cease the practice of procuring taxi transport as the first
choice option for secondary excluded school pupils, and
provide a bus pass in its place.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The proposal will affect the excluded pupils who otherwise
would have received taxi transport. They would instead be
expected to travel by bus. This may impact upon
attendance and punctuality. It may also impact upon the
Pupil Referral Units with increased absenteeism and late
arrivals. There may also be an impact on bus operators
and other passengers on buses should an increase in anti-
social behaviour occur.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Development of an assessment procedure to determine
suitability to travel by bus or justification for taxi transport.

Engagement with Pupil Referral Units

Pupils/families/Head teachers informed of change and
involved in planning for the impact. Full headteacher
engagement in the development of pupil's transport plans
and engaged in discussing strategies to ensure excluded
pupils access education closer to home if there are viable
alternatives.

Page 254




Is external No
consultation required

What are the risks Risk that pupils are unable or unwilling to travel by bus and
associated with this therefore do not attend thereby disrupting their education
change and how will or disrupt schools because of late arrival and bus services
they be mitigated because of poor behaviour. This can be mitigated through

use of an assessment procedure.

Is an Equality Not required
Analysis required and,
if so, has one been
undertaken?

Page 255




Reference — SC013

Service Name: Bus Shelter Advertising
Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £0.000m

Income 2018/19 £0.000m

Net budget 2018/19 £0.000m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.050 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.050
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

To agree to sell advertising space on appropriate bus
shelters and develop other opportunities at bus stations in
conjunction with other county council advertising
initiatives.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Management and administration resources will be
required to establish and maintain a client base.

Actions needed to

Collaboration within the county council to develop a

deliver the service strategy and implementation plan for commercial
change advertising
Is external No

consultation required

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

There is a risk that demand for advertising will fluctuate.

Is an Equality
Analysis required and,

Not required

Page 256




if so, has one been
undertaken?

Reference — SC029

Service Name:

Highways — Gully Emptying

Which 'start year' does this option 2020/21

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £1.547m
Income 2018/19 £0.000m
Net budget 2018/19 £1.547m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.283 0.000 0.000 -0.283
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 3.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

To procure an external contract for routine and reactive
gully cleansing.

Approve the establishment and investment of 3.0 fte to
support the implementation of this saving proposal. The
saving of £0.283m is net of the additional investment
required.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The service delivers the programme of works through in
house delivery with directly employed operatives and 12
county council owned vehicles. It is supplemented by
contractors when required.

The service routinely cleanses 105,000 gullies per year
and undertakes reactive cleaning and jetting works all
within a budget of £1.547m.

The service experiences a high turnover of staff,
recruitment has become more difficult leading to driver
shortages and the consequent use of contractors who
have their own vehicles which means that our vehicles
under-utilised.

Page 257




County council vehicles are ageing and require increasing
maintenance or replacement.

It is proposed to employ a contractor to undertake routine
gully cleansing works, with six vehicles being retained to
support the in house delivery of reactive work. The
proposals include the establishment of 3 posts to provide
supervision of the contract.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Through a competitive tendering process, establish a
framework contract for the delivery of routine gully
cleansing.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

There is no proposed change to current service levels.

Contractor performance will be monitored to ensure
service standards are met.

The contractor will be required to provide records in a
format consistent with the county council's asset
management system

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required

been undertaken?

10

Page 258




Reference — SC034

Service Name: Highways Network Regulation (Parking —
On street pay and display)

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £2.105m

Income 2018/19 £2.675m

Net budget 2018/19 -£0.570m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.100 -0.085 0.000 -0.185
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.114 0.098 0.000 0.000 0.212

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Increase the number of on street pay and display
machines and chargeable parking spaces.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Currently there is charging for parking on street in
Lancaster and Preston only, which is confined to a
relatively small number of streets in the city centres. The
proposal is to expand provision in the city centres and
implement on street charging for parking into other towns
and localities in Lancashire. It is also proposed to review
the level of on street parking charges.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Charging can help to manage the availability of kerbside
parking space where there is a demand for it. Initial areas
for consideration in addition to Lancaster and Preston
comprise Burnley, Lytham, Ormskirk, Clitheroe, Whalley,
Carnforth, Colne, Padiham, Nelson, Chorley, Cleveleys,
Poulton and Great Harwood. It is estimated that the
number of pay and display ticket machines would increase
from 27 to 80 and the number of chargeable parking
spaces would increase from approximately 190 to
approximately 560.

11

Page 259




The introduction of on street parking charges would
require the promotion of a traffic regulation order which is
subject to statutory public consultation and the
consideration of any consequent objections.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

Objection to the introduction of the on street charging is
highly likely.

The introduction of charges may lead to the migration of
parking into adjacent streets which could be mitigated
through the promotion of traffic regulations.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Yes - completed

been undertaken?

12

Page 260




Reference — SC035

Service Name:

Highway Regulation (Bus Lane
Enforcement)

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £2.105m
Income 2018/19 £2.675m
Net budget 2018/19 -£0.570m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-1.500* -0.458 0.000 0.000 -1.958

*Includes £1m for sites that are currently subject to camera enforcement

FTE implications:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.0
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.150 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.150

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Approval to expand the use of camera enforcement to
promote compliance with bus lane restrictions in
Lancashire.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Bus lanes have been introduced across Lancashire in
order to promote the use of public transport through
improving journey times and service reliability. Camera
enforcement provides an effective means of securing
compliance with bus lane restrictions, protecting the
investment that has been made in them. 10 sites at which
bus lanes exist or are approved for introduction have been
identified for camera enforcement - Greyhound Bridge (2
sites), Morecambe Road (2 sites) and Parliament Street
in Lancaster; Tithebarn Street, Fishergate/Cheapside and
Fishergate Hill in Preston; and Whitebirk link and
Accrington Town Centre in Hyndburn. .

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

The introduction of bus lane enforcement cameras would
require a review of signing and road marking requirements
and the promotion of traffic regulation orders, which
require statutory public consultation and the consideration
of objections.

13

Page 261




Procurement and installation of cameras. Recruitment of
staff to manage administrative processes.

Is external No
consultation required

What are the risks Objection to the introduction of bus lane camera

associated with this enforcement is highly likely.
change and how will
they be mitigated

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one
been undertaken?

Not required

Page 262

14




Reference — SC048

Service Name: Highways Regulation (Street Works
Permit Fees)

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £1.438m

Income 2018/19 £3.242m

Net budget 2018/19 -£1.804m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.380* 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.380
*Includes £0.300m for income already being recovered
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

To increase the fees associated with the Lancashire
Permit Scheme for Street Works.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The permit scheme fees have been reviewed as part of the
3 year statutory review period. This review has indicated
that an increase could be applied to the fees. All the fees
associated with the Lancashire Permit Scheme would still
be below the maximum statutory level. An increase in the
fees will mean higher charges to the utility companies
which may be passed on to utility company customers.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

2 month consultation with utility companies and the
Department for Transport and the subsequent
consideration of any objections.

Consultation required with utility companies and the
Department for Transport.

Is external
consultation required

No

15

Page 263




What are the risks There is a risk of objections from utility companies which
associated with this would be mitigated by the analysis of income and

change and how will expenditure in the detailed review that has taken place.
they be mitigated

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required
been undertaken?

16

Page 264




Reference — SC060

Service Name:

Core Business Systems - Digital Contact
by Consent

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £4.097m
Income 2018/19 £0.302m
Net budget 2018/19 £3.795m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.021 -0.019 -0.017 -0.057
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

This would involve gaining customer consent to being
contacted electronically and not via 'hard copy' mail. Once
consent is given all correspondence will be via
electronic/digital means.

Cabinet decision to accept Digital Contact by Consent
(links to development and adoption of Digital First
Strategy).

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

This is a complex piece of work with multiple stakeholders
and customers. However, it has the potential to generate
significant savings year on year if executed correctly.

e The approach will impact upon all services users
accessing LCC services, with varying digital skill levels
and varying access to digital mediums

e Requirement for involvement of all services that
communicate with services users via hard copy
mail/letters as processes would need to be consistent
across the organisation, that is to say, digital first.

e Customer Access and Communications will be key in
the management of messages surrounding this change
of approach.

e BTLS |ICT technical advice required on the
implementation of digital consent and development of

17

Page 265




processes and system integration to ensure we
capture a services users consent (or refusal) and
ensure this follows them on their user journey
throughout the organisation.

e Longer term investment in the wider development of
digital skills within the organisation and the wider
community to support service users with the transition.
This will link to the delivery of a Digital First Strategy
and have implications for a range of services including
Skills, Learning & Development and Economic
Development as well as external groups and partner
organisations.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

e Adoption of the Digital First Strategy

e A robust, integrated, technical infrastructure will need
to be in place in order to capture consent and facilitate
its movement throughout a service user journey when
accessing multiple services.

e Consistent support and adoption of the principle of
digital consent across the organisation.

e This would need to be managed as a distinct
programme of work with underpinning work streams,
representatives and leads from all areas of the
organisation would be needed in order to understand
all aspects of a service users' journey and how moving
to digital would impact them

e Working groups established with service users to fully
understand how we can work together to put them at
the heart of the digital journey.

e An effective  communications campaign to
communicate the coming changes to service users

¢ Investment may be required to support the delivery of
Digital Contact by Consent.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

e Potential reputational risk. The organisation may be
seen to be making it unnecessarily difficult for
service users to interact with us.

Mitigate the risk by ensuring that informed consent is given
and not assumed or forced. As processes improve and
customers become more familiar with effective digital first
transactions this risk will diminish.

e This is an innovative and new way of working with
a significant risk that we are unable to adequately
capture consent for digital contact in a consistent
way. If this cannot be done effectively it will mean
service users receive contact via a range of
mediums, even if they have already consented to

18

Page 266




digital contact. This would have both reputational
and financial implications.

This risk will be mitigated through the establishment of a
programme of work to establish the issues to be resolved
and an effective development and implementation
programme with a phased delivery. The management of
communication and customer expectations will also be
key.

Is an Equality Yes - completed
Analysis required and,
if so, has one been
undertaken?

19

Page 267




Reference — SC074

Service Name: Customer Access Service — LCC
Customer Journey

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £5.339m

Income 2018/19 £2.205m

Net budget 2018/19 £3.134m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.040 -0.030 -0.030 -0.020 -0.120
*Please note, further savings of £0.020m will be made in 2023/24
FTE implications:
Temporary:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
3.00 -3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Recurrent:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
-1.70 -1.30 -1.20 -0.90 -5.10
*Please note, further savings of 0.80 fte will be made in 2023/24
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
Temporary:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.120 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.120

Decisions needed to 1.
deliver the budgeted
savings

Adoption of Digital First Strategy and commitment to
support a digital channel shift

2. A decision is required to update the LCC Customer
Journey, and to implement, prioritise and maintain
digital contact options across all services (links to
Digital Contact by Consent SCO 60).

3. Approval of funding to recruit a dedicated Change
Manager and technical support function within
Customer Access to implement necessary changes to
support digital channel shift.

4. A commitment to review, rationalise and reduce
customer routes into the authority by delivering a
single 'front door' provided by the Customer Access
Service.

5. A commitment to encourage and maximise self-
service, manage the level of direct engagement with
the customer and control quality.

20

Page 268




6.

A decision is required to bring responsibility for all
customer interactive services to the Customer Access
Service, including responsibility for on-line services, to
allow better partnership working and improve the
consistency and quality of the customer experience.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

If this proposal is realised, there will be a change in the
nature of enquiries Customer Access handle.

Customers seeking information will be enabled to
access this directly online without needing to contact
the authority through Customer Access or through
other services.

Transactional interactions will have been moved online
and automated maximising the opportunity for
customers to self-serve 24/7.

Customer Access will focus on handling complex
interactions that require specialist skills and can't be
resolved through self-service or automated
transactions. This may require fewer but longer
interaction lengths.

Customer Access will work more closely with services
across the organisation and with partners, developing
stronger working relationships with all services with an
aspect of customer interaction, delivering a consistent
level of customer engagement

Through this, Customer Access will have full
responsibility for the LCC customer journey and will
realise improvements to reduce escalations and
complaints through tracing the full journey to identify
and correct errors.

The knowledge and data collected through this co-
ordinated model of joint working between services and
Customer Access will be capitalised on to enable the
authority to better understand our customer and their
experiences, to continually develop and improve the
customer journey.

In line with the new ways of working, LCC services will see
changes in their customer interaction.

The bulk of information-seeking and transactional
enquiries will be online, and services will see less of the
trickle-through enquiries.

No services outside Customer Access will handle any
first point of contact (FPOC) customer interactions.

21

Page 269




Services will be responsible for keeping Customer
Access updated on any changes to their service
information so that the online information remains
current.

Resource freed for other duties.

BTLS will be required to support all systems and tools
required to support this new way of working.

The customer will see an improvement in experience when
interacting with LCC.

Information will be easily-available online at any time,
increasing the convenience for customers by allowing
them to interact with LCC services as they wish to fit
around their other commitments.

Quick and easy to report things/apply for things/find
updates on things online.

Can interact via new channels - social media and
webchat.

Customer Access Service there for focussed help
when needed - with shorter waiting times.

Customers have a better opinion of LCC.

External partners will interact with LCC in a different way.

They will share information with us digitally.

They will support our channel shift and encourage
customers to self-serve where appropriate.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Finalisation and adoption of Digital First Strategy

Thorough business analysis and data collection
undertaken by Customer Access and any other
services involved, including BTLS, to allow informed
planning and delivery of the work required to
implement the proposals.

A SMART project plan for delivery should then be
developed, using the information found in the business
analysis work as a basis for timescales.

Corporately, existing systems should be exploited to
their full potential to support the LCC Customer
Journey proposal, with planned programmes of work
to digitise customer access to all services being
prioritised and maximised to realise full potential.

22

Page 270




5. Particular consideration to be given to Genesys Phase
2, Report It, Apply for It, and the Social Care Portal
which could be expanded to include customers, allow
two-way information sharing, and other non-social
care services?

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

RISK: Lack of appetite within the organisation for the
adoption or implementation of a Digital First Strategy,
reducing the ability to deliver a digital channel shift for the
organisation and the customer

MITIGATION: Effective engagement with Cabinet and
Corporate Management Team to determine leadership
objectives and priorities. Development of appropriate
digital priorities linking with Corporate Plan (when
available) supported by an effective communication plan.

RISK: Transforming the LCC customer journey in line with
a Digital First Strategy has a risk that required tools and
systems will not be available when needed to realise
savings.

MITIGATION: Development of challenging but realistic
project delivery plans which take full account of realistic
technology delivery timescales and resource availability
across all services involved.

RISK: Transforming the LCC customer journey in line with
a Digital First Strategy carries a risk of not truly achieving
channel shift, instead moving customer contacts into
services and shifting the cost elsewhere rather than
realising any savings.

MITIGATION: The shift should be done in a robust manner
to ensure true customer channel shift, automating
processes that are currently manual, using appropriate
tools that integrate to back office systems and truly avoid
human involvement in handling the incoming interaction.
This will avoid moving customer enquiries around the
organisation.

RISK: There is a risk that customers will still be able to
access existing contact details and use them to bypass the
digital journey. This will affect potential to realise savings.

MITIGATION: Work with LCC's partner organisations to
ensure that they support the changes and update their
information in line with ours. The older contact channels
will have auto responses added to direct customers to
correct channel to further enforce this.

23

Page 271




RISK: There is a risk that LCC staff will not want to support
this new way of working when it does not directly affect
their service or budget. This will affect the ability of the
organisation to achieve customer channel shift and realise
savings.

MITIGATION: LCC CMT to affect organisational culture
change by leading on the digital channel shift and
promoting a Digital First Strategy, holding all services
responsible for their role in this.

RISK: Transforming the LCC customer journey in line with
a Digital First Strategy risks having a high setup cost as
there are large scale changes required.

MITIGATION: This is unavoidable, and any changes
would need to be supported by a clear business case
outlining costs and benefits.

RISK: Transforming the LCC customer journey in line with
a Digital First Strategy without a maintenance strategy
risks online information becoming out of date and
generating additional contacts in the future.

MITIGATION: Responsibility for maintaining the quality of
on-line information will be owned by CAS, supported by
Communications and individual services. The delivery
plan should include resource provision for regularly
revising and updating online information. This should be
corporately supported with services responsible for
providing CAS with up to date and accurate information.

RISK: Putting information online and encouraging our
customers to interact with us digitally carries information
security risks.

MITIGATION: CAS to work with Information Governance
and consider the GDPR when designing the customer
journey, working with services to complete Privacy Impact
Assessments for each new element.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required

been undertaken?

24

Page 272




Reference — SC075

Service Name:

Customer Access Service — Reduce
Opening Hours

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20
relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £5.339m
Income 2018/19 £2.205m
Net budget 2018/19 £3.134m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.070 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.070
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
-3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -3.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Cabinet approval to reduce the opening hours of the
Customer Access Service to align with County Hall cover.
Reducing from 8am — 6pm to 8am — 5pm.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

+ First Point Of Contact (FPOC) customer interactions
will need to be handled in the new, reduced time
period.

» The offer to Schools HR (income generating) service
would also reduce in line with this.

The impact on customers:

* Reduced operating hours for customer contacts
through Customer Access. Currently receive limited
number of calls (1.3% of all calls) between 5-6pm.

The impact to external partners:

* Reduced opening hours for external partner contacts
through Customer Access

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

1. Corporate and Cabinet approval of reduced operating
hours

2. Business analyses process and development of
implementation plan to ensure all issues are

25

Page 273




addressed before change to new operating hours.
This will include an effective communications plan
and promotion of new hours.

Is external
consultation required

The offer to Schools for the (income generating) HR
service would also need to reduce in line with this and
therefore needs to be considered when the decision is
made. Communication with Schools is required.

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

RISK: Customers find a route into services when CAS not
available. It is estimated that non-CAS interactions cost
1/3 more for the same function which would reduce the
savings achieved.

MITIGATION: This should be avoided by maximising the
on-line offer (linking to SCO 74) and actively managing
the customer away from direct contact with services.

RISK: Customer confusion or misunderstanding of
Customer Access availability leading to reputational risks.

MITIGATION: Clear and effective communication plan for
CAS operating hours, updating of all automated
messages, and ensure correct information is provided by
partner organisations.

RISK: If CAS stop handling first point of contact
interactions for a service, and this function instead
becomes an online-only facility, then this offer needs to
be fit for purpose to support true channel shift rather than
generating  additional contacts and  customer
dissatisfaction.

MITIGATION: There should be a full project to plan and
implement the changes to make sure this is completed

properly.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Yes - completed

been undertaken?

26

Page 274




Reference — SC078

Service Name:

Customer Access Service — Stop
Delivery of Highways Emails

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £5.339m
Income 2018/19 £2.205m
Net budget 2018/19 £3.134m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.040 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.040
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
-1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 -1.90
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to A decision is required that Customer Access will stop
deliver the budgeted delivering email access for Highway enquiries, directing
savings customers to Report It.

Email interactions are particularly inefficient as they
seldom provide adequate levels of information for action,
and become 'conversations' rather than reports for action.

Impact upon service, Customer Access will:

other LCC services,
service users and .
external partners

See a reduction in the number and variety of email
interactions and will actively direct customers to the on-
line Report It facility.

Reduce number of FTEs due to reduced demand for
email correspondence. This will be achieved through
vacancy management in the first instance.

The impact on LCC services.

Potential for email enquiries to find alternative routes in
to the authority and reach Councillors and the Highway
Service itself

Expectation that all interactions will be encouraged to
take place on-line

27

Page 275




» Collection of adequate and accurate information at first
contact via Report It forms, ensuring appropriate
remediation actions can be undertaken by the Highway
Service quickly and effectively

The impact on customers :

e Customers affected are those who are already digitally
enabled as they are making contact via email

* The service will still be delivered by LCC as an online
offering, the customer will be able to find information
online, and will be required to interact with us online..

* On-line reporting will ensure adequate information is
provided by the customer at FPOC and avoid repeat
contacts and prolonged interactions.

* No anticipated impact on external partners

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

1. Approval to stop dealing with Highway enquiries via
email

2. Thorough business analysis and data collection to
allow informed planning and delivery of the work
required to implement the proposals.

3. A SMART project plan for delivery will be developed,
using the information found in the business analysis
work as a basis for timescales.

4. Customers will be actively directed to the on-line
Report It facility

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

RISK: If CAS stop handling first point of contact for
Highway email, there is a risk that these emails are
redirected by customers to the Highways service, VIP mail
or Councillors directly.

MITIGATION: This should be avoided and on-line options
promoted by all parties within the authority.

RISK: If CAS stop handling first point of contact
interactions for a service, and this function instead
becomes an online-only facility, then this offer needs to be
fit for purpose to support true channel shift rather than
generating  additional contacts and  customer
dissatisfaction.

28

Page 276




properly.

to use the Report it facility

MITIGATION: There should be a full project to plan and
implement the changes to make sure this is completed

RISK: That online options are not appropriate for all
customers and some are unable to make reports.

MITIGATION: This proposal is specifically directed at
customers already contacting the authority on-line (via
email) and therefore it is anticipated that they will be able

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one
been undertaken?

Not required

Page 277

29




Reference — SC103

Service Name: Lancashire Youth Offending Team (YOT)
Which 'start year' does this option 2020/21

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £2.718m

Income 2018/19 £1.851m

Net budget 2018/19 £1.074m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -0.500 0.000 0.000 -0.500
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00* 0.00 0.00 0.00

*this will be determined once budgets are pooled and may result in a staff reduction across

the pooled resource.

Investment Required (Invest to Save):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Agree for discussions to take place with Chief Executives
of Lancashire, Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool
Local Authorities and respective Youth Justice
Management Boards to agree to combine local YOTs to
form a Pan Lancashire YOT and achieve a saving of
£0.500m for Lancashire County Council.

Agree that a consultation with the National Youth Justice
Board takes place as they are a key financial partner in
YOT's.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

e Youth Offending Team work to reduce first time
entrants to the youth justice system (prevention and
diversion), reduce offending behaviour and reduce the
use of custody. YOT services will continue to be
provided to service users as per national standard
requirements for Youth Justice.

e Impact would be positive for improving efficiencies with
partner agencies in YOTs who already provide a Pan
Lancashire Service i.e. Lancashire Constabulary,
National Probation Service, HM Courts, Victim
Services and UCLan. There are already Pan
Lancashire Service Level Arrangements in place for
these services.

30

Page 278




Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Consult with Local Authorities and Youth Justice
Management Board (YJMB) financial partners for
agreement.

Consult with Chief Executives of Lancashire,
Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool Local
Authorities for agreement.

Consult with YJMB in relation to budgets.

Review of YOTs caseloads and service provision.
Review Pan Lancs YOT staffing arrangements
including managers with a view to making efficiencies.
Combine governance, financial and Human Resources
arrangements - 1 Youth Justice Management Board
instead of 3.

Develop service level agreement for Pan Lancashire
YOT health services.

Develop Pan Lancashire working arrangements with
Local Authorities Children's Services — e.g. Education,
Children's Social Care, Children and Families Well
Being Service and SEND.

Share resources e.g. programmes, interventions,
reparation schemes, Junior Attendance Centres
(including pooled budget from Youth Justice Board),
unpaid work, Saturday Court cover, evening and
weekend working with young people and families,
volunteer's service.

Develop Pan Lancashire Performance Management
Framework supported by one Business Intelligence
Team.

Develop shared commissioning arrangements
(currently separate arrangements for Appropriate
Adults Service and Triage).

Consult HM Inspectorate of Probation in relation to
arrangements for YOT Inspections.

Develop a single volunteer service.

Is external
consultation required

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

Although the benefits outweigh the risks, the Unitary
Authorities and respective multi agency YJMB's may
not agree with the proposal.

This key risk will be mitigated through early dialogue
with partners to establish the appetite for merger,
including discussion relating to current vacancies and
proposals to recruit to vacancies in Partner YOTs.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required

been undertaken?

31

Page 279




Reference — SC104

Service Name: Lancashire Youth Offending Team (YOT)
Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £2.718m

Income 2018/19 £1.851m

Net budget 2018/19 £1.074m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.197 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.197
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Agree that the Youth Offending Team will complete
assessments on behalf of Children's Social Care of young
people who display sexually harmful behaviour. Currently
these assessments are commissioned out.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Impact will be limited to service users as Lancashire Youth
Offending Team core staff currently have the experience in
providing the assessments and interventions for young
people over 10 years within the youth justice system.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Consultation is taking place with Childrens' Social Care
representative on the Youth Justice Management
Board to prepare for taking referrals to the Youth
Offending Team prevention service.

Youth Offending Team and Children's Social Care staff
who will provide the prevention of sexually harmful
behaviour assessments and interventions will need
training to work with younger aged children in this area
— the costs to this training can be covered from the
Youth Offending Team pooled budget.

Pan Lancashire joint working arrangements with the
Police, Children's Social Care and Youth Offending
Team in managing young people who sexually harm
will need reviewing and revising.

Is external
consultation required

No

32

Page 280




What are the risks Some of the young people who have commissioned

associated with this service may still require specialist services. Youth
change and how will Offending Team can spot purchase specialist support to
they be mitigated support this work at approx. £600 per child, this can be

covered in the pooled budget.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one
been undertaken?

Not required

Page 281

33




Reference — SC112

Service Name: Review of the management structure
across Education and Children's
Services

Which 'start year' does this option

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or | 2019/20

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £103.316m

Income 2018/19 £2.010m

Net budget 2018/19 £101.306m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.481 -0.481 0.000 0.000 -0.962
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
-20.00* 0.00 0.00 0.00 -20.00
* Estimated — actual figure to be determined following review
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Agreement to review the management structure across
Children's Social Care (CSC), including CSC Localities,
Fostering, Adoption, Residential and Youth Offending
Team (FARY), Safeguarding, Inspection & Audit (SIA) and
Special Educational Needs & Disability (SEND).

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The review will consider management tiers, roles and
responsibilities and management spans. The review will
identify how structures can be streamlined to improve
efficiency, whilst providing focused leadership at all levels.

To manage the impact on the service appropriate
supervision ratios will be maintained, with a continued
focus on improving the quality of front-line practice.

Simultaneous activity linked to this saving will be that bids
will be made to the Department for Education and other
government departments for Innovation funding to support
retention of management capacity where the need is
greatest and to seek to offset the impact of this review in
year one.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

e Full HR consultation process with staff.
e Development of new structures.

34

Page 282




Implementation of new structures.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

There is a risk of service disruption, loss of
expertise and impact on staff morale. There is also
a potential impact on the continuing improvement
journey for Children's Services.

To mitigate against these risks a joint review will be
undertaken, considering the  management
arrangements across CSC and SEND, engaging
managers in the process of change.

Vacancies as they arise will be covered by
temporary staff.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one been | Not required

undertaken?

35

Page 283




Reference — SC113

Service Name:

Education and Children's Services
Business Support

Which 'start year' does this option 2019/20

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £7.623m
Income 2018/19 -£0.487m
Net budget 2018/19 £7.136m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.410 -0.411 0.000 0.000 -0.821

FTE implications:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
-48.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 -48.67
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Agree to redesign the business support service for
Education and Children's Services.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

The proposal is to redesign the business support service
for Education and Children's Services. There are currently
five separate business support functions supporting these
services: School Improvement, Learning & Skills, Special
Educational Needs & Disability (SEND), Fostering,
Adoption, Residential & Youth Offending, and
Safeguarding, Inspection & Audit.

It is proposed that the new model operates on a 3 locality
footprint with business support working across these
services. The business support functions for School
Improvement and Learning & Skills will be brought
together. It is also proposed to regrade some posts to
ensure consistency of grades and responsibilities across

36

Page 284




the services. There will be a reduction of posts in the
proposed structure as a result of streamlining the service.
There is a potential impact on the service:

Potential reduction in the level of support provided to
operational staff and managers. A more detailed
review of the business support tasks undertaken will be
required.

Introduction of new ways of working and redesign of
the service will impact on staff at all levels until these
are fully embedded.

The establishment, disestablishment, regrading and/or
relocation of posts required for this redesign to meet
service requirements will impact on staff within the
service.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Further detailed planning to confirm the structure,
including the management arrangements and staff
roles and responsibilities.

Further engagement with operational managers to
ensure changes in practice meet service needs and
that there is a commitment to the changes required,
including new and more efficient ways of working.

Job evaluation of a significant number of posts is
required as either new roles or proposed changes to
existing roles and responsibilities.

Formal consultation with staff.

Support and advice from HR, Programme Office and
finance colleagues.

Some of the proposals require IT enhancements to
achieve efficiencies.

Learning will take place from councils judged to be
"outstanding" where they have used business support
workers to reduce the work of social workers which
may provide possibilities to offset these savings which
a reduction in staff costs at the front line.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

The following risks have been identified:

Potential impact on statutory service delivery following
a reduction in business support resources. This could
result in operational staff undertaking administrative
tasks.

Mitigation: review of business support tasks to prioritise
the work of the service and close monitoring of
workloads from implementation onwards.

Loss of expertise and knowledge and impact on staff
retention if management of change is not well
managed.

Mitigation: regular communication with staff as part of
the redesign and implementation process. Provision of

37

Page 285




a comprehensive induction, training and support
package to encourage staff retention and professional
development.

e Delays in the introduction of the IT enhancements
required as detailed above.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required
been undertaken?

38

Page 286




Reference — SC122

Service Name:

Lancashire Safeguarding Children's
Board

Which 'start year' does this option
relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or | 2019/20

2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £12.629m
Income 2018/19 £0.568m
Net budget 2018/19 £12.061m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
-0.045 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.045
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

Review and reduce the contribution of LCC funding
contribution to the Lancashire Safeguarding Children
Board (LSCB).

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Changes in statutory guidance allow greater flexibility in
how multi-agency safeguarding arrangements are
configured. From September 2019, LSCBs will cease to
exist, with the 3 statutory partners: local authority, police
and health being responsible for the new arrangements.
Discussions are taking place with Blackpool and
Blackburn with Darwen regarding a pan Lancashire
approach which will streamline Board structures and
achieve financial savings.

A further review of this target will be undertaken when the
Department for Education (DFE) approves Lancashire's
submission to change to the new safeguarding
arrangements in June. It may be that further savings can
be achieved linked to partnership collaboration and
cooperation.

Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Chief Officer agreement of the 3 statutory partners to
progress a pan Lancashire approach in respect of future
multi-agency safeguarding arrangements. Following this
work will be required to implement the new structural
arrangements.

39

Page 287




Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

There are minimal risks as changes in statutory guidance
mean that there is a statutory requirement to implement
new multi-agency safeguarding arrangements. This
therefore provides an opportunity to review our approach.
However, the timescales are very tight in that the new
arrangements must be in place by September 2019 and
ideally in advance of this deadline. There are minimal risks
in relation to the budget reduction of £38k, as these will be
efficiencies that are generated from the new working
arrangements.

Is an Equality Analysis required and, if so, has one Not required

been undertaken?

40

Page 288




Reference — SC123

Service Name: CSC

Demand Management Projects including
an expansion of Family Group
Conferencing

Which 'start year' does this option

relate to 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 or | 2020/21
2022/23

Gross budget 2018/19 £103.316m
Income 2018/19 £2.010m
Net budget 2018/19 £101.306m

Budget Change and Profiling (discrete year):

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 -2.300 0.000 0.000 -2.300
FTE implications:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Investment Required (Invest to Save):
Recurrent:
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.000 0.420 0.000 0.000 0.420

Decisions needed to
deliver the budgeted
savings

To agree to the development and delivery of a programme
of targeted interventions for children and young people on
the edge of care using approaches including Family Group
Conferencing targeted on

. Children In Need
. Child Protection
. Pre-Proceedings

Agree to recurrent investment of £0.420m in order to
support saving delivery. This is an estimate at this stage
with the details of the investment to be developed as part
of the implementation plan of the saving.

Impact upon service,
other LCC services,
service users and
external partners

Safe reduction of numbers of looked after children and
those subject to child protection plans and pre
proceedings.

41

Page 289




Actions needed to
deliver the service
change

Analysis of "what works" evidence base to select range of
interventions

Establish delivery team to pilot approaches / extend
existing targeted provision

Develop pathways
Commence interventions

Ongoing review and alignment with Lifechances
Programme. This is a programme that LCC has
successfully secured funding for and will redu e the no of
children looked after through a delivery model based on
payment by results.

Is external
consultation required

No

What are the risks
associated with this
change and how will
they be mitigated

Risk that interventions will not achieve diversion from care.
This will be mitigated through the use of interventions,
including Family Group Conferencing, which have a strong
evidence base and have been tested on a small scale
within the Lancashire footprint before being adop